
Email: committeeservices@horsham.gov.uk
Direct line: 01403 215465

Horsham District Council, Parkside, Chart Way, Horsham, West Sussex RH12 1RL
Telephone: 01403 215100 (calls may be recorded)   Horsham.gov.uk   Chief Executive – Tom Crowley

222

Corporate & Democratic Services
www.hastings.gov.uk/meetings

1

Planning Committee (South)
Tuesday, 21st March, 2017 at 2.30 pm
Main Conference Room, Parkside, Chart Way, Horsham

Councillors: Brian O'Connell (Chairman)
Paul Clarke (Vice-Chairman)
John Blackall
Jonathan Chowen
Philip Circus
Roger Clarke
David Coldwell
Ray Dawe
Brian Donnelly
David Jenkins
Nigel Jupp
Liz Kitchen

Gordon Lindsay
Tim Lloyd
Paul Marshall
Mike Morgan
Kate Rowbottom
Jim Sanson
Ben Staines
Claire Vickers
Michael Willett

You are summoned to the meeting to transact the following business

Agenda

Page No.

1. Apologies for absence

2. Minutes 3 - 8

To approve as correct the minutes of the meeting held on 21st February 2017

3. Declarations of Members' Interests
To receive any declarations of interest from Members of the Committee 

4. Announcements
To receive any announcements from the Chairman of the Committee or the 
Chief Executive

To consider the following reports of the Development Manager and to take such action 
thereon as may be necessary:

5. Appeals 9 - 12

Public Document Pack



Applications for determination by Committee:

6. DC/16/2108 - Monastery Lane, Storrington, Pulborough (Ward: Chantry)  
Applicant: Mr Chris Pitchford

13 - 58

7. DC/16/2155 - Patuca, Bracken Lane, Storrington, Pulborough 
(Ward: Chanctonbury)  Applicant: Mr Stuart Oldroyd

59 - 70

8. DC/16/2915 - Blacklands Farm Camping, Blacklands Farm, Wheatsheaf 
Road, Henfield (Ward: Henfield)  Applicant: Mr Neil & Grahame Goodridge

71 - 80

9. DC/16/2522 - Blacklands Farm, Wheatsheaf Road, Henfield 
(Ward: Henfield)  Applicant: Mr Grahame & Neil Goodridge

81 - 88

10. DC/16/1783 - 16 Southview Terrace, Henfleld (Ward: Henfield)  
Applicant: Ms Suzanne Sutherland

89 - 98

11. DC/16/2623 - 16 Southview Terrace, Henfield (Ward: Henfield)  
Applicant: Miss Suzanne Sutherland

99 - 106

12. Urgent Business
Items not on the agenda which the Chairman of the meeting is of the opinion 
should be considered as urgent because of the special circumstances



1

Planning Committee (South)
21 FEBRUARY 2017

Present: Councillors: Brian O'Connell (Chairman), Paul Clarke (Vice-Chairman), 
John Blackall, Philip Circus, David Coldwell, Ray Dawe, 
Brian Donnelly, David Jenkins, Nigel Jupp, Liz Kitchen, 
Gordon Lindsay, Paul Marshall, Mike Morgan, Jim Sanson, 
Claire Vickers and Michael Willett

Apologies: Councillors: Jonathan Chowen, Roger Clarke, Tim Lloyd, 
Kate Rowbottom and Ben Staines

PCS/93  MINUTES

The minutes of the meeting of the Committee held on 17th January were 
approved as a correct record and signed by the Chairman.

PCS/94  DECLARATIONS OF MEMBERS' INTERESTS

There were no declarations of interest.

PCS/95  ANNOUNCEMENTS

The Chairman announced that Hazel Cork, Development Team Leader, who 
had worked in the planning department for over 20 years, would be retiring 
shortly.  He thanked her for the tremendous work she had done over the years 
and wished her well for the future.

PCS/96  APPEALS

The list of appeals lodged, appeals in progress and appeal decisions, as 
circulated, was noted. 

PCS/97  DC/16/1419 - LITTLE GILLMANS COTTAGE, MARRINGDEAN ROAD, 
BILLINGSHURST (WARD: BILLINGSHURST & SHIPLEY) APPLICANT: MR 
NICK DALEY

The Development Manager reported that this application sought permission for 
the demolition of a dwelling and outbuildings and the erection of 14 dwellings of 
relatively traditional design served by an access onto Marringdean Road.  

There would be two terraces on a south-facing cul-de-sac, and one terrace and 
three 4-bedroom detached units on an east-facing cul-de-sac.  The proposed 
terraces would include: one 4-bedroom; eight 3-bedroom; and two 2-bedroom 
units.  Each dwelling would have a rear garden with gated access.  A total of 32 
car parking spaces across the site were proposed.    

Page 3

Agenda Item 2



Planning Committee (South)
21 February 2017

2

The application site was located within the built-up area of Billingshurst in a 
residential area, including new developments at Daux Wood and Marringdean 
Acres. An industrial site lay to the west.  There were two parts to the site: Little 
Gillmans Cottage and garden, which was adjacent to new development; and 
land between Little Gillmans and 8 Marringdean Road to the north, which had 
been in agricultural use but had fallen into neglect.   

Details of relevant government and council policies and relevant planning 
history, as contained within the report, were noted by the Committee. The 
responses from statutory internal and external consultees, as contained within 
the report, were considered by the Committee.

The Parish Council objected to the application.  Eleven letters of objection, from 
ten households, and one letter of comment, had been received.  Two members 
of the public spoke in objection to the application and the applicant’s agent 
addressed the Committee in support of the proposal.  

Members considered the officer’s planning assessment which indicated that the 
key issues for consideration in determining the proposal were: the principle of 
development; design and layout; the amenity of neighbouring and future 
residents; parking and highways; flooding and drainage; biodiversity and 
ecology; sustainability; and affordable housing and infrastructure contributions.

Members considered the density of the scheme and noted that it was only 
slightly higher than that of surrounding development.  Members noted that 
Condition 8 requiring a drainage scheme would address flooding issues by 
ensuring the development would be properly drained.

With regards to the required commuted sum towards off-site affordable housing, 
it was noted that the applicant had provided evidence that they had been 
unable to secure a Registered Provider to secure on-site affordable housing.  

RESOLVED

(i) That a legal agreement be entered into to secure financial 
contributions for affordable housing and infrastructure.

(ii) That on completion of (i) above, planning application DC/16/1419 be 
determined by the Development Manager.  The view of the 
Committee was that the application should be granted. 

PCS/98  DC/16/2624 - WESTMINSTER HOUSE, STATION ROAD, PULBOROUGH 
(WARD: PULBOROUGH & COLDWALTHAM)  APPLICANT: NEIL AND 
LOUISE SPINK

The Development Manager reported that this application sought permission to 
convert one 3-bedroom flat on the second and third (attic) floor of Westminster 
House into three units comprising two 1-bedroom units on the second floor, and 
one 2-bedroom unit on the third floor.   There would be minor alterations to the 

Page 4



Planning Committee (South)
21 February 2017

3

3

roof, with an additional dormer window, similar to an existing one on a side 
elevation, added to the east and west roof-slopes. 

The attic space, which currently contained water tanks, would be opened up to 
provide accommodation for the 2-bedroom unit.  No parking or garden space 
would be provided for the properties.

The application site was located in the centre of Pulborough in an area of mixed 
residential and commercial properties of various styles.  It was within an 
imposing red-brick building which had been a NatWest bank.  There was no 
parking provision on the site.   

Details of relevant government and council policies, as contained within the 
report, were noted by the Committee.   Relevant planning history, including the 
permission to convert the ground and first floor of the building into three flats, 
was noted by the Committee.  The development of the adjacent site at Bartram 
House was also noted.

The responses from statutory internal and external consultees, as contained 
within the report, were considered by the Committee.

The Parish Council objected to the application.  One letter of objection had 
been received.  A representative of the Parish Council spoke in objection to the 
application, and raised concerns regarding inadequate parking in the vicinity 
and the accumulative impact of recent and proposed development within 
Pulborough.   

Members considered the officer’s planning assessment which indicated that the 
key issues for consideration in determining the proposal were:  the principle of 
development; design; the amenity of neighbouring residents; and highways and 
traffic, in particular parking provision. 

Members concluded that their concerns regarding parking provision were not 
sufficient reason to warrant refusal in the light of the Highways Authority’s 
comments.  It was agreed that a condition should be added to ensure that 
during construction of the development contractor vehicles would not park in the 
shorty-stay layby opposite the site.

 RESOLVED 

That planning application DC/16/2624 be granted subject to the 
conditions as reported, and an additional condition to secure an 
agreed Construction Management Plan prior to commencement of 
development.  

PCS/99  DC/16/1798 - LAKERS BUILDING AND FENCING SUPPLIES LTD, 
STATION APPROACH INDUSTRIAL ESTATE, STATION ROAD, 
PULBOROUGH (WARD: PULBOROUGH & COLDWALTHAM)  APPLICANT: 
MR PETER CROSDIL

Page 5



Planning Committee (South)
21 February 2017

4

The Development Manager reported that this application sought retrospective 
permission for use of a yard for the storage of materials and equipment related 
to the builder and fencing merchant, and the construction of metal palisade 
perimeter fencing.

The application site was within the built-up area of Pulborough close to the 
junction of Station Approach and Station Road. It comprised a large detached 
brick workshop and retail unit with parking area, and a storage yard to the north.  
There were commercial warehouses to the north, Pulborough Station to the 
west, and residential development to the east.  The site was adjacent to but 
outside a designated Key Employment Area.  

Details of relevant government and council policies and relevant planning 
history, as contained within the report, were noted by the Committee.

The Parish Council objected to the application.  Seven letters of objection had 
been received. One member of the public spoke in objection to the application 
and a representative of the Parish Council also spoke in objection to it.

Members considered the officer’s planning assessment which indicated that the 
key issues for consideration in determining the proposal were:  the principle of 
use; visual impact; and the impact on neighbouring amenity. 

Members discussed the impact of the change of use of the yard, in particular 
with regards to delivery vehicles and it was agreed that a Deliveries 
Management Plan should be required.  The impact of the blue palisade fencing 
on the amenity of neighbouring occupiers was discussed and it was noted that 
raising the height of the wooden fencing on the eastern boundary would 
mitigate its impact.

RESOLVED 

That planning application DC/16/1798 be granted subject to:

(i) Condition 1 as reported to be amended so that activity on the site 
to commence from 8.00 hours instead of 7.30 hours Monday to 
Friday;

(ii) An additional condition requiring a Deliveries Management Plan 
relating to deliveries to the application site (external yard only);

(iii) An additional condition requiring amended fencing details to be 
submitted and implemented to the east boundary with 1 Station 
Villas.

PCS/100  DC/16/1646 - THE BANYAN TREE, 19 SWAN CORNER, PULBOROUGH 
(WARD: PULBOROUGH & COLDWALTHAM)  APPLICANT: MR G SMITH

Page 6



Planning Committee (South)
21 February 2017

5

5

The Development Manager reported that this application sought permission for 
a first floor rear extension to provide an additional function room, and a two-
storey side extension to provide staff accommodation for the restaurant.  There 
would be various alterations to windows and the roof.  The proposed height of 
the first floor extension had been reduced by the applicant in response to 
concerns regarding its bulk.

The application site was located within the built-up area of Pulborough on the 
southern side of Swan Corner and comprised a two-storey predominantly brick 
detached bar/restaurant, with converted loft space. There were eight parking 
spaces to the rear, and a servicing yard to the west.  The surrounding area 
included dwellings and commercial units of varying styles, ages, and sizes, 
including some listed buildings to the north-east towards the Conservation Area.

Details of relevant government and council policies and relevant planning 
history, as contained within the report, were noted by the Committee. The 
responses from statutory internal and external consultees, as contained within 
the report, were considered by the Committee.

The Parish Council objected to the application.  Three letters of objection had 
been received. A representative of the Parish Council spoke in objection to the 
application.

Members considered the officer’s planning assessment which indicated that the 
key issues for consideration in determining the proposal were: the principle of 
development; design and appearance; its impact on neighbouring amenity; and 
its impact on the highway.

Members welcomed the expansion of the business and, whilst there was 
concern regarding restricted on-street parking in the vicinity, noted that 
Condition 4 would increase the off-street parking provision from eight to nine 
spaces.

RESOLVED

That planning application DC/16/1646 be granted subject to the 
conditions and reasons as reported.

PCS/101  DC/16/2915 - BLACKLANDS FARM CAMPING, BLACKLANDS FARM, 
WHEATSHEAF ROAD, HENFIELD (WARD: HENFIELD)  APPLICANT: MR 
NEIL AND GRAHAME GOODRIDGE

Item withdrawn from the agenda.

PCS/102  DC/16/2522 - BLACKLANDS FARM, WHEATSHEAF ROAD, HENFIELD 
(WARD: HENFIELD)  APPLICANT: MR GRAHAME AND NEIL GOODRIDGE

Item withdrawn from the agenda.

Page 7



Planning Committee (South)
21 February 2017

6

The meeting closed at 3.58 pm having commenced at 2.30 pm

CHAIRMAN

Page 8



Planning Committee (South) 
Date: 21st March  2017

Report by the Development Manager:   APPEALS
Report run from 9/2/17 to 8/3/17

1. Appeals Lodged

I have received notice from the Department of Communities and Local Government that the 
following appeals have been lodged:-

Ref No. Site Date Lodged Officer 
Recommendation

Committee 
Resolution

DC/16/1905

Chestnut Cottage
Water Lane
Storrington
Pulborough
West Sussex
RH20 3LY

17th February 
2017 Refuse

DC/16/2153

Yew Tree Stud Farm
Harbolets Road
West Chiltington
Pulborough
West Sussex
RH20 2LG

20th February 
2017 Refuse

DC/16/2235

Small Brownfield Site To 
East of London Road
Petrol Filling Station
London Road
Ashington
Pulborough
West Sussex
RH20 3AT

28th February 
2017 Refuse

DC/16/2411

Chicken Sheds
Chalk Farm
Okehurst Lane
Billingshurst
West Sussex

1st March 
2017

Refuse Prior 
Approval

DC/16/2412

The Barn
Chalk Farm
Okehurst Lane
Billingshurst
West Sussex

1st March 
2017

Refuse Prior 
Approval

DC/16/2376

Woodleigh
Nutbourne Lane
Nutbourne
Pulborough
West Sussex
RH20 2HS

7TH March 
2017 Refuse

Page 9

Agenda Item 5



2. Live Appeals

I have received notice from the Department of Communities and Local Government that the 
following appeals are now in progress:

Ref No. Site Appeal 
Procedure Start Date Officer 

Recommendation
Committee 
Resolution

DC/16/0932

Coombewick House 
London Road
Ashington
Pulborough
West Sussex
RH20 3AU

Written Reps
22nd 

February 
2017

Refuse

DC/16/1415

1 Woodcot
New Road
Billingshurst
West Sussex
RH14 9DS

Written Reps 9th February 
2017 Refuse Refuse

DC/16/1957

Ashley House
Station Road
Pulborough
West Sussex
RH20 1AH

Written Reps 9th February 
2017 Refuse

DC/16/2049

Land Between 
Shona and 
Camwood
Mill Lane
Ashington
West Sussex

Written Reps 21st February 
2017 Refuse

3. Appeal Decisions

I have received notice from the Department of Communities and Local Government that the 
following appeals have been determined:-

Ref No. Site Appeal 
Procedure Decision Officer 

Recommendation
Committee 
Resolution

DC/16/1423

1 Gorse Bank Close
Storrington
Pulborough
West Sussex
RH20 3AQ

Written Reps Allowed Refuse

DC/16/1702

Little Paddocks
Crays Lane
Thakeham
Pulborough
West Sussex
RH20 3ER

Fast Track Allowed Refuse Refuse

DC/16/0752

Oakwood Farm
Hooklands Lane
Shipley
Horsham
West Sussex
RH13 8PY

Written Reps Withdrawn Refuse Prior 
Approval

DC/16/1628

The Domain
Greyfriars Lane
Storrington
Pulborough
West Sussex
RH20 4HE

Fast Track Dismissed Refuse

Page 10



DC/16/1091

Land Adjacent To 
Buckmans
Stane Street
Five Oaks
West Sussex
RH14 9BA

Written Reps Dismissed Refuse Refuse

DC/16/1463

Hillyards
Sunset Lane
West Chiltington
Pulborough
West Sussex
RH20 2PB

Fast Track Dismissed Refuse

DC/16/1464

Hillyards
Sunset Lane
West Chiltington
Pulborough
West Sussex
RH20 2PB

Fast Track Dismissed Refuse

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



Contact Officer: Rosemary Foreman Tel: 01403 215561

PLANNING COMMITTEE 
REPORT

TO: Planning Committee (South)

BY: Development Manager

DATE: 21 March 2017

DEVELOPMENT:

Proposed demolition of the existing Glebe Surgery, and erection of a new 
1,400 sqm doctors surgery and 120 sqm pharmacy served by 59 
associated car parking spaces and the erection of 9 No. dwellings served 
by 31 parking spaces, all accessed by adapted access to Monastery 
Lane and the creation of new public open space

SITE: Monastery Lane Storrington Pulborough West Sussex

WARD: Chantry

APPLICATION: DC/16/2108

APPLICANT: Mr Chris Pitchford

REASON FOR INCLUSION ON THE AGENDA: More than 8 letters of representation contrary to 
the Officers’ recommendation have been 
received

RECOMMENDATION: To approve the application, subject to conditions and to a Legal 
Agreement to secure delivery of the surgery building and transfer of the 
retained open space to public ownership prior to the commencement of 
the residential element of the proposal, to secure a financial contribution 
towards implementation of waiting restrictions on Monastery Lane and 
within the development and to secure financial contributions to local 
education provision. 

1. THE PURPOSE OF THIS REPORT

1.1 To consider the planning application.

DESCRIPTION OF THE APPLICATION

1.2 The application is made in full and seeks permission for a replacement and enlarged 
doctor’s surgery building (including a pharmacy) with ancillary car park and a development 
of 9 dwellings, all served by an altered access from Monastery Lane.  It should be noted 
that the proposal has been amended during consideration from providing a total of 24 
dwellings to 9 dwellings.  Given the scale of the proposed change and the public interest in 
the proposal, a full 21-day re-consultation exercise to publicise the amended proposal and 
give the public and consultees the opportunity to provide their comments on it has been 
carried out.  This comprised written notification to those properties which were originally 
notified of the receipt of the application and to all those properties from which 
representations were received in connection with the original submission, re-notification of 
all consultees and amended press notice and site notices.  For clarity, the Council is now 

Page 13

Agenda Item 6



therefore considering the proposed 9-unit scheme only, and the 24-unit scheme has 
effectively been withdrawn by the Applicant.  It is not open to the Council to consider the 
merits of both the 9-unit and 24-unit scheme.

1.3 The surgery building would be sited partly on the footprint of the existing surgery building, 
but extending further to the south east than the existing building.  The surgery building 
would be part single storey, part two storey, with much of the roof space utilised to provide 
a third floor of usable space.  The single storey section would be flat roofed, while the 
remainder would be formed from a number of different pitched roof sections, linked by a 
central section comprising mainly glazing.  A variety of materials are proposed including 
flintwork, dark and light red brick, black weatherboarding, natural weatherboarding, red roof 
tiles and grey fibre cement tiles (imitation slate).  The building would have a maximum 
height of around 9.8m.  

1.4 In connection with the surgery, fifty-eight parking spaces would be provided in two areas- to 
the north and south of the surgery.  A bicycle store is proposed to the rear (east) of the 
building.  An attached refuse storage room is proposed to the northern side of the single 
storey (pharmacy) section.  

1.5 The residential element proposes 9 dwellings, arranged in two pairs of semi-detached 
dwellings and 5 detached dwellings.  All of the dwellings are proposed to be private market 
units.  The size mix proposed is as follows:
 3 x 3-bed houses
 5 x 4-bed houses
 1 x 5-bed house

1.6 The dwellings are arranged in a fairly irregular and informal layout.  Plots 1 and 2 would 
front the main access, with plots 3-7 arranged around a spur off the main access and plots 
8 and 9 on a southern spur road facing the retained open space.    

1.7 All of the residential dwellings would be two storey with the exception of plot 1 which would 
be 2.5 storeys with rooms in the roof served by dormer windows. The height of the 
dwellings range from between 8.9m to 9.5m in height.  The elevations indicate a variety of 
materials for the residential buildings, including red brick, stonework, tile hanging, black 
and white weatherboarding, clay tiles and slate tiles.  

1.8 Each of the semi-detached dwellings would be provided with a single garage and surface 
parking space and each of the detached dwellings would be provided with a double garage 
and two surface parking spaces.  Three visitor parking spaces are provided within the 
residential part of the development.    

1.9 The site plan shows existing public rights of way across the site retained, and an additional 
route provided through the development to link up with the existing north-south public 
footpath.  The remaining un-developed land, comprising the southern part of the Glebe 
Field and the north-eastern part of the Glebe Field are intended to be retained as areas of 
public open space.    

1.10 A number of supporting documents accompany the application, including:

 Separate Design and Access Statements for the surgery and residential elements.
 Planning Statement
 Heritage Statement
 Landscape and Visual Impact Assessment
 Transport Statement
 Flood Risk Assessment
 Archaeological Desk-Based Assessment

Page 14



 Reptile Report
 Preliminary Ecological Appraisal Report
 Statement of Community Involvement
 Air Quality Appraisal
 Arboricultural Impact Assessment

DESCRIPTION OF THE SITE

1.11 Part of the northern end of the site is currently occupied by a doctor’s surgery building and 
car park, with temporary portacabins on part of the car park.  The remainder of the site is 
undeveloped land.  The area to the south of the existing surgery and to the west of the 
existing paths crossing the site is used for grazing of horses.  The remainder, although 
private land, is publicly accessible via the existing public rights of way crossing the land.  It 
should be noted that the trodden route of the public footpath on site does not follow the 
definitive route of the public right of way recognised by the County Council.  The definitive 
route runs in an almost straight line north-south from the eastern edge of the existing 
surgery site to the corner of the churchyard at the southern edge of the site.  

1.12 The part of the site occupied by the surgery and western part of the horse paddocks, 
fronting Monastery Lane and extending down to the adjacent dwelling Lady Place is 
relatively flat.  The land slopes steeply up from the eastern edge of the surgery to a high 
point roughly to the rear of the adjacent dwelling Glebe House.  The land also slopes up 
towards St Marys Church to the South.  

1.13 The neighbouring dwelling Lady Place is a grade II listed building.  St Marys Church is a 
grade II* listed building.  The Storrington Conservation Area lies to the east of the site, 
including the churchyard which adjoins the site.  The dwellings fronting West Street, to the 
north of the site, lie within the Storrington Air Quality Management Area.  The site itself lies 
within the Storrington built-up area boundary, as defined on the HDPF Policies Map.  

2. INTRODUCTION

STATUTORY BACKGROUND

2.1 The Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

RELEVANT PLANNING POLICIES

2.2. The following Policies are considered to be relevant to the assessment of this application:

National Planning Policy Framework: 
NPPF1 - Building a strong, competitive economy 
NPPF4 - Promoting sustainable transport 
NPPF6 - Delivering a wide choice of high quality homes 
NPPF7 - Requiring good design 
NPPF8 - Promoting healthy communities 
NPPF10 - Meeting the challenge of climate change, flooding and costal change 
NPPF11 - Conserving and enhancing the natural environment 
NPPF12 - Conserving and enhancing the historic environment 

Horsham District Planning Framework (HDPF 2015)
HDPF1 - Strategic Policy: Sustainable Development 
HDPF2 - Strategic Policy: Strategic Development 
HDPF3 - Strategic Policy: Development Hierarchy  
HDPF13 - Town Centre Uses 
HDPF15 - Strategic Policy: Housing Provision 

Page 15



HDPF16 - Strategic Policy: Meeting Local Housing Needs 
HDPF24 - Strategic Policy: Environmental Protection 
HDPF25 - Strategic Policy: The Natural Environment and Landscape Character 
HDPF30 - Protected Landscapes 
HDPF31 - Green Infrastructure and Biodiversity 
HDPF32 - Strategic Policy: The Quality of New Development 
HDPF33 - Development Principles 
HDPF34 - Cultural and Heritage Assets 
HDPF35 - Strategic Policy: Climate Change 
HDPF36 - Strategic Policy: Appropriate Energy Use 
HDPF37 - Sustainable Construction 
HDPF38 - Strategic Policy: Flooding 
HDPF39 - Strategic Policy: Infrastructure Provision 
HDPF40 - Sustainable Transport 
HDPF41 - Parking 
HDPF42 - Strategic Policy: Inclusive Communities 
HDPF43 - Community Facilities, Leisure and Recreation 

RELEVANT NEIGHBOURHOOD PLAN

2.3 The Storrington, Sullington and Washington Neighbourhood Plan progressed to submission 
version (Regulation 18), but the Examiner’s Report found that the draft NP did not meet the 
basic conditions and should not proceed to referendum.  As such, there is no NP in place in 
the area at this time and no current published draft for consultation.  

PLANNING HISTORY AND RELEVANT APPLICATIONS

SR/96/89 36 dwellings (6 for low-cost/social housing), doctors 
surgery, health centre, enlargement of car-park, new 
access & provision of public open space

Refused

SR/6/90 Erection of doctor's surgery Withdrawn

SR/53/91 Doctors surgery Permitted

SR/60/98 Single-storey extension to provide 2 consulting rooms Permitted

DC/04/1068 Single-Storey extension Permitted

DC/09/1748 Single storey side extension (2 consulting rooms) Permitted

DC/14/1180 To retain a single storey Portakabin building to be used as 
additional medical treatment rooms currently sited on a 
portion of the existing car park.

Permitted for a 
temporary 
period to 
05.08.2018

DC/16/0769 To install a temporary single storey Portakabin building to 
be used as additional treatment rooms. 

Permitted for a 
temporary 
period to 
05.08.2018

3. OUTCOME OF CONSULTATIONS

3.1 Where relevant to provide background to the amended plans, the evolution of the 
scheme and the consultee’s assessment of the current proposal for 9 dwellings, 

Page 16



reference is made to points raised in the original consultation responses provided in 
relation to the 24-unit scheme.  Where consultation responses have been summarised, it 
should be noted that Officers have had consideration of the full comments received, which 
are available to view on the public file at www.horsham.gov.uk.    

INTERNAL CONSULTATIONS

3.2 HDC Conservation Officer: Objection.  
The Conservation Officer objected to the original proposal including 24 dwellings.  The 
comments in relation to the amended scheme for 9 dwellings repeat much of the original 
consultation response, which remains relevant to the amended scheme.  The latest 
consultation response includes the following points:

• The amended plans create a larger area of public open space and involves the 
development of a reduced area of Glebe land, however the principle of the development of 
the Glebe is still considered harmful to the setting of heritage assets, including the grade II* 
listed Parish Church of St Mary, grade II listed dwelling Lady Place and the Storrington 
Conservation Area. 

• The development of the Glebe is strongly resisted.
• The open, green land is considered to preserve the positive characteristics of the 

immediate locality, allowing the interpretation and understanding of sense of place and of 
the evolution of the historic context. 

• The Glebe and its close association with St Mary’s can be easily appreciated with good 
intervisibility between the application site and the Church, which is on raised ground. 

• The loose grain of surrounding plots and buildings and the undeveloped field provides a 
rural backdrop, giving a pleasant landscape relief and softening the built form.  

• The setting of Lady Place is significant in providing the character and context in which the 
heritage asset is experienced. 

• Lady Place, a former farmhouse with associated outbuildings, was originally set in rural 
isolation and the Glebe land maintains the sense of its historic open and landscaped 
setting.

• While the vernacular architecture of Lady Place is its main significance, the setting and 
one’s experience of the open, landscape setting beyond contributes greatly to the 
character and historic interest of the listed building. 

• The introduction of built form on the field would urbanise the rural environment and the 
proposed development would be too intensive with the quantum of development and the 
proposed site layout conflicting with the character and appearance of the immediate 
context.

• The proposed housing development would adversely change the character of the site and 
its immediate setting, eroding the significant open field and its relationship with surrounding 
historic buildings. 

• The Heritage Statement under-emphasises the significance of the Glebe land and the 
positive contribution it makes to the setting of the listed buildings and the Conservation 
Area. 

• The undulating landform and rolling landscape is a key characteristic of the locality and the 
development would likely cut into this landscape, having an adverse effect on this positive 
characteristic. 

• The latest housing development to the south of Lady Place is regrettable and does not set 
a desirable precedent for further incremental erosion of the historic Glebe land, which 
would subsume the once isolated setting of Lady Place. 

• The Heritage Statement also underplays the relationship between Lady Place and the 
Glebe Land.  

• There are trees, hedging and historic walling defining the boundaries of Lady Place.  
However, the dwelling and application site can be easily read together in short and wider 
views and there is good intervisibility between the two.  

Page 17

http://www.horsham.gov.uk/


• When walking along Monastery Lane there are clear views and glimpses looking across the 
curtilage of Lady Place through to the open green field of the application site, and one can 
appreciate the relationship of the listed building and historic fieldscape. 

• The Heritage Statement states that there would have been “a distinct historic dissociation” 
between the Glebe and Lady Place.  However, it is considered highly likely that there was a 
reasonably strong visual link between the listed building and the open Glebe field. 

• Views looking across the Glebe from the Conservation Area are considered to positively 
contribute to one’s understanding and appreciation of the historic significance of the 
immediate context. 

• The views north-west from the church and looking south-east towards the church provide 
the attractive green and open setting.

• These views which take in the open fieldscape of the Glebe provide a sense of the historic 
relationship of the land with the Church and the rural character of the settlement. 

• The Heritage Statement does not assess the grade II* church in sufficient detail, and does 
not identify the impact of the proposed development on the setting of the heritage asset 
which is a landmark building. 

• The revised proposal does include a looser grain to the proposed layout, reducing the 
intensive introduction of built form, but it is still considered that the existing views across 
the Glebe would be lost due to the presence of the housing development. 

• The scheme would heavily rely on landscape buffer planting in an attempt to screen the 
proposed development.  Due to the impermanent nature of planting, there is too much 
reliance on planting to try and reduce the presence of the development when viewing Lady 
Place. 

• The residential development would adversely impact the setting of the listed buildings and 
the character and appearance of the Conservation Area.  Ones’ interpretation of the 
historic context would be obscured and the introduction of a rather intense quantum of 
development would appear as an incongruous and visually discordant addition which would 
detract from the locality. 

• In terms of the erection of a surgery, by virtue of the large scale and positioning, this 
element would also harm the setting of the surrounding heritage assets.

• The development would therefore harm the setting of listed buildings and the Conservation 
Area.

• That harm would be less than substantial.  
• However, any potential harm should be given considerable weight in the planning balance 

and whilst considered to be less than substantial, the harm to the setting of the listed 
buildings and conservation area would be permanent and irreversible.

The Applicant provided a rebuttal to the Conservation Officer’s original response to the 24-
unit scheme.  In the Conservation Officer’s response to that rebuttal, the heritage value of 
the Glebe land itself is further assessed.  The relevant points from that correspondence, 
which are not referred to above, include:

• The Glebe land is a non-designated heritage asset.  It maintains a strong connection with 
the Church and positively contributes to one’s understanding of the historic development of 
the area. 

• The Glebe land is significant in promoting the scale and presence of the Church, which was 
originally designed to be a focal point and landmark building, enhancing and better 
revealing its immediate setting. 

• The site is not defined as ‘countryside’, but Storrington is a rural settlement and the Glebe 
land positively contributes to the rural sense of place and provides an important visual 
transition between the built-up form within the settlement core to the looser grain 
development and countryside beyond.

• While settlements and developments evolve, the proposal would read as a negative phase 
of the settlement’s evolution which would be to the detriment of the sense of place. 

• The planting within the buffer area proposed to provide screening between Lady Place and 
the development would in its own right adversely alter the character of the Glebe land, 

Page 18



which is an undeveloped and open piece of land.  The proposed planting would appear at 
odds with the character and appearance of the historic Glebe.  

3.3 HDC Landscape Architect: Objection
The consultation response to the original scheme for 24-units included the following points:

• The development would have an adverse effect on landscape character, particularly when 
appreciated from public footpaths 2656 running east-west along the southern boundary 
and 2657 running north-south across the site. 

• Development would have an adverse effect on the appreciation and views towards the 
South Downs escarpment and in some locations, complete loss of views.

• The existing views contribute to the sense of place and the escarpment is considered a 
backdrop of value.

• The site retains a very rural character and sense of tranquillity. 
• The site is of overall moderate landscape sensitivity due to its elevated position and its 

attractive middle-long distance views to the South Downs and the ridgeline to the south.
• The Horsham District Landscape Character Assessment, evaluates Storrington under the 

Settlement Character section at 5.8 and identifies key characteristics including a heavily 
indented settlement edge with woodlands, heathland and small hedgerowed fields making 
a distinctive contribution to setting, the small historic core of Storrington, built development 
widely visible from the South Downs, but considerably softened by woodland and mature 
trees, extensive low density residential areas with informal layouts, large plot sizes and a 
random pattern of dwelling sizes. 

• The proposed doctor’s surgery and car park should be positioned closer to the Monastery 
Lane boundary, as the proposed location sits within elevated ground and would lead to 
separation of the field into an isolated area.  

• The doctors surgery car park should accommodate more trees to soften this area. 
• Although buffer zones to St Marys Church and Lady Place are proposed, the change in the 

character of the site, the loss of openness and loss of sense of place would fundamentally 
change the context in which these heritage assets are appreciated and negatively impact 
upon their setting. 

• The proposed development will exacerbate the urbanising form, damaging further the rural 
character of Monastery Lane.

• Views of the South Downs obtainable at the entrance to Monastery Lane will be lost or 
significantly reduced.

• The proposed development will increase noise and reduce the overall tranquillity of the 
area as experienced from the public footpaths within the site.

• The impact upon the visual amenity of the majority of representative views within the study 
area of the submitted Landscape Visual Impact Assessment, as a result of the proposed 
development would be Direct, Long Term, Permanent and Adverse as experienced by the 
public. These are mostly limited to close distance views from PRoW’s within the site and 
immediate surroundings although the proposed development will also result in adverse 
effects when the site is appreciated from the elevated PRoW 2251 within the South Downs.

• The scheme fails to comply with Policies 25 (to protect and conserve landscape and 
townscape character), Policy 31 (Green Infrastructure) and Policy 33 (development 
principles) of the HDPF.

The Applicant submitted a rebuttal to the Landscape Architect’s initial consultation 
response.  The additional information did not address all of the Landscape Architect’s 
concerns.  The Landscape Architect’s further consultation response included the following 
points:

• Notwithstanding the influence of surrounding built form and location within a built-up area 
boundary, the site retains a rural character and tranquillity.

• The built-up area boundary is a planning policy tool and does not preclude a site from 
being described of rural character. 

Page 19



• Although there are no policy designations on the site, an assessment still needs to be 
made of the character/appearance of the site and its contribution to landscape and 
townscape setting. 

• Although the draft SSWNP lacked an evidence base supporting the designation of ‘local 
green spaces’, this site would appear to meet the criteria at paragraph 77 of the NPPF for 
designation of a local green space. 

• Criteria for making a Tree Preservation Order is not likely to be met by a newly planted 
evergreen hedge. 

• Accept that the proposals could comply with Policy 31 with regard to 
mitigation/compensation for the loss of green infrastructure. 

• The site and its character can be enjoyed from existing public footpaths crossing the site, 
and these are considered to be of high amenity value. 

The Applicant then submitted the amended scheme for 9-units.  The Landscape Architect 
has considered the plans, and the revised supporting information, including the Landscape 
and Visual Appraisal, and maintains an objection to the proposal.  The Landscape 
Architect’s further comments on the 9-unit scheme include the following points:

• The reduction in number of dwellings and reduction in the amount of green space lost is 
positive. 

• The organic arrangement of the dwellings is also a positive change. 
• However, the development still fails to protect, enhance and conserve landscape and 

townscape character.
• Partial loss of open space still represents the partial erosion of the open attributes of the 

site, the loss of tranquillity, loss of rural character and the relationship of this piece of land 
with the historic core and rural surroundings.  

• While views towards the countryside and the escarpment will be maintained within the 
eastern side of the site, the context in which these are appreciated will be considerably 
different.  

• Previous comments regarding the location and positioning of the surgery building have not 
been addressed.  The location of the surgery will affect one of the site’s key landscape 
characteristics, the undulating landform and rolling landscape, and appreciation of the 
setting of Storrington and its conservation area from the South Downs. 

• The surgery would interrupt the open link between rural countryside and the settlement 
when seen from the South Downs, and from West Street, and public footpaths within the 
site. 

• The perception of a ‘green finger’ entering the settlement area would be lost. 
• Footpath users can currently leave the urban environment of West Street, step into the 

Glebe and immediately feel a change in character and tranquillity, and connection with the 
countryside.

3.4 HDC Drainage Engineer: No objection, subject to conditions
The comments provided in respect of the 9-unit proposal advised that there were no further 
comments in addition to those raised in the original consultation.  The original response 
included the following points:

• No overall objection to the proposed drainage strategy.
• Detailed drainage design information should be provided pursuant to conditions.
• Conditions should also secure the long term maintenance of any Sustainable Drainage 

Systems.

3.5 HDC Environmental Protection Officer (Air Quality): No objection, subject to 
conditions  
The comments provided in respect of the 9-unit proposal advised that the comments 
provided in the original consultation response remained relevant, but also provided 
additional comments.  The overall points from both responses therefore include:

Page 20



• The applicant is referred to HDC guidance- Planning Advice Document: Air Quality and 
Emissions Reduction Guidance (2014), which is not referred to in the applicant’s Air Quality 
Appraisal and an amended version should be provided. 

• Therefore, appropriate mitigation measures should be proposed to mitigate/offset its 
contribution to the cumulative increase in emissions in the local area.

• The applicant should submit an Air Quality Mitigation Plan containing measures of Type 1 
and Type 2 mitigation categories, as detailed in the HDC guidance.  This can be required 
by condition. 

• A construction mitigation plan should also be secured by conditions, and based on the 
IAQM Guidance on the Assessment of Dust from Demolition and Construction (February 
2014)

3.6 HDC Environmental Health Officer: No objection, subject to conditions
This consultee has provided comments on the 24-unit scheme only, but has verbally 
advised that these remain applicable to the 9-unit scheme.  The main points include: 

• Conditions are necessary to ensure that any adverse noise impacts are suitably mitigated 
and any land contamination remediated.  

• Facilities for charging low emissions vehicles (one charging point per unit) should be 
provided due to the proximity to the AQMA. 

3.7 HDC Housing Services Manager: Objection
• Although affordable housing was provided in the earlier scheme for 24 dwellings, no 

affordable housing is now proposed for the 9 unit scheme.  
• The scheme should deliver 20% affordable housing in accordance with Policy 16. 

3.8 HDC Ecology Consultant: No objection, subject to conditions
This consultee has advised that the original comments in relation to the 24-unit scheme 
remain applicable to the 9-unit scheme.  The main points include: 

• Based on the submitted Preliminary Ecology Appraisal and Reptile Report, no objection is 
raised. 

• Conditions are necessary to ensure that a reptile mitigation strategy and an ecological 
mitigation and enhancement plan are approved and implemented.  

3.9 HDC Archaeology Consultant: Comments awaited, and will be reported verbally at the 
Committee meeting.  

3.10 HDC Strategic Planning:  
This consultee raised objection to the original scheme proposing 24-units, due to conflict 
with Policies 25 and 34 of the HDPF.  The further comments in respect of the 9-unit 
scheme highlight that the site lies within the built-up area boundary, wherein development 
is acceptable, and includes the following points: 

• Development is in accordance with Policy 3. 
• Sensitive landscape and heritage issues should be assessed with regard to the specialist 

officer comments.
• The development does not provide affordable housing and is therefore contrary to Policy 

16. 
• The proposal accords with Policy 42 and 43 through the provision of community facilities. 

OUTSIDE AGENCIES

3.11 West Sussex County Highway Authority: No objection, subject to conditions
This consultee raised no objection to the original submission for 24 units.  The consultation 
response in respect of the amended proposal for 9-units includes the following points:

• Advice in respect of access for the 24-unit scheme remains acceptable to the 9-unit 
scheme.

Page 21



• With a decrease in units, there would be a decrease in the impact on the local highway 
network in comparison to the 24-unit scheme, to which the Highway Authority raised no 
objection.

• Conditions recommended for the 24-unit scheme remain applicable to the 9-unit scheme. 

The original Highways consultation response included the following points:
• Initial consultation response raised a number of concerns.  Additional information has been 

submitted to address these. 
• Increased on-site parking would assist in addressing on-street parking on Monastery Lane.  

A contribution should be secured through s106 towards implementation of waiting 
restrictions within the site and on Monastery Lane. 

• Access road and footway are likely to remain private, to deter parking on the private section 
of the road. 

• Tracking drawings show that larger and medium sized refuse vehicles can turn and 
manoeuvre on-site, although there is some over-running of the garden of plot 24. 

• The highway authority are satisfied that a severe impact would not result from this 
development. 

3.12 West Sussex County Rights of Way Access Ranger: Comment and recommended 
conditions in respect of the 9-unit scheme:

• Two footpaths are affected: FP2657 that runs north to south through the site and FP2656 
that runs west to east on the southern border of the site.

• The proposed development would encroach over the definitive line of FP2657.
• Before this development can take place, an application to divert FP2657 will need to be 

made.
• This should be done at an early stage, as the diversion should be finalised before work 

commences. 
• These paths are likely to have greater levels of use with additional residents adjacent.  

Improvements to the paths are therefore encouraged, as they would bring benefits from a 
sustainable transport point of view, and healthier living for residents.

• Construction of a stone surface to Public Rights of Way specifications is recommended. 
• Routes should not be obstructed at any stage during development.
• Any damage to the rights of way as a result of construction processes should be made 

good by the developer. 

3.13 Southern Water: No objection, subject to conditions
• There are no public surface water sewers in the area to serve the development. 
• Alternative means of draining surface water are therefore required, which does not involve 

connection to a public foul sewer. 
• Any sustainable drainage systems approved should include provision for long term 

management and maintenance, as these are not currently adoptable by sewerage 
undertakers

• A water supply to the site can be provided. 
• Any public sewers crossing the site should be protected during construction. 

3.14 West Sussex County Flood Risk Management: No objection, subject to conditions.  
The following points were included in the original consultation response.  The consultee 
has advised verbally that the original comments on the 24-unit scheme remain applicable 
to the 9-unit scheme.  

• The majority of the site is at low risk from surface water flooding.
• The north-western boundary with Monastery Lane is at higher risk. 
• Any existing surface water flow paths across the site should be maintained or appropriate 

mitigation strategies proposed. 
• The site is at low risk from ground water flooding. 
• No records of historic surface water flooding within the site, but there is a record from the 

early 1980s of properties at the northern end of Monastery Lane flooding.  

Page 22



• Conditions should prevent commencement of development prior to approval of detailed 
surface water drainage design, based on sustainable drainage principles. 

• The drainage designs should clearly demonstrate that the surface water runoff generated 
up to and including the 100 year, plus climate change, critical storm will not exceed the run-
off from the current site following the corresponding rainfall event.

3.15 West Sussex County Strategic Planning: A legal agreement to secure financial 
contributions to education (primary, secondary and sixth form) is necessary to mitigate the 
impacts of the increased population on these services. 

3.16 Coastal West Sussex Clinical Commissioning Group: Support
This consultee wrote in support of the original scheme for 24 units.  That consultation 
response includes the following points:

• Following closure of the Mill Stream surgery in 2014, the Glebe has been providing 
services from a considerably undersized practice supplemented by temporary portacabins. 

• We are keen to see an urgent upgrade to the surgery premises in Storrington to enable the 
practice to continue to provide high quality care and to develop and expand the range of 
services provided to the community. 

• The Glebe surgery proposals are one of the CCG’s top three priorities.
• The size and scope of the new surgery will support the future development of healthcare in 

the local area, enable services to be provided in a more co-ordinated way across agencies 
and improve patient access to care. 

• Without adequate accommodation and the additional capacity and flexibility provided by 
the new surgery premises, it will be difficult to develop primary care services in Storrington 
and the local area. 

• Estates funding decisions are not made by the CCG, but by NHS England and we are still 
awaiting confirmation of investment proposals, but would wish to give full support to the 
current planning application.

Officers subsequently contacted the CCG seeking further detail of funding arrangements 
for the new surgery and reasons for not proceeding with the Mill Stream site, in light of a 
number of representations received on these matters.  The response includes the following 
points:

 A GP has the remit of having to provide Primary Care from suitable premises.  
 The Glebe is a rented premises.  The NHS can reimburse rental costs where assessed as 

value for money.
 The majority of new premises will be as a result of Practices working with third party 

developers/landlords to provide accommodation under a lease held by the practice. 
 GP practices are independent contractors, so arrangements around the ownership or rental 

of premises sits with them as an independent business.
 Patient list growth has led to the current premises being far too stretched. 
 The Glebe application for central NHS funding from the Estate and Technology 

Transformation Fund (ETTF) was accepted, after meeting national standard requirements. 
 The ETTF is there to part fund new builds.  It cannot fully fund new builds. 
 The funding awarded is a grant to be used to off-set build costs, and in this case the 

funding will reduce the rental charges for the duration of the lease, providing a lower 
revenue cost to the NHS for the medium term future.  

 GPs can be deterred from coming into a region by having to buy a property.  GPs can 
utilise affordable rented property to deliver their services. 

 The CCG assess new plans and obtain valuations to determine if a site would constitute 
value for money to the NHS.  This is being undertaken. 

 The CCG supported the Glebe’s proposal, subject to Due Diligence. 
 The CCG also reviewed some options.  Mill Stream was considered, but there were many 

factors that meant the site was not suitable for the total rural services to be delivered. 

Page 23



 The Mill Stream site is only 1/3 the size of the proposed new surgery and involved 
additional cost factors including sewerage, river bank enhancements, and additional land 
costs from multiple owners to expand the site. 

 The current surgery site at the Glebe has a restrictive covenant. 
 The Glebe surgery had done pragmatic site appraisals for their submission to NHS 

England for the grant award. 
 At this stage, there could not be a re-working of the national funding request, as this has 

been approved in principle and is at the end of the Due Diligence phase. 
 There is also a restrictive time for the NHS Grant.

PUBLIC CONSULTATIONS

3.17 Storrington and Sullington Parish Council: Object to both the 24-unit scheme and the 
9-unit scheme. 
The consultation response to the 9-unit scheme advises that the amended proposals do 
not address any of the objections raised to the 24-unit scheme.  The original response in 
respect of the 24-unit scheme included the following points:

• The proposed new housing is neither needed, nor of the size required as indicated in the 
Parish’s Housing Needs Survey.

• Sufficient housing is coming forward through Neighbourhood Plans. 
• The proposed housing development is not ‘enabling development’ in planning terms, i.e. it 

would not secure a proposal for the long-term future of part of the historic environment that 
has heritage value.  

• The site is a greenfield site, which is allocated as a Local Green Space in the emerging 
Neighbourhood Plan.  

• The site was submitted for consideration under the NP call for sites process, but was 
excluded due to unsuitability.

• The site is considered undevelopable in the recent SHELAA.  
• The density of development is out of keeping with surroundings.
• Loss of amenity for neighbouring houses and the wider village would be considerable. 
• Access is via a single track lane, leading to a mini-roundabout with limited sightlines and 

where the exit cannot be seen by traffic coming from the right.  
• This mini-roundabout is located in one of the most polluted parts of the AQMA. 
• The proposal conflicts with the implementation of the Air Quality Action Plan and would 

increase the number of people exposed to poor air quality. 
• The submitted traffic study is inadequate.
• The Glebe field is one of only 2 green spaces left within Storrington.
• The development would destroy the setting of and views to and from Lady Place. 
• Planting cannot be relied upon as a means of permanent mitigation of harm to the setting 

of heritage assets. 
• The new pharmacy would be in direct competition with two existing in the High Street.
• The proposal would encourage further traffic along the High Street, through the AQMA. 
• The proposed surgery building is not future-proofed, providing only for expansion to 2020.  
• While the need for a larger surgery is acknowledged, it cannot be guaranteed through 

enabling development and this is not in the correct location.  

The Parish Council consultation response in respect of the amended schemed for 9-units 
included the following additional points:

• The emerging Neighbourhood Plan requires a predominance of smaller houses, not larger 
‘executive’ type houses. 

• No affordable housing is not in accordance with local and national guidance. 
• The access road has been left as a hammerhead leaving access into the remainder of the 

open space, indicating an intention to further develop the land. 
• The field fulfils the criteria for classification as a Local Green Space. 
• Density of development is out of keeping with surroundings. 

Page 24



• The amended scheme does not address the comments of the Landscape Architect and the 
Conservation Officer in respect of the 24-unit scheme.

3.18 In respect of the original proposal including 24 dwellings, the Council received 207 letters 
of objection from 164 households (including two letters from a consultant on behalf of 13 
residents with unspecified addresses), 497 letters of support, from 389 households and 
3 letters of representation which neither supported nor objected to the proposal.  

3.19 Following the publicity of the amended proposal involving 9 dwellings, the Council received 
123 letters of objection from 104 households (including two letters from a consultant on 
behalf of 13 residents with unspecified addresses), 97 letters of support from 85 
households, and two letters of representation which neither supported not objected to the 
proposal.  An additional six letters of support from unspecified addresses have been 
forwarded to the Council by the Glebe Surgery.  

3.20 The letters of objection received in connection with the 9-unit scheme include the 
following points:

 The amended plans do not address previous objections, as the proposal has not been 
amended in a meaningful way.

 While more doctors’ facilities are needed, development of the Glebe Field is too high a 
price to pay.  

 The draft SSWNP seeks to designate the Glebe Field as a ‘Local Green Space’, and the 
space closely accords with the NPPF criteria for designation of Local Green Space. 

 The Glebe Field is an important green space, and one of the few green spaces left in 
Storrington. 

 The Glebe Field is popular with dog walkers and is also used as an alternative pedestrian 
route into town.  

 Although only part of the Glebe Field will be lost, this will totally change its character.
 While the village is in need of a new/expanded surgery, this is a separate matter to allowing 

housing development on the Glebe Field. 
 There are plenty of sites on the perimeter of the village for house building.  It would be a 

great shame to lose this well-used space in the centre. 
 The Glebe land should only be used for a surgery.  There are plenty of other sites for new 

homes already identified in the SSNP.
 The Mill Stream site should be used for a surgery.  This site is in a better, more central 

location.  
 Mill Stream has safer road access, existing parking and public transport links. 
 Mill Stream was purchased with public money and should be re-opened as a medical 

centre for the community.   
 If Mill Stream is not able to run as an independent surgery, it should be opened as a 

satellite surgery to the Glebe. 
 Mill Stream was only closed because of the practice manager, not the facilities or the 

building. 
 The Mill Stream site has space to expand in the future if necessary. 
 The surgery is being pushed into a small area.
 There has been no public scrutiny of the need for a surgery of this size.  It is not known 

whether this is based on sound demographic analysis. 
 The surgery is disproportionately large for the surrounding area and other buildings.  It will 

dominate the land and is out of keeping with other buildings in Storrington. 
 It should be demonstrated that other sites have been considered.  The development should 

only be considered when other sites have been discounted. 
 Now that plans for extending Waitrose are not going ahead, a new surgery could be 

accommodated at that site. 

Page 25



 Other sites suggested for a surgery include: field between north end of Water Lane and 
Downsview Avenue, Rydon College playing field, field to north of allotments off Ravenscroft 
and field to north of Catholic cemetery off Kithurst Lane

 The church is holding the village and the doctor’s surgery to ransom.
 The Diocese will only release the existing surgery land from a restrictive covenant if they 

are granted planning permission for housing on the Glebe.  
 If the church needs revenue, they could sell/develop the vicarage which is currently under-

occupied. 
 The Diocese plans to gift the land to the developer, Medical Centre Developments.  

However, there will be a considerable capital receipt from the housing development, should 
it be permitted. 

 It is not clear why the land for a surgery needs to be ‘gifted’ and who would be the 
beneficiary of this ‘gift’.  Should the land be gifted to Medical Centre Developments, there 
will be no public benefit, as this will accrue to MCD who will make additional profits. 

 A private company, Medical Centre Developments, will fund and construct the building and 
then lease it back to the practice, with the rent being paid by the NHS.

 The CCG are intending to make a contribution to construction costs in return for a lower 
rental payment.  There is no indication for the reason for making this payment and the 
amount.  

 There is no market evidence to suggest that such developments are not commercially 
viable and such developments are popular with investors due to security of rental income.

 The housing development is not ‘enabling development’, as it is not necessary to ensure 
continued protection of a place or heritage asset.  The Glebe Field itself is a local heritage 
asset and place. 

 Supporting information submitted with the application implies that the surgery development 
cannot proceed without the housing development being approved.  However, the new 
surgery is viable and deliverable in its own right and is not financially or physically 
dependent on the housing development.

 It is not clear what the precise nature of the legal agreements between key parties involved 
in this case is.  This is highly relevant and material to this application.  

 The scheme should remain viable while paying market rate for the land.  There are other 
examples in the District of this type of development and lease agreement.  

 The Applicant’s argument for non-provision of affordable housing is flawed.  Government 
guidance only exempts development from providing affordable housing where less than 10 
units of less than 1000sqm total are proposed.  This development is over 1000sqm.  2 
affordable units should therefore be provided. 

 An affordable housing contribution should be calculated in accordance with the 2007 
Planning Obligations SPD, and not the draft Planning Obligations and Affordable Housing 
SPD. 

 The Applicant’s case for non-provision of affordable housing relies on an alternative 
scheme for 6 houses on the surgery land.  This is a flawed argument, as such a proposal 
would be contrary to planning policies and unlikely to receive local support.  

 The Applicant provides a valuation for a potential residential development on the surgery 
land, but this does not meet the RICS valuation professional standards and no 
methodology is provided.  

 The valuation of paddock land is not evidenced and is not carried out by a qualified valuer. 
The land is open space and would have a nominal value.  

 There is no evidence submitted to support the assertion that the doctor’s surgery funding is 
dependent on the land being gifted to the owners. 

 There is no reason why affordable housing should not be provided on site. 
 The houses are aimed at the higher end of the market.
 The need in the village is for smaller, cheaper houses for younger people.

Page 26



 Consideration in the SHELAA does not mean that planning permission will be granted for 
development on a site, and the current SHELAA assesses this site as ‘not currently 
developable’.

 Not against a surgery, but Monastery Lane is not the right place.
 The building will contain more facilities than just a GP surgery, bringing extra traffic into the 

area. 
 The backways of Fern Road, Monastery Lane, School Lane and Church Street are used by 

drivers to avoid lengthy queues at the Tesco roundabout.  These roads have no pavements 
and pedestrian movement around the village will be challenging and unsafe. 

 The development will add to congestion around the Tesco roundabout, which is already 
over-busy and dangerous.

 It can take 15-20 minutes to get 1.5 miles through the village in rush hour.
 Monastery Lane is a quiet, narrow lane and visibility is poor at the junction with the Tesco 

roundabout. 
 The significant number of parking spaces will mean an unacceptable number of cars. 
 9 houses should not need 31 parking spaces. 
 The village is an Air Quality Management Area and the pollution problem recently made the 

news. 
 Additional traffic and pollution situation in Storrington will be made worse, with negative 

consequences for the environment and residents’ health.  
 The large dwellings would be out of context with the village. 
 Development would erode a green finger in the village. 
 Storrington is a countryside village, but there is very little countryside left. 
 Development of the Glebe will harm wildlife and habitats. 
 Proposal would cause light pollution. 
 Concern that the retained open space would still be under pressure for development. 
 Provision of a new pharmacy will have a detrimental impact on existing pharmacies in the 

village. 
 There are already two pharmacies in the village.  We do not need another. 
 Loss of privacy to nearby residents. 
 Development will impact the setting of the Conservation Area and listed building Lady 

Place.
 Lady Place was one of the first buildings to be listed in Storrington.  It is one of the most 

historically significant houses in the village. Its documented history dates back beyond 
1540.

 Historic connection between Lady Place and the Glebe Field will be lost. 
 Buffer proposed to Lady Place is not adequate.  Views of Lady Place must be preserved. 
 Insufficient school places and other services to provide for the new residents. 

3.21 The letters of support received in connection with the 9-unit scheme include the following 
points:

 The doctors are brilliant, but overworked and overstretched, with the current situation at 
breaking point. 

 The surgery will not be able to continue without expansion. 
 A new surgery is absolutely essential for the wellbeing of this community.  
 Primary care services need to improve in order to avoid unnecessary admissions to 

hospital and over-burdening of hospitals.  
 Patients find it extremely difficult to get a parking space at the Glebe, which is especially 

problematic for the elderly.  
 New houses are being built/have been built recently in Storrington and this will stretch local 

medical services further.
 Building on the Glebe Field is regrettable, but it is a means to an end, as healthcare 

provision is a priority.

Page 27



 The revised plans are an excellent compromise between the provision of a modern medical 
centre and the preservation of the Glebe. 

 The Glebe Field would not be completely lost. Inclusion of public open space should be 
applauded. 

 Loss of the Glebe has been over-exaggerated.  Rarely see more than one or two people 
walking through it.  Some local people do not even know it is there. 

 9 dwellings will not adversely affect the nature of the village, but not building a surgery will 
have huge implications for the area.  

 The original scheme for 24 units had a better mix of housing. 
 Support the application, in spite of the greed of the Glebe field owners, but the medical 

needs of a growing population trumps other considerations. 
 The plan is imperfect, but objection would add to the stress placed on the practice.  
 It makes sense to expand on the existing surgery, rather than start from scratch elsewhere.
 New medical facilities are desperately needed, particularly with an ageing population. 
 Do not understand why the Mill Stream practice stands empty. 
 There is not sufficient land at the Mill Stream site for this development. 
 The public car park at the Mill Stream site is already heavily used and could not be relied 

upon to provide parking for an expanded surgery. 
 Impact on Lady Place is minimal. 
 Houses on the west side of the village will have less impact on the AQMA. 

3.22 The letters of representation received in connection with the 9-unit scheme include the 
following points:

 No satisfactory answer has been given as to why the Mill Stream site cannot be used for a 
surgery. 

 The re-designed scheme is more in keeping with local developments. 
 The remaining fields should be protected for future generations and not developed at a 

later date. 
 Concern regarding vehicle access- the mini roundabout must be upgraded to improve 

visibility. 
 A 20mph speed limit should be enforced through the village. 
 A pedestrian crossing is necessary on Amberley Road. 
 Bus services in Storrington are appalling. 

4. HOW THE PROPOSED COURSE OF ACTION WILL PROMOTE HUMAN RIGHTS

4.1 Article 8 (Right to respect of a Private and Family Life) and Article 1 of the First Protocol 
(Protection of Property) of the Human Rights Act 1998 are relevant to this application, 
Consideration of Human rights forms part of the planning assessment below.

5. HOW THE PROPOSAL WILL HELP TO REDUCE CRIME AND DISORDER

5.1 It is not considered that the development would be likely to have any significant impact on 
crime and disorder.

6. PLANNING ASSESSMENTS

Introduction

6.1 The application site is located within the built-up area boundary of Storrington.  Within such 
an area, the principle of development is acceptable, subject to compliance with the relevant 
Policies of the Development Plan.  The provision of community facilities, such as a new 

Page 28



surgery, within the built-up areas is supported by Policies 43 and 42 of the Horsham District 
Planning Framework (HDPF), and the spatial strategy for the District seeks to focus new 
development within the built-up areas, including Storrington which is included in the ‘small 
towns and larger villages’ category of the settlement hierarchy at Policy 3.  However, 
development proposals also need to meet the requirements of other relevant planning 
policies in order to be acceptable in planning terms, even where the Policy designations do 
not preclude the principle of development.  In this case, the main considerations are the 
landscape and townscape impacts of the proposal, the effect on the setting of heritage 
assets (listed buildings and conservation area), highway safety and parking provision, 
ecology, flooding and drainage and any community benefits arising from the development.  

Landscape

6.2 The HDC Landscape Architect objects to the proposal, due to the extent of development 
resulting in an adverse effect on the landscape character and appearance of the area, as 
well as an adverse effect on the appreciation and views towards the South Downs.  

6.3 The Landscape Architect makes reference to the District Landscape Character 
Assessment (2003), which includes an assessment of the characteristics of settlements 
within the District.  Key characteristics of Storrington identified in the Landscape Character 
Assessment include:

• Heavily indented edges with woodlands, heathlands and small hedgerowed fields making a 
distinctive contribution to setting

• The small historic core of Storrington, centred around Church Street (to the west of the site, 
St Marys Church fronts this road) and High Street. 

• Built development widely visible from South Downs, but is considerably softened by 
woodland and mature trees.

• Extensive low density residential areas with informal layouts and large plot sizes and a 
random pattern of dwelling sizes

Figure 7.10 of the Landscape Character Assessment includes the southern and eastern 
parts of the Glebe Field as a ‘Key Open Space’.

6.4 The Glebe Field is one of the small fields that contribute to the ‘indented’ edge of the 
settlement, which is identified in the Landscape Character Assessment as making a 
distinctive contribution to the setting of Storrington.   The Landscape Architect concludes 
that the proposed development would result in the loss of the openness of the site, and 
with it part of one of the key characteristics (the heavily indented settlement edge), which 
makes a significant positive contribution to the setting of the settlement.  The Applicant 
disputes this assessment in their letter of 16th November 2016, suggesting that the 
characteristic indented edge of the settlement would be maintained as the development 
would be viewed entirely within the context of existing built form.  

6.5 The undeveloped Glebe Field is visible in distance views from the South Downs.  Although 
it only forms a minor part of such views, the Landscape Architect advises that its open 
qualities are still discernible and the development would result in the loss of this ‘green 
finger’ entering the settlement, and with it the indented settlement edge characteristic.  In 
addition, the open nature of the site and the fact that it is very close to the village centre 
and crossed by public footpaths allows the indented edge to be experienced by users of 
the public rights of way crossing the site, providing a tranquil space with a rural character in 
close proximity to the urban area.  

6.6 In addition to the impact on the ‘indented edge’, the proposal would result in adverse 
effects on landscape character when viewed from the existing footpaths crossing the site, 
as a result of the nature and magnitude of the change.  Harm would arise as a result of the 
loss of views of the backdrop of the South Downs from the site, as well as the impact on 

Page 29



views from elevated points from the South Downs.  As noted in the response from the 
WSCC Rights of Way Access Ranger, the proposed development encroaches onto the 
definitive line of the public right of way.  However, the definitive line does not follow the 
existing trodden path across the site, which is the route proposed to be retained, running 
along the edge of the developed area.  Therefore, the definitive route would be affected by 
the development, but the existing footpath access would be retained.  The Applicant’s 
Landscape and Visual Appraisal concludes that while the visual amenity of the majority of 
representative views would have a direct, long term and permanent, but neutral effect, it 
does acknowledge that the adverse impacts of the development in landscape terms would 
be limited to the public rights of way within the site, and from Rectory Road and Monastery 
Lane.  The Applicant’s assessment of the impact on views from the public rights of way 
concurs with the Council’s Landscape Architect’s assessment, i.e. that the development 
would result in an adverse impact on the existing high amenity value of the site as 
experienced from the existing footpaths, be those the existing trodden paths, or the 
definitive route of the public right of way. 

6.7 The site slopes up towards the north east, and the Landscape Architect raises concern 
regarding the impact of development on the existing topography of the site, with 
development in the northern part of the site cutting into the landform and changing one of 
the key characteristics of the landscape.  The design and layout of the development, 
including the proposed surgery building, does not appear to have had sufficient regard for 
the topography of the site, and this adds to the landscape harm identified above.  

6.8 Clearly, the development of a currently open field will have some landscape impact.  In 
considering the acceptability of a planning proposal, the extent of landscape harm needs to 
be weighed against the benefits arising from the proposal.  In this case, it is acknowledged 
that the site lies within the built-up area boundaries and currently has no restrictive 
landscape designations covering it, although open land such as this in close proximity to 
the settlement edge does make a contribution to the setting of the settlement.  The 
reduction in the scale of the proposal from 24 dwellings to 9 dwellings also significantly 
reduces the landscape impacts of the proposal.  While the Landscape Architect’s 
comments regarding the indented edge of the settlement are noted, this will still be 
experienced on the ground as a result of the retention of an area of public open space 
between the surgery and existing buildings to the east, and the larger area of public open 
space to the south of the site.   The area to be occupied by new dwellings is to the north of 
Lady Place and Priory Close, and therefore would not be as visible in wider views as the 
original 24-unit proposal would have been.  However, the surgery building has not been 
amended to address the Landscape Architect’s original comments.  The surgery building 
and its parking area is sited on a part of the site which slopes up from the lower, and flatter, 
area of ground immediately adjacent to Monastery Lane.  The Landscape Architect had 
sought the re-siting of the surgery building and its parking area to better respect the site 
topography, and therefore reduce its landscape impacts.  The surgery element however is 
unchanged in the amended scheme, and the Landscape Architect’s concerns in this 
respect therefore remain unaddressed.  The eastern side of the surgery building would 
dominate the western side of the public footpath emerging from West Street, with a length 
of around 39 metres, eaves at around 6.5m and ridge to 9.8m.  

6.9 Taking into account the various assessments of landscape impacts carried out by Officers, 
the Applicant, the Council’s Landscape Architect and in letters of representation, the 
Officer’s conclusion on the main landscape issues is as follows:

• Residential and surgery element result in permanent harm to the visual amenities of the 
site in near views including those from public rights of way, Monastery Lane, St Mary’s 
Church. 

• The residential element would result in very limited landscape harm in distance views from 
the SDNP.

• The surgery element would result in landscape harm in distance views from the SDNP.

Page 30



• The development would harm the characteristic ‘indented edge’ of the settlement in 
distance views, particularly as a result of the surgery building, but this characteristic would 
remain apparent on the ground, due to the proximity of retained open space to the urban 
core. 

6.10 The landscape impacts identified above are considered in the overall planning balance 
later in this report.   However, on the matter of landscape impacts there is harm arising, 
and this is contrary to Policies 1, 2, 25, 31 and 33 of the HDPF.

Heritage

6.11 The site is adjacent to listed buildings at Lady Place and St Marys Church, and to the 
Storrington Conservation Area.  As the Glebe Field itself is not covered by any policy 
designations, the appraisal of this planning proposal is assisted by an understanding of the 
historic context of the Glebe Field and its links with adjacent heritage assets.  The site is a 
‘glebe field’, which is commonly defined as land associated with the church and used by 
the clergyman to provide income, often for agricultural purposes.  ‘Glebe fields’ are 
therefore normally found close to churches or rectories and their presence and layout can 
often assist in the understanding of the historic development and evolution of settlements.  

6.12 St Marys Church is medieval in origin.  The WSCC Storrington Historic Character 
Assessment Report (2005) examined the character of the urban area.  Although this Report 
looked only at the urban area (the Report forms part of the Sussex Extensive Urban 
Survey), and therefore excluded the Glebe Field from detailed assessment, it provides a 
comprehensive description of the appearance and historical evolution of the Glebe’s 
surroundings, identifying character areas to the west and south of the site as Historic Urban 
Character Area (HUCA) 1 (Church) and the area to the north and east of the site as HUCA 
3 (West Street).  These character areas are recognised as being part of the medieval town.  
Although many of the medieval plot boundaries in the ‘West Street’ character area have 
been lost through redevelopment, it is suggested that the existing irregular historic 
boundaries in the ‘Church’ character area may be of medieval origin.  

6.13 HUCA 1 (Church) is described as encompassing the southern half of the likely extent of the 
medieval settlement of Storrington, and includes St Marys Church and Lady Place.  The 
area is identified as having moderate to high archaeological potential due to lack of 
intensive 19th and 20th Century development.  To address this potential for undisturbed 
archaeological remains at the site, if development were to be permitted, conditions would 
require the site to be subject to pre-commencement archaeological investigation.  

6.14 The Historic Character Assessment Report assesses the vulnerability of each HUCA.  The 
intention of such assessment is to focus conservation guidance.  HUCA 1 (Church) is 
assessed as having a high vulnerability to change.  The conversion, subdivision and infill of 
formerly extensive grounds are highlighted as the main threats to historic character. The 
report states that “Nowhere is this more apparent than in the case of the 
Premonstratensian monastery and (outside the EUS study area itself) the fields between 
this and the church”.  This is a reference to the Glebe Field, and highlights its importance 
as a historic feature of the townscape.   In concluding that the area has a high Historic 
Environment Value, the Report makes reference to “the visibility of the historic fabric” and 
“the partly preserved historic interface of the settlement and the countryside”.  This reflects 
the characteristic indented settlement edge referred to by the Landscape Architect and the 
value that the Glebe Field has in terms of contributing to the setting of the settlement, and 
in particular its historic core.  

6.15 The listed building St Mary’s Church lies within the Storrington Conservation Area, adjacent 
to the site.  The Conservation Area encompasses much of the medieval core of the village, 
and parts of the later expansion on the fringes of the core.  In light of the historic links 

Page 31



between the church, the pattern of development of the early settlement and the Glebe 
Field, the site provides an important contribution to the setting of the Conservation Area.  
The boundary of the Conservation Area does not include the full extent of the churchyard, 
and therefore does not directly abut the Glebe Field.  However, the Conservation Area was 
designated in 1974 with the boundary drawn tightly around the churchyard at that time.  
The Conservation Area boundaries do not appear to have been reviewed since designation 
in 1974, but in 1996 a planning application permitted the change of use of part of the Glebe 
Field to burial ground (SR/43/96), thereby extending the churchyard.  

6.16 Although there are strong connections between the Glebe Field and St Mary’s Church (a 
listed building), the Applicant’s Heritage Statement does not consider the impact of the 
proposal on this heritage asset, concluding that “It is not considered that the development 
proposed at Storrington Glebe could materially affect the heritage significance of [the 
church]”.  The Applicant’s Heritage Statement concludes that the effect on the 
Conservation Area would be “peripheral and so marginal as to border on the 
inconsequential”, informed by their assessment of the visibility of the Glebe from the 
Conservation Area, views of the Conservation Area from the Glebe and the absence of 
heritage designations on the land.  The Conservation Officer’s comments recognise the 
historic link between the Church and the Glebe Field and therefore the contribution that it 
makes to the setting of St Mary’s and the Conservation Area, including the former Rectory.  
The Conservation Officer advises that the open, green land is considered to preserve the 
positive characteristics of the immediate locality, allowing the interpretation and 
understanding of sense of place and of the evolution of the historic context, and that the 
glebe land and its close association with the grade II* listed Parish Church of Saint Mary 
can easily be appreciated with good intervisibility between the application site and the 
Church which is situated on raised ground to the south-east.  As a result, the Conservation 
Officer advises that the views looking across the glebe land are considered to positively 
contribute to one’s understanding and appreciation of the historic significance of the 
immediate context, and that this interpretation of the historic context would be obscured as 
a result of the introduction of an intense quantum of built form.  

6.17 In addition to the heritage assets to the east of the site, the site is also adjacent to the listed 
building Lady Place, a former farmhouse with associated historic outbuildings.  The 
Applicant’s Heritage Statement focusses on the impact of development on this heritage 
asset.  The Applicant concludes that Lady Place stands in a very different context to that of 
the 17th century and that there has been considerable change to the once rural 
surrounding landscape, which has been supplanted by residential development.  The 
Applicant’s view is that Lady Place is now best appreciated from its garden and close 
surroundings, given surrounding development and intervening structures and vegetation.  
The Applicant’s Heritage Statement acknowledges that open views of Lady Place from the 
footpath and higher ground of the northern end of the Glebe would be obscured as a result 
of the proposal, but that the effect on the significance of the listed building would be very 
limited, as these views are mainly of the roofscape and the special interest of the building is 
not obvious in these views.  While the Applicant notes that it is likely that the Glebe would 
always have been separate from the Glebe in ownership and association, and that there is 
no associative interest or historic functional relationships or connection between the two, 
the Conservation Officer advises that the Glebe field retains a sense of the historic open, 
rural and landscaped setting of Lady Place, and therefore is important in providing the 
character and context in which the heritage asset is experienced.   

6.18 The Conservation Officer considers that the Applicant’s Heritage Statement underplays the 
relationship between the site and Lady Place, and that the listed building and application 
site can easily be read together in short and wider views and there is good intervisibility 
between the two, including views from Monastery Lane across the curtilage of Lady Place 
to the open green field beyond.  It is therefore considered that the application site does 
form part of the setting of Lady Place, allowing an appreciation of the relationship of the 

Page 32



listed building and the historic fieldscape of the Glebe, depicting the rural isolation that the 
listed building was originally set within.  The two sites are read together in short and wider 
views and there is good intervisibility between the two.  The proposal would result in the 
loss of this relationship and harm to the setting of Lady Place.  

6.19 The Conservation Officer notes that the proposal relies heavily on landscape buffer 
planting in an attempt to screen the development from the listed building.  In their additional 
information, the Applicant suggests that the additional planting could comprise evergreens 
and be protected by a Tree Preservation Order.  However, it is unlikely that such planting 
would meet the requirements necessary to make a TPO.  The PPG advises that in order to 
make a TPO the relevant tree(s) must be visible from a public place as well as being  
important by reference to characteristics including size, form, future amenity potential, rarity 
or historic value and contribution to the character of a conservation area.  It is unlikely that 
newly planted trees forming part of a development proposal would meet these criteria.  In 
addition, a TPO cannot be made on a hedge, and the planting of evergreens along the 
boundary with Lady Place is likely to result in the appearance of a dense hedge.  Even if it 
were possible to place a TPO on the proposed new planting, landscaping should be used 
to enhance development which is not harmful, and cannot be relied upon to screen that 
which is harmful.  Historic England’s Good Practice Advice in Planning 3: The Setting of 
Heritage Assets does not rule out the use of screening landscaping to reduce the harm 
arising to a listed setting, but states that “As screening can only mitigate negative impacts, 
rather than removing impacts or providing enhancement, it ought never to be regarded as a 
substitute for well-designed developments within the setting of heritage assets. Screening 
may have as intrusive an effect on the setting as the development it seeks to mitigate, so 
where it is necessary, it too merits careful design”.  

6.20 In addition, the Conservation Officer has advised that the proposed planting itself would 
result in an adverse impact on the character of the Glebe land, which is historically an open 
piece of land not heavily treed.  The area of buffer planting is shown as an isolated parcel 
of land directly abutting the residential curtilages of proposed dwellings and Lady Place.  It 
is not clear how this land would be accessed for management and maintenance of the 
planting, and who would undertake such tasks in the long term.  Given the level of harm 
arising due to the scale and amount of development, it is considered that the proposed 
landscaping does not negate the harm arising to the setting of Lady Place.  

6.21 The Applicant’s supporting documents refer to the change in character of the area already 
implemented as a result of the Priory Close development, to the south of Lady Place.  
Although the development of Priory Close has introduced a higher density, more suburban 
element to the locality, it would appear from historic maps that this land was detached from 
the main Glebe land, with a field boundary shown on maps from 1788, and it was a more 
discreet component of the landscape. The majority of the Glebe Field remains intact.  
Furthermore, the presence of a development which encroaches on the setting of Lady 
Place and the setting of the Glebe land does not set a precedent for the further 
encroachment of development on the historic setting, which results in further harm to that 
setting and significance to the extent that the relationship of the Glebe and Lady Place 
would be entirely lost.  The presence of the Priory Close development therefore adds 
weight to the concern raised regarding the loss of the majority of the remaining open land 
in this location.  

6.22 The Conservation Officer’s assessment is that the proposed housing development would 
adversely change the character of the site and the setting of adjacent heritage assets, 
including listed buildings and a Conservation Area, eroding the significant open field and its 
relationship with its surroundings.  The Conservation Officer concludes that the proposal 
would result in less than substantial harm to the setting of the listed buildings and 
Conservation Area, but advises that any harm should be given considerable weight in the 
planning balance as such harm is permanent and irreversible.  

Page 33



6.23 In light of the strong association with the listed church and the Conservation Area, the HDC 
Conservation Officer advises that the Glebe Field has a degree of significance meriting 
consideration in planning decisions because of its heritage interest and should therefore be 
considered a non-designated heritage asset.  The Conservation Officer’s view is that the 
Glebe Field, of historically open form, preserves the positive characteristics of the 
immediate locality, allowing the interpretation and understanding of sense of place and of 
the evolution of the historic context, as set out above. The Glebe land and its close 
association with the grade II* listed Parish Church of Saint Mary can easily be appreciated 
with good inter-visibility between the application site and the church.  The Conservation 
Officer advises that the proposed development would therefore result in the loss of a 
substantial part of the Glebe Field and therefore, the loss of this relationship causing harm 
to the setting of the listed church.

6.24 In respect of non-designated heritage assets, the NPPF (para 135) advises Local Planning 
Authorities that “The effect of an application on a non-designated heritage asset should be 
taken into account in determining the application.  In weighing applications that affect 
directly or indirectly non designated heritage assets, a balanced judgement will be required 
having regard to the scale of any harm or loss and the significance of the heritage asset”.   
The proposal will result in the partial loss of the Glebe Field and therefore the partial loss of 
a non-designated heritage asset.  However, a significant area of land will remain and the 
retained part will be that closest to the church, thereby retaining a connection between St 
Mary’s and the Glebe.  Whilst it would be ideal to preserve all that remains of the Glebe 
Field (the existing surgery has already encroached upon it), it is considered that, on 
balance, loss of part of the Glebe field could be acceptable, provided the benefits coming 
forward outweigh the harm arising from the partial loss.  

6.25 Taking into account the various assessments of heritage impacts carried out by Officers, 
the Applicant, the Council’s Conservation Officer and in letters of representation, the 
Officer’s conclusion on the main heritage issues is as follows:

• The Glebe Field is a non-designated heritage asset, but an element of loss could be 
acceptable subject to sufficient benefits coming forward to outweigh that harm (reference to 
NPPF para 135). 

• The Glebe Field has value and importance in understanding the historic development of the 
village, including strong links to the Church and Rectory which result in it forming part of the 
setting of these heritage assets.  Its partial loss therefore dilutes and obscures this 
understanding, but an area of the Glebe Field is retained between the Conservation Area 
and proposed development, providing an area of open land to act as a buffer between the 
development and the Conservation Area.  

• The development would harm the setting of Lady Place due to the introduction of 
development on an area of currently open land which reflects its original rural context and 
contributes positively to its setting.  

• The proposed area of buffer planting to the north of Lady Place would harm its setting due 
to the loss of open, rural character. 

• The heritage harm is less than substantial.

6.26 The heritage impacts identified above are considered in the overall planning balance later 
in this report.   The NPPF advises that any harm to a heritage asset or its setting should 
require clear and convincing justification.  Paragraph 134 states that “where a development 
would lead to less than substantial harm to the significance of a designated heritage asset, 
this harm should be weighed against the public benefits of the proposal, including securing 
its optimum viable use”.  The benefits of the scheme, and whether these outweigh the harm 
arising, are considered in the ‘Planning Balance’ section of this report.  However, on the 
matter of heritage impacts, it is considered that proposal does not protect, conserve or 
enhance townscape and has a harmful impact on the significance of this non-designated 

Page 34



heritage asset and the setting of designated heritage assets, contrary to Policies 1, 2, 3, 
25, 32, 33 and 34 of the HDPF.

Townscape

6.27 As discussed above, the existing Glebe Field has landscape value and heritage value.  
Given its proximity to the village centre and location within the built-up area boundary, the 
site has close links with the townscape of Storrington.  The existing undeveloped field 
contributes to the setting of the surrounding townscape, which is semi-rural in character as 
a result of the loose grain and irregular pattern of development surrounding the site, 
despite the proximity to the village centre and the location within a defined built-up area 
boundary.  In addition to the advice provided by the Conservation Officer in respect of the 
contribution that the Glebe Field makes to the understanding of the historic context of the 
village, the Landscape Architect raises concern that the fundamental change to the 
predominantly rural character of the site arising from the development would also result in 
an adverse effect on the immediate townscape character.  

6.28 The Glebe Field currently contributes positively to the rural sense of place in this location.  
The NPPF advises at paragraph 58 that planning decisions should aim to ensure that 
developments establish a strong sense of place and respond to local character and history, 
reflecting the identity of local surroundings, while paragraph 51 requires planning decisions 
to address the integration of new development into the natural, built and historic 
environment.  In light of the landscape and heritage concerns arising, it is considered that 
the proposal also results in harm to townscape character, and the sense of place and 
historic context that the Glebe Field currently provides.  The proposed development would 
not assist in establishing a strong sense of place and does not respond to local character 
and history, eroding the layout and setting of the historic core of the village, contrary to 
Policies 1, 2, 3, 32 and 33 of the HDPF.  

Design and Appearance

6.29 The design and appearance of the proposed residential buildings is typical of modern lower 
density suburban buildings.  The dwellings are arranged in two cul-de-sacs to provide an 
irregular layout which avoids expansive parking courts.  The layout incorporates 
landscaped areas and new planting around buildings and surfaced areas to assist in 
creating a verdant setting for the buildings.  The dwellings incorporate a mix of roof forms 
and materials to add interest to the development.  All of the buildings are limited to two 
storeys in height, with the exception of Plot 1 which has rooms in the roof space served by 
dormer windows.  The proposed surgery building is of a larger scale than existing, but has 
been broken up through the use of different wings, each covered by a pitched roof and 
utilising a variety of materials such as brick, boarding and flint.  Therefore, notwithstanding 
the concerns set out above relating to the extent of development across the Glebe Field 
and the impact of this on landscape, townscape and heritage, the external appearance of 
the buildings themselves would not add to this harm, subject to the use of a suitable palette 
of materials which reflects those predominantly used on buildings in the vicinity of the site. 

Highways and Parking

6.30 Each of the proposed semi-detached dwellings would be provided with a single garage and 
one surface parking space, and each of the detached dwellings would be provided with a 
double garage and two surface parking spaces.  Three visitor spaces are proposed within 
the residential element.  This is considered to be appropriate provision in this location, 
which is walking distance from the services and facilities within the village centre.  The 
proposal would provide 58 parking spaces for the doctor’s surgery, spread over two areas 
either side of the proposed building, along with covered cycle parking to the rear of the 
building.  The Highway Authority’s Parking Standards require provision of 4 spaces per 

Page 35



consulting room (23 consulting rooms proposed), 1 space per 20sqm of office space 
(around 280sqm office space proposed) and 1 space per 20sqm retail space (120sqm 
pharmacy proposed), totalling a maximum permissible standard of around 112 spaces for 
the surgery building.  The Highway Authority advises that the proposed level of car parking 
will be sufficient to meet the expected demand in this case and raises no objection to 
parking provision within the development.  The Highway Authority consultation response 
advises that the increased parking provision at the surgery should assist in reducing the 
off-site parking pressures along Monastery Lane.  

6.31 A number of the letters of both objection and support raise concern regarding the site 
access, in particular safety issues arising from the roundabout at the junction of Monastery 
Lane, Amberley Road and the A283.  On this particular issue, the Highway Authority 
assessment is as follows:
“With respects to the A283/B2139/Monastery Lane mini-roundabout, visibility from the 
Monastery Lane arm is restricted as a consequence of the carriageway alignment.  Based 
on the latest three year personal injury accident [data] obtained from the Police, there are 
no recorded accidents.  It is apparent that despite the existing restriction that traffic is using 
the junction without any detriment to safety.  Whilst the proposed development would give 
rise to an intensification of use of this junction, based upon paragraph 32 of the National 
Planning Policy Framework, a development could only be resisted or refused on transport 
grounds where the residual cumulative impacts of the development are severe.  WSCC are 
satisfied that based upon evidence available, that no severe safety or capacity impact 
would result at this junction.”
As such, refusal on the basis of the impact of increased use of this roundabout, or the 
requirement for any approval of this application being subject to improvements to this 
roundabout, is not supported by the Highway Authority, and the LPA has no evidence to 
justify taking an alternative view.  

6.32 The Highway Authority raises no objection to the proposal, subject to conditions and to a 
financial contribution of £7,000 to implement waiting restrictions on Monastery Lane and 
within the development to maintain visibility splays, if this proves necessary once the 
development is operational.  As such, no objections are raised in respect of parking and 
highway issues and the proposed development is considered to accord with the 
requirements of the NPPF and Policies 40 and 41 of the HDPF. 

Ecology, Biodiversity and Arboriculture

6.33 There are no protected trees within the site, and existing boundary vegetation is proposed 
to be retained and enhanced.  No objections are therefore raised in respect of trees and 
arboriculture, subject to conditions to ensure the protection of retained vegetation during 
the construction process. 

6.34 The Applicant has provided a Preliminary Ecological Appraisal, which identified potential for 
reptiles within the site, as well as a number of ecological enhancements that could be 
delivered through the development.  The Applicant also provides a Reptile Report, which 
confirms the presence of reptiles and the need for mitigation including the relocation of 
reptiles to the portion of the site not proposed for development.  The Council’s Ecology 
Consultant raises no objection to the proposal, subject to conditions requiring approval of a 
detailed reptile mitigation strategy and an ecological mitigation and enhancement plan, to 
ensure that full details of the recommendations put forward in the Applicant’s supporting 
information are approved and implemented. Subject to these controls, the proposal would 
accord with the requirements of Policy 31 of the HDPF. 

Page 36



Sustainability

6.35 The site is located within walking distance of the village centre, with its local services and 
facilities, as well as the main bus routes through the village.  The site is therefore a 
sustainable location for development.

6.36 The application does not put forward details of energy use or sustainable construction as 
required by Policies 36 and 37 of the HDPF.  However, the matters of building efficiency 
and energy use are controlled through the Building Regulations.  This is an ‘area of serious 
water stress’ and therefore a condition requiring compliance with the higher level building 
regulations for water use limitation would be necessary.  

6.37 Parts of Storrington village centre are designated as an Air Quality Management Area.  The 
HDC Environmental Health Officer recommends that mitigation is incorporated into the 
development, to be detailed in an Air Quality Mitigation Plan.  This is likely to include 
measures such as the provision of electric vehicle charging points and a sustainable travel 
plan to encourage sustainable transport choices.  This is to be secured by condition. 

6.38 The Environmental Health Officer highlights a lack of information accompanying the 
application regarding land quality.  As such, conditions are recommended to require 
approval of a risk assessment to identify potential land contamination, with subsequent 
approval and implementation of any mitigation measures considered necessary as a result 
of the risk assessment and site investigation.  

6.39 In light of the above, no objections are raised in respect of sustainability, subject to 
conditions in the event that planning permission is granted. 

Retail

6.40 The proposal includes a pharmacy of about 120sqm.  A pharmacy is a Class A1 retail use.  
Some of the letters of representation have raised concern regarding the impact of the 
proposed pharmacy on existing pharmacies within the village centre. Policy 13 of the HDPF 
seeks to locate main town centre uses within existing centres, in order to maintain the 
vitality and viability of existing centres.  The Policy allows for small scale retail development 
outside of defined town and village centres where it will not significantly undermine the 
vitality and viability of the nearest village centre.  In this case, a pharmacy has strong links 
to the main use of the building as a doctor’s surgery, and could be considered an ancillary 
use to the main Class D1 medical centre use.  A pharmacy is likely to be used by patients 
to collect prescriptions and purchase medicines in connection with their visit to the surgery, 
and would generate limited visits to the pharmacy alone.  The inclusion of a pharmacy 
within the surgery building therefore is likely to reduce trips to the village centre for 
pharmacy uses, and therefore would assist in a reduction of short trips (i.e. driving to the 
surgery and then on to a pharmacy) within the Air Quality Management Area .  

6.41 It is noted that pharmacies currently exist in the village centre. However, in this case it is 
considered that inclusion of a small pharmacy within the surgery would not undermine the 
overall retail function of the centre, provided the use of the retail element is limited to 
pharmacy use only (and no other purpose within Class A1 of the Use Classes Order), or as 
part of the main surgery use.  This would prevent alternative retail uses becoming 
established at the site (such as a convenience store), which would generate significant trips 
over and above those generated by the surgery alone and would have the potential to 
affect the retail function of the village centre and unnecessarily add to vehicle movements 
in the AQMA.  Such conditions would also ensure that the A1 use remains ancillary to the 
main D1 use, even in the event that the pharmacy is run as a separate business.  As such, 
no objections are raised to the principle of including a small pharmacy use within a new 
surgery building.  

Page 37



Drainage and Flood Risk

6.42 The application includes a flood risk assessment, which includes an outline drainage 
strategy.  The HDC Drainage Engineer and WSCC Flood Risk Management team raise no 
objection to the proposals, subject to conditions to secure approval of full details of the 
drainage scheme, along with details of its longer term management and maintenance.  No 
objections are therefore raised in respect of drainage and flood risk. 

Amenity of Existing and Future Occupiers

6.43 The proposed dwellings are sited sufficiently away from existing neighbouring properties to 
prevent a loss of amenity and privacy.  The proposed layout demonstrates that the 
proposed dwellings would be provided with sufficient garden space to provide future 
occupiers with a reasonable amount of outdoor space.  The EHO notes that no details of 
plant serving the proposed doctor’s surgery have been provided, and requests a condition 
requiring approval of details to ensure that any noisy plant would be suitably mitigated to 
prevent undue disturbance to adjacent residents.  No objections are therefore raised in 
respect of the amenity of existing and future occupiers.  

Affordable Housing

6.44 Policy 16 requires 20% of new dwellings on sites providing 5 to 14 units to be affordable, 
which equates to 2 units in this scheme of 9 units.  The Applicant does not propose to 
provide any affordable units on-site.  While recent experiences suggest that many 
Registered Providers are not willing to take on small numbers of units such as this, and 
therefore the Council may determine that a financial contribution in lieu of on-site provision 
of affordable units is appropriate, the Applicant has not provided evidence of any 
discussions with Registered Providers.  Where the Council does accept that a financial 
contribution in lieu of on-site affordable housing provision is acceptable, this should be 
calculated in accordance with the latest draft Affordable Housing and Planning Obligations 
SPD, as the methodology contained therein is based on more up-to-date background 
evidence than the adopted 2007 Planning Obligations SPD.  In support of their position, the 
Applicant initially relied on the Planning Practice Guidance which advises that LPAs should 
not seek affordable housing or infrastructure contributions on residential developments of 
10 units or less, and which have a combined floor area of no more than 1000sqm.  Not only 
do the dwellings in this case have a gross internal floor area of over 1000sqm (in the region 
of 1400sqm excluding garaging), but this Council have a strong and demonstrable need for 
affordable housing and therefore continue to apply the adopted Policy 16 to developments 
of less than 10 units.  This approach has been supported by Inspectors.  The Applicant was 
therefore asked to provide further evidence in support of their non-compliance with Policy 
16.  Such evidence would normally comprise a full financial viability assessment (taking 
into account matters such as land values, build costs, developer profit, professional fees, 
market value of development etc), which would be appraised and verified by an 
independent financial consultant appointed by the Council.

6.45 However, the Applicant has not taken this approach.  Instead, they have provided a 
statement which, in summary, states: 

• Based on the gross internal floor area of the dwellings, the affordable housing contribution 
(in accordance with the draft Planning Obligations SPD) would be in the region of 
£219,170. [Note that Officers concur with this figure]

• Land for a doctor’s surgery is to be ‘gifted’.  
• If that ‘gifted’ land were developed to provide 6 dwellings, including 5 affordable units, the 

land value would be in the region of £215,000. 
• Around 3.07 acres of land will be transferred to the Parish Council as public open space. 
• Paddock land is valued at around £30,000 per acre. [3.07 acres equates to around 

£92,100]

Page 38



• The value of the land being ‘gifted’ therefore has a value in excess of £305,000, which is in 
excess of the contribution which would otherwise be sought in lieu of on-site affordable 
housing provision. 

6.46 However, the Council are not considering a proposal for dwellings on the land proposed for 
a surgery.  That land is currently paddocks, as per the remainder of the site and therefore 
has limited existing use value.  It is noted that third party representations raise concern 
regarding the non-provision of affordable housing, and the financial/contractual 
arrangements between the various parties involved, which suggest that the development is 
viable and should be able to provide a policy-compliant level of affordable housing.  
Officers agree that there is little clarity provided on the matter of the inter-reliance on 
various elements of the proposal in financial terms, and that the Applicant’s statement on 
affordable housing adds little in support of their case.  

6.47 However, setting aside the monetary valuations provided by the Applicant, the crux of their 
argument in support of the non-compliance with Policy 16 does not rely on a detailed 
analysis of the financial matters.  Rather, their case in support of non-compliance with 
Policy 16 is that other community benefits will come forward as a result of this proposal, 
which are material considerations of sufficient weight to outweigh the affordable housing 
policy requirements in this case.  

6.48 In light of the other community benefits coming forward, the conflict with Policy 16 is 
considered in the overall planning balance later in this report.   

Infrastructure

6.49 The County Council has identified a need for financial contributions towards local primary, 
secondary and sixth form education to mitigate the impacts of new residents on these local 
services.  The requested contributions total £88,751.  The Applicant’s Agent has confirmed 
that the applicant is willing to make this contribution.  As such, the impact on local 
infrastructure arising from the development can be mitigated.  While affordable housing is 
normally the priority when an Applicant offers a reduced contribution in comparison to that 
sought, it is noted that schools in the locality are currently operating at or above the 
recommended capacity of 95% across an area, and that there is significant pressure on 
education provision in the area.  As such, in this instance it is considered that it is 
appropriate to allocate the contribution of £88,751 that the Applicant is able to provide to 
education as set out in the WSCC consultation response.  

Other Material Considerations

6.50 The Applicant’s Planning Statement compares the current proposal to the development at 
Priory Close, between Lady Place and the Our Lady of England site, stating their view that 
as Priory Close was considered to be sustainably located and developable in principle, the 
development of this site should also be.  However, as set out above the application site 
and Priory Close are materially different.  The large Church of Our Lady of England building 
(the unlisted Catholic church), lies to the south of Priory Close, screening views of the 
Priory Close development in the wider landscape.  Although the new dwellings on Priory 
Close are visible from the rights of way crossing the site, they are set well back from the 
footpaths.  That development therefore has a significantly different, and less harmful, 
impact on landscape character.  It also appears from historic maps that the parcel of land 
on which Priory Close is sited did not form part of the original Glebe Field and therefore did 
not involve developing a parcel of land with the same strong links to the medieval church 
and the historic core of the village as the Glebe Field does.  The Priory Close development 
therefore did not amount to development of a non-designated heritage asset.  In addition, 
although the Priory Close development does affect the setting of Lady Place, it did not 
result in the same level of harm to the setting of Lady Place as the current proposal, given 

Page 39



that the Glebe Field provides a rural setting and open backdrop to the listed building.  The 
current proposal would result in loss of a non-designated heritage asset and the listed 
curtilage of Lady Place being impacted by development, significantly changing the listed 
setting from the rural backdrop provided by the Glebe Field which has formed part of the 
setting of Lady Place since it was first constructed, to that of a suburban housing estate.  
As such, the impacts of the development at Priory Close are materially different to those 
arising from the current proposal, and it does not set a precedent for permitting the current 
proposal.  

6.51 The Applicant also makes reference to the inclusion of the site in the SHELAA (Strategic 
Housing and Economic Land Availability Appraisal) in support of the development of the 
site.  A SHELAA is the technical exercise of gathering together information to create a 
portfolio of sites which may be considered for future planning purposes (for example in a 
Site Allocations SPD or a Neighbourhood Plan) and forms part of the evidence base for the 
HDPF.  It is a fairly broad-brush, desk-based, technical exercise to provide an assessment 
of potential housing and economic land capacity, and is not subject to any public 
consultation or detailed assessment of potential site constraints.  An adopted development 
plan document such as a Local Plan, a Supplementary Planning Document or a 
Neighbourhood Plan may include site allocations, but these documents go through a 
rigorous and transparent process of public consultation and examination, which is quite 
different to the SHELAA.  The SHELAA page of the Council’s website includes the clear 
caveat that “the assessment of sites for new housing in the SHELAA does not mean that a 
site will be granted planning permission or allocated for development in any future plans. 
Any planning proposals on sites identified in the SHELAA will be judged on their merits 
against relevant planning policies and any other material considerations”.  Therefore, the 
SHELAA assessment does not reflect the full assessment carried out through the planning 
application process, and the consideration of a planning application (i.e. reasons for 
permitting or refusing an application), or other appraisals (such as those in connection with 
planning policy documents such as a Neighbourhood Plan) will feed into any revisions to 
the SHELAA.  

6.52 Even at this high level, the current SHELAA identifies the Glebe as being ‘not currently 
developable’, on account of visual intrusion, loss of recreational space, effect on the setting 
of the Conservation Area and identification in the draft SSWNP as a Local Green Space.  
The earlier SHELAA assessment for the Glebe Field identified that development in the 
south and east is not suitable due to visual intrusion, and included the site in the ‘6-10 
years developable’ category.  Notwithstanding the current SHELAA assessment of the site, 
the SHELAA does not hold weight as a material consideration in the determination of a 
planning application.  

6.53 A number of third party representations make reference to the Draft SSWNP and its 
designation of the Glebe Field as a ‘Local Green Space’.  The Applicant’s supporting 
information refers to the lack of evidence to support this designation, as identified in the 
Examiner’s report of the SSWNP.  The SSWNP was not found to meet the basic conditions 
necessary to proceed to referendum and cannot therefore be afforded weight in decision 
making.  There is currently no Neighbourhood Plan in place, and no current draft NP to 
have regard to.  The Parish Council’s consultation response advises that a report 
considering the potential for designation of Local Green Spaces within the Parish has been 
produced.  However, at the time of drafting this Committee Report, the Parish Council’s 
Local Green Spaces report had not been published and is not publicly available.  
Therefore, it is not possible to consider the findings of that report at this time.  
Notwithstanding the absence of that supporting information, even if the Parish Council’s 
report does recommend the allocation of this, or other, land as a Local Green Space, the 
allocation would not be confirmed until it has been through the full plan-making process 
(public consultation, examination, referendum).  Therefore, the potential allocation of the 
Glebe Field as Local Green Space holds very little weight at this time.  

Page 40



6.54 However, in light of the representations and the earlier draft SSWNP designation, it is 
useful to review the NPPF criteria for designation of land as ‘Local Green Space’ at 
paragraph 77, which is as follows:
The Local Green Space designation will not be appropriate for most green areas or open 
space. The designation should only be used:

• where the green space is in reasonably close proximity to the community it serves;
• where the green area is demonstrably special to a local community and holds a particular 

local significance, for example because of its beauty, historic significance, recreational 
value (including as a playing field), tranquillity or richness of its wildlife; and

• where the green area concerned is local in character and is not an extensive tract of land.

6.55 The HDC Landscape Architect’s comments on the Applicant’s rebuttal to the initial 
consultation response highlights that the Glebe Field appears to meet these criteria.  It is in 
close proximity to the community it serves, it is demonstrably special to the local 
community (evidenced by the level of representations raising concern regarding the 
development of the field) and it holds particular local significance as a result of its historic 
value, landscape value and contribution to the setting of the townscape and historic core of 
the village.  The Glebe Field is also local in character and not an extensive tract of land.  
While the site is not allocated as such at this stage and therefore does not have the 
protection afforded to a designated ‘Local Green Space’, the relevance of these criteria to 
the Glebe Field adds weight to its value as an integral part of the local townscape.   
However, it must be noted in assessing this proposal, that a substantial area of the existing 
Glebe Field would be retained as public open space, and would continue to fulfil the NPPF 
paragraph 77 criteria.  

Matters Contributing to the Planning Balance

6.56 Paragraph 15 of the NPPF sets out the requirement for Local Plans to be based on the 
presumption in favour of sustainable development, with clear policies that will guide how 
the presumption should be applied locally.  An up-to-date Local Plan or Development Plan 
which has been prepared in accordance with the objective of achieving sustainable 
development and is consistent with the presumption in favour of sustainable development 
should therefore be afforded great weight in decision making, and where a development is 
inconsistent with policies of a relevant, up-to-date development plan, the starting point is 
that the development should not be approved.  However, the NPPF also allows for 
consideration of other matters which could result in a proposal amounting to ‘sustainable 
development’.  This is particularly true where there are exceptional circumstances 
comprising substantial and objective benefits which outweigh the adverse starting point of 
conflict with the Development Plan.  

6.57 As a starting point in this case therefore, the proposal is contrary to the relevant 
Development Plan Policies relating to landscape, townscape and heritage impacts, as well 
as affordable housing policies, which is a consideration of substantial weight against the 
proposal.  In addition, the NPPF is clear that ‘great weight’ should be given to the 
conservation of heritage assets.  The Council also has a duty under section 66 of the Town 
and Country Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 to “have special 
regard to the desirability of preserving the building or its setting” in considering whether to 
grant planning permission for development which affects a listed building or its setting.  

6.58 The NPPF states that there are three dimensions to sustainable development- economic, 
social and environmental- and that these three roles should not be undertaken in isolation, 
because they are mutually dependent.  To achieve sustainable development, the NPPF 
states that economic, social and environmental gains (Officer emphasis) should be sought 
jointly and simultaneously through the planning system.  

Page 41



6.59 The proposed development would result in social and environmental losses due to the 
absence of affordable housing provision and the landscape, townscape and heritage harm 
arising.  For the reasons set out above relating to the primacy of the development plan and 
the guidance at paragraph 132 of the NPPF, these amount to great weight against the 
proposal.  

6.60 However, there are also benefits of the development to be considered in the balance.  The 
proposal would deliver 9 new dwellings on a site within the built-up area where residential 
development would, in principle, be consistent with the spatial strategy for growth set out in 
the HDPF.  This is a benefit of the development and new housing in general provides social 
and economic gains.  However, development proposals should comply with all relevant 
policies, not only those relating to the principle of development and housing supply.  
Although a five year housing land supply can be demonstrated within Horsham District, 
appeal decisions have established that housing targets are not to be taken as a ceiling 
figure.  The provision of 9 dwellings would contribute to the NPPF’s requirement for a 
significant boost in housing and to achieving the Council’s target of 800 dwellings per 
annum.  However, new housing should be delivered in accordance with the relevant 
Policies of the Local Plan, and in this case, the residential element is the key concern 
which results in objections to the proposal.  In this case, if the application were permitted, 
these dwellings would be considered a ‘windfall’ development, and would contribute to the 
HDPF target of 750 ‘windfall’ units in the plan period to 2031.   Therefore the Council’s 
ability to meet a 5-year housing land supply and to deliver 16,000 new dwellings in the plan 
period is not reliant on the construction of 9 dwellings at this site.  Although the delivery of 
housing here represents a social and economic gain of the proposal, this is of limited 
weight in this case as a result of the conflicts of the proposal with the adopted Development 
Plan.  

6.61 The Applicant intends for the surgery car park to be available for public use outside of 
surgery opening hours, and puts this forward as a benefit.  Letters of representation refer to 
the potential use of the surgery car park for users of the village hall on West Street as a 
benefit of the proposal.  However, it is not clear that there is high parking demand outside 
of the village centre and outside of normal opening hours.  Furthermore, the extended 
opening hours and additional services to be provided by the new surgery building outlined 
in the supporting information suggests that the proposed surgery car park is likely to be in 
use by surgery users well into the evenings.  As such, the potential use of the proposed 
surgery car park by other parties is not considered to be a public benefit of any weight in 
favour of, or against, the proposal.

6.62 The Applicant puts forward the proposed area of public open space as a benefit of the 
proposal.  From the representations received, the Glebe Field is used by local residents for 
recreation, with some references to playing on the field or community gatherings having 
taken place there in the past.  However, the majority of references are to the use of the 
land for walking (both as a route for trips to and from the village and for recreational 
purposes such as short walks and to access the wider countryside to the south from the 
village) and for exercising dogs. While unrestricted access is currently enjoyed over a fairly 
large proportion of the Glebe Field, it is private land and the public only have a formal right 
of access over the definitive route of the public right of way. The existing access to the 
Glebe Field could be withdrawn by the landowner at any time, with access limited to the 
public right of way only. Although there is support for the allocation of the site as Local 
Green Space by the Parish Council and in some letters of representation, the land is 
currently not allocated as such and there are no restrictive planning policy designations on 
the land.  

6.63 The existing Glebe Field has an area in the region of 2 hectares.  About 1.24 hectares of 
land is proposed to be retained as public open space, equating to just over half of the 
existing land.  Although representations note that a turning head by Plot 8 would appear to 

Page 42



suggest an intention for further development of the land proposed for public open space, 
the land is proposed to be ‘gifted’ to the Parish/District Council and therefore its long term 
openness would be secured.  The turning head would provide access to the public open 
space for grounds keeping equipment.  In order for the benefit of the retention of the land 
shown for public open space to be considered a ‘benefit’ of the proposal, full ownership of 
the land, unfettered by restrictive covenants, would need to be transferred to the District or 
Parish Council.  This would need to be secured by way of a Legal Agreement prior to any 
permission being granted for development.  Given the existing private ownership of the 
land, the transfer to public ownership and retention as open space is a benefit of significant 
weight in support of the proposal, although this is tempered to a degree as part of the 
existing Glebe Field would be developed. 

6.64 The key benefit put forward by this application is the new and enlarged doctor’s surgery 
itself.  The Applicant’s Planning Statement sets out their assessment of the level of harm 
arising from the proposed development, and considers that this is entirely outweighed by 
the delivery of a new surgery building.  Contrary to the assessment of the Council’s 
Landscape Architect, the Applicant considers that the proposal would positively respond to 
the landscape and fully respect the topography of the site.  Contrary to the assessment of 
the Council’s Conservation Officer, the Applicant considers that the benefits of the scheme 
outweighs the negligible harm of the development proposal to the setting of Lady Place, 
although it also states that the proposed landscaped area adjacent to Lady Place would 
prevent any potential harm caused to the setting of the heritage asset.  It is also the 
Applicant’s view that the benefit of delivery of the new surgery and the provision of public 
open space outweighs the need to provide affordable housing in accordance with Policy 
16.  

6.65 The Applicant’s Planning Statement sets out the current issues concerning GP provision in 
the Storrington area, including the deficiencies of the existing building.  The Applicant sets 
out that the patient list has grown from 8,000 to 11,500 in the last two years, due in part to 
the closure of the Mill Stream surgery, and that this is predicted to reach 15,000 patients by 
2019/20.  They advise that the existing surgery is about 420sqm in area (this figure does 
not appear to include the two existing portacabins), and that in order to meet the needs of 
15,000 patients by 2020, a 1,400sqm building is necessary, also taking account of planned 
expanded core hours, potential for seven day working, providing out of hospital services 
(e.g. counselling, physiotherapy, occupational therapy, minor surgery, community 
midwifery) and social and third sector services.  The Applicant also intends for the new 
surgery building to provide an environment for health and social care professionals to work 
together to support patients, to provide a space for patient groups to meet and to allow the 
surgery to have trainees in attendance.  The Applicant advises that many patients attend 
the surgery with minor injuries, rather than directly to a hospital emergency department due 
to the distance to the nearest three major hospitals, and that the larger building will provide 
the opportunity to expand this type of service.  

6.66 The Planning Statement identifies shortcomings of the existing accommodation, including 
only 8 parking spaces, only two toilets (one suitable for disabled access), insufficient 
consulting and nursing rooms (all of which do not meet current design standards), lack of 
waiting room space, no private room for patient use, insufficient room for storage of non-
electronic patient notes (majority held off-site), no room designated as educational, 
conference room or staff area.  In the event that permission is not granted for the expanded 
surgery on this site, the Applicant indicates that a third portacabin will be necessary, and 
this would result in the loss of parking spaces within the site.  In addition, an on-going lack 
of space could necessitate the surgery providing core services only. 

6.67 From the information submitted, and in light of the representations received and 
consultation responses from the CCG in connection with this application, it is clear that the 
existing building at the Glebe Surgery is not sufficient in size to serve the local community 

Page 43



and that expanded or additional facilities in the village are necessary in order to meet 
demand and provide an improved GP service. The proposal would deliver a significant 
public benefit in terms of the proposed surgery, which would meet the current, and 
forecast, deficiency in GP provision in the area.  

6.68 Considering the surgery element alone, the expanded surgery site would encroach on the 
Glebe Field, but to a far lesser extent than the residential element.  The Landscape 
Architect is concerned that the surgery proposals do not respect the existing topography of 
the site, as the development would ‘cut into’ the existing landform.  The Conservation 
Officer’s concerns relating to the proposal identify issues such as intervisibility between 
Lady Place and the Glebe Field, as well as impact on setting of the Conservation Area and 
St Marys Church and the partial loss of the Glebe Field as a non-designated heritage 
asset.  These harmful impacts arising from the surgery alone are considered to be limited 
due to the distance of separation and the area of land involved.  It is therefore considered 
that the public benefit of provision of a new surgery building is sufficient to outweigh the 
limited landscape and heritage harm arising from the surgery element alone.  

6.69 However, the application does not propose a surgery alone, and involves much wider 
development of the Glebe Field for 9 dwellings (with no affordable housing on-site or 
financial contribution towards off-site provision).  It is this element of the proposal which 
results in the greatest harm due to the extent of the development over the Glebe Field and 
its proximity to Lady Place.  The main consideration in balancing the harm and benefits of 
this proposal is therefore whether delivery of the proposed doctors surgery is a benefit of 
sufficient weight to justify setting aside the requirements of the landscape, townscape, 
heritage and affordable housing policies of the HDPF and permitting the residential element 
alongside the surgery element.  It is therefore necessary to assess the need for housing in 
this location and for residential development of the extent and quantum proposed, as well 
as whether it is necessary to provide the residential element of the scheme in order to 
deliver expanded GP provision in the village.  

6.70 The Applicant’s Planning Statement says that “The Glebe site is the only site within the 
Storrington Area which could accommodate a [GP] facility of the size required” (Officer 
underlining).  The Applicant’s Statement and many of the letters of representation received 
(both in support and objection) refer to the Mill Stream Surgery.  Many letters of objection 
refer to a preference for a new surgery at the Mill Stream site, with reasons including it 
being more accessible by pedestrians and by residents to the north and east of the village, 
the access to Mill Stream being safer than access to the Glebe, and the redevelopment of 
Mill Stream not requiring residential development of the Glebe Field.  Many of the letters of 
support note the availability of the Mill Stream site, but support the Applicant’s view that 
delivery of a surgery at that site is not viable.  

6.71 In addition, the CCG has written in support of the application, and has advised that the Mill 
Stream site was considered as an alternative by the CCG as part of their consideration of 
whether to support the Glebe’s bid for funding from the NHS.  The CCG concluded that the 
Mill Stream site was unsuitable, for reasons including the size (Mill Stream was only 1/3 of 
the size of the new surgery) and additional cost factors such as sewerage, river bank 
enhancements and additional land costs from multiple owners to expand the site.

6.72 By way of background, the Mill Stream surgery was closed by the NHS in May 2014 
following on-going concerns about the practice, in particular the management of its contract 
and protection of patients.  At the time of closure, NHS England advised that “As there are 
three local GP practices within 6.5 miles of the Mill Stream Medical Centre, and one local 
practice within 11 miles, who all have space on their lists to take on all of Mill Stream’s 
patients between them, NHS England has concluded that it is not viable to continue 
running the practice” (letter to Nick Herbert MP, 07.05.2014).  The other practices referred 
to in the letter are The Glebe, Pulbourough Primary Care Centre, Billingshurst Surgery and 

Page 44



Steyning Health Centre.  In August 2014, the District Council purchased the Mill Stream 
surgery.  There were three reasons outlined at the time for purchasing the property, which 
were (a) potential to create a larger combined doctors practice in the locality to replace the 
Glebe Surgery (b) to remove a ransom hold over access to land at the rear of the property 
owned by the District and Parish Councils and (c) for re-letting to generate a revenue 
stream.  The Council’s press release of 25.06.2014 states that the Council has “been 
talking with the NHS and doctors from the nearby Glebe Surgery about the possibility of 
developing a medical health centre which would provide state-of-the-art healthcare 
facilities”.  However, in the time since the Council purchased the Mill Stream site, no firm 
proposals for a new surgery at the site have been forthcoming from Doctors/NHS England 
and the Council has had no option but to secure a revenue stream from the Mill Stream 
property, as anticipated in the original purchase report, through letting the building for an 
alternative use.  A lease agreement is currently being finalised and therefore the Mill 
Stream site is therefore no longer available for development of a new surgery or medical 
centre at the current time.  

6.73 The Applicant’s Planning Statement states that “this much needed new facility cannot be 
provided without the delivery of new houses on the site”, and goes on to say that “the land 
required for the new surgery can only be released by the land owner if new houses are to 
be delivered on site”.  It also advises that there “would be no feasible funding mechanism 
for the Mill Stream site, as opposed to the Glebe Site, which would be facilitated by the 
delivery of new housing” and that the provision of the doctor’s surgery on the site “requires 
the delivery of housing in order to fund the new medical facility”.  These statements are not 
entirely clear on the matter of the link between the residential and surgery elements of the 
scheme.  

6.74 The Applicant does not make the case that the residential development is necessary to 
provide funding for the surgery development.  Instead, it is the case that the owner of the 
Glebe Field (including the land which is required for the surgery expansion) has indicated 
that they are not willing to release land for the surgery extension unless planning 
permission to develop dwellings on the Glebe Field is granted.  No case has been made to 
show that the delivery of an extended surgery would only be viable should permission be 
granted for residential development of the scale proposed.  Therefore, the proposed 
number of units and the extent of land proposed for residential development is not in any 
way linked to the funding of the surgery, but rather the provision of land to enable delivery 
of a larger surgery building forms the link.  The residential element is to be constructed on 
land which will be in separate ownership from the surgery (once it has been transferred 
from the existing landowner) and the revenue generated by the residential element would 
not contribute to the funding of the surgery. Rather, the landowner would benefit from any 
uplift in land value of the land for residential use, and the residential developer would 
benefit from any revenue from sales of the dwellings in the event that permission were 
granted. 

6.75 Given the need for expanded GP provision in the village, the identified harm arising from 
the proposal, and the lack of a demonstrable funding link between the residential and 
surgery elements here, it is relevant to consider whether this is the only site which could 
deliver the necessary medical centre provision to the community, and whether it is likely 
that an alternative scheme resulting in less harm could come forward.  For example, a site 
search or call for sites by the Applicant may identify potential sites which could 
accommodate a surgery building, for example within the industrial or commercial areas 
within the village, or on sites with development potential which could be assessed through 
the preparation of a new draft SSWNP.  Although the applicant has not submitted any 
detailed site assessments report, the CCG have confirmed that some options were 
considered, and specifically that the Mill Stream site has been assessed and discounted by 
the CCG.  In any event, the Mill Stream site it is no longer available.

Page 45



6.76 Although the application was not accompanied by any clear statement from the funding 
body for this scheme, nor the terms of that funding (site, size of building, location etc) and 
whether there is any flexibility for amending or relocating the surgery element to address 
concerns raised by consultees and by local residents, the Coastal West Sussex Clinical 
Commissioning Group has provided some background information to the funding 
arrangements.   They advise that the NHS cannot fully fund new build surgeries, and that 
the majority of new surgery developments come forward as a result of Practices working 
with third party developers/landlords to provide accommodation under a lease.  The CCG 
also advised that the NHS grant in this case will allow the rent charge to be reduced for the 
duration of the lease.  They also advise that the grant is time restricted, and that the 
building must be completed and in service by the start of 2019.

6.77 On the basis of the information available at this time, it would appear as though, without 
funding in place for purchase of an alternative site and construction of a surgery upon it, 
the options for alternative sites for construction of a surgery are extremely limited, if not 
non-existent in the short to medium term.  While it has not been demonstrated that, should 
a surgery not be delivered on this site (which is currently tied up with a residential element, 
resulting in conflict with adopted Planning Policies), one will not come forward elsewhere, 
and it is not clear that the expansion of the Glebe site is the only option that could be 
funded by the NHS and will deliver an improved GP service to the local community, no 
alternative proposals have come forward, other than the Mill Stream site which has since 
been discounted on suitability grounds, and in event no longer available.  The ability of this 
scheme to deliver a new and expanded medical centre to serve the local community is 
therefore a very strong material consideration in support of this proposal. 

Conclusion and Overall Planning Balance

6.78 The proposal attracts material objections of substantial weight, in particular the harm to the 
setting of designated heritage assets and loss of a non-designated heritage asset, as well 
as harm to landscape and townscape character and non-provision of affordable housing.  
These issues result in the proposal being contrary to the provisions of the Development 
Plan.  

6.79 An extended surgery building would provide a much needed local service, which attracts 
significant weight as a benefit.  In addition, the proposal would secure the long-term 
retention of the remaining Glebe Land as public open space, which too is a benefit.  The 
new housing is also a benefit, although the policy conflicts arising from this part of the 
scheme reduce the weight than can be afforded to the benefit of housing provision.  

6.80 The Glebe Field is an important non-designated heritage asset, which has value as 
contributing to the rural setting of the village, thereby contributing to the sense of place and 
the landscape value of the site, as well as forming part of the setting of listed buildings and 
the Conservation Area.  However, the loss is not total, and over half of the existing Glebe 
Field is intended to be retained as open space, and ‘gifted’ to the Parish Council.  The 
retained Glebe Field would ensure that the ‘indented edge’ of the settlement pattern is not 
entirely lost, and that there are still connections from the village centre to the rural area and 
countryside beyond through the retained and publically accessible Glebe.  As such, subject 
to transfer of ownership of the Glebe Field to the Parish/District Council to secure its long 
term protection, the impacts of the proposal on townscape and landscape are limited, and 
are considered to be outweighed by the benefits arising.  

6.81 In addition, the development is confined to the north-western part of the Glebe Field, 
retaining a substantial area of open space to the south, which would be well-related to and 
visually connected with the Conservation Area and St Mary’s Church, thereby retaining the 
historic connection between these designated heritage assets and the remaining Glebe 
Field.  It is considered that these elements of the ‘less than substantial harm’ identified by 

Page 46



the Conservation Officer are in this instance outweighed by the significant public benefits of 
the proposal, as per paragraph 134 of the NPPF.

6.82 While the impact on the setting of Lady Place is also assessed by the Conservation Officer 
as being ‘less than substantial’, the close proximity of the development to this listed 
building, the loss of views of it from the Glebe and from Monastery Lane and the resulting 
enclosure of the curtilage of Lady Place by residential development lead Officers to 
conclude that the harm to the setting of Lady Place is at a higher level than that to the 
Conservation Area, St Mary’s Church and the Glebe itself.  However, the building would not 
be lost, its original curtilage would be retained, and the un-developed boundary with the 
Glebe Field directly to the rear of the building at Lady Place would be retained.  On 
balance, and considering the public benefits coming forward in terms of the surgery and 
public open space, it is considered that this harm is acceptable when weighted against the 
public benefits in accordance with paragraph 134 of the NPPF.  

6.83 The District has a significant need for new affordable dwellings, and Policy 16 is in place to 
assist in the provision of new affordable housing to meet that need.  Policy 16 would 
require the provision of two affordable units, although if the Council were minded to accept 
a financial contribution in lieu of on-site provision this would equate to around £219,170.  
Clearly, the provision of affordable units provides a benefit to the local community, assisting 
those in housing need to find suitable accommodation.  However, it is recognised that the 
provision of an enlarged and expanded GP surgery with many additional facilities and 
services would also provide very significant benefits to the local community.  Therefore, in 
this particular instance it is considered that, on balance, the overall community benefits of 
this specific proposal are sufficient to outweigh the non-provision of a limited level of 
affordable housing.  

6.84 Having reviewed the Applicant’s submitted information, the third party representations, 
consultee comments and the relevant local and national planning policies, guidance and 
background documents, Officers conclude that there are sufficient benefits arising from the 
proposal to tip the balance of material considerations in favour of permission.  

6.85 Given the harm arising from the proposal, in particular the residential element, it will be 
necessary for any planning permission to be subject to a Legal Agreement to ensure that 
the benefits are delivered in a timely manner.  In this respect, it would not be appropriate 
for construction of the residential element to commence until the surgery element is 
complete and ready for use.  This will remove the risk of works progressing on the 
residential element in the event that the surgery element does not come forward or is not 
completed for some reason.  It will also be necessary to ensure that the retained public 
open space is transferred to public ownership (District or Parish Council) prior to the 
commencement of the residential development.  The Highway Authority consultation 
response notes that the parking of vehicles on Monastery Lane restricts visibility, and the 
Applicant’s highway designer has confirmed a commitment to funding the implementation 
of waiting restrictions.  This amounts to a contribution of £7,000.  There is also a need to 
re-visit the proposed scheme of landscaping, to ensure that the proposals adjacent to Lady 
Place are appropriate.  This can be secured by condition.

7. RECOMMENDATIONS

7.1 To approve the application, subject to conditions and to a Legal Agreement to secure 
delivery of the surgery building and transfer of the retained open space to public ownership 
prior to the commencement of the residential element of the proposal, to secure a financial 
contribution towards implementation of waiting restrictions on Monastery Lane and within 
the development and to secure financial contributions to local education provision.

Page 47



7.2 Proposed conditions include:

1 A condition listing the approved plans

 2 Standard Time Condition:  The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the 
expiration of three years from the date of this permission.

Reason:  To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

 3 Pre-Commencement Condition:  No development shall take place, including any works of 
demolition, until a Construction Method Statement has been submitted to, and approved in 
writing by, the local planning authority. The approved Statement shall be adhered to 
throughout the construction period. The Statement shall provide for, but not be limited to:

i. the parking of vehicles of site operatives and visitors
ii. loading and unloading of plant and materials 
iii. storage of plant and materials used in constructing the development 
iv. the erection and maintenance of security hoarding, where appropriate
v. the provision of wheel washing facilities if necessary
vi. measures to control the emission of dust and dirt during construction 
vii. a scheme for recycling/disposing of waste resulting from demolition and construction 

works
viii. hours of on-site construction working, including deliveries

Reason:  As this matter is fundamental in order to consider the potential impacts on the 
amenity of nearby residents during construction and in accordance with Policy 33 of the 
Horsham District Planning Framework (2015).

 4 Pre-Commencement Condition:

i) No development shall take place until a programme of archaeological work has been 
secured in accordance with a Written Scheme of Archaeological Investigation which 
has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

ii) The development hereby permitted shall not be commenced until the archaeological 
site investigation and post investigation assessment has been completed in 
accordance with the programme set out in the Written Scheme of Investigation 
approved under condition [i] and that provision for analysis, publication and 
dissemination of results and archive deposition has been secured and approved by the 
Local Planning Authority in writing.

Reason:  As this matter is fundamental as the site is of archaeological significance and it is 
important that it is recorded by excavation before it is destroyed by development in 
accordance with Policy 34 of the Horsham District Planning Framework (2015).

 5 Pre-Commencement Condition:  No development shall commence until precise details of 
the existing and proposed finished floor levels of the development in relation to nearby 
datum points adjoining the application site have been submitted to and approved by the 
Local Planning Authority in writing.  The development shall be completed in accordance 
with the approved details.

Reason:  As this matter is fundamental to control the development in detail in the interests 
of amenity and visual impact and in accordance with Policy 33 of the Horsham District 
Planning Framework (2015).

Page 48



 6 Pre-Commencement Condition:  No development shall commence, including demolition 
pursuant to the permission granted, ground clearance, or bringing equipment, machinery or 
materials onto the site, until the following preliminaries have been completed in the 
sequence set out below:

- All trees on the site shown for retention on approved drawing number 3810_DR_003 
received by the LPA 30.01.17, as well as those off-site whose root protection areas 
ingress into the site, shall be fully protected by tree protective fencing affixed to the 
ground in full accordance with section 6 of BS 5837 'Trees in Relation to Design, 
Demolition and Construction - Recommendations' (2012). 

- Once installed, the fencing shall be maintained during the course of the development 
works and until all machinery and surplus materials have been removed from the site. 

- Areas so fenced off shall be treated as zones of prohibited access, and shall not be 
used for the storage of materials, equipment or machinery in any circumstances. No 
mixing of cement, concrete, or use of other materials or substances shall take place 
within any tree protective zone, or close enough to such a zone that seepage or 
displacement of those materials and substances could cause them to enter a zone. 

Reason:  As this matter is fundamental to ensure the successful and satisfactory retention 
of important trees and hedgerows on the site in accordance with Policy 33 of the Horsham 
District Planning Framework (2015).

 7 Pre-Commencement Condition:  Prior to the commencement of development or any 
preparatory works, a Reptile Mitigation Strategy shall be submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority, based up the information provided within the 
Preliminary Ecological Appraisal and Reptile Report  by Lloyd Bore Ltd., dated 2016.  The 
development shall thereafter be carried out in accordance with the agreed timings and 
details.

Reason:  As this matter is fundamental to safeguard the ecology and biodiversity of the 
area in accordance with Policy 31 of the Horsham District Planning Framework (2015).

 8 Pre-Commencement Condition:  An Ecological Mitigation and Enhancement Plan should 
be submitted and agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. This will provide a brief 
summary for site workers of the mitigation detailed in the Preliminary Ecological Appraisal 
by Lloyd Bore, 2016. Details shall be broken down into pre-, during and post works 
activities. The development shall thereafter be carried out in accordance with the approved 
details.  

Reason:  As this matter is fundamental to safeguard the ecology and biodiversity of the 
area in accordance with Policy 31 of the Horsham District Planning Framework (2015).

 9 Pre-Commencement Condition:  No development shall commence until a drainage 
strategy detailing the proposed means of foul and surface water disposal has been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  The development 
shall be carried out in accordance with the approved scheme.

Reason:  As this matter is fundamental to ensure that the development is properly drained 
and to comply with Policy 38 of the Horsham District Planning Framework (2015).

10 Pre-Commencement Condition:  No development shall commence until a detailed 
surface water drainage scheme including a Surface Water Drainage Statement, based on 
sustainable drainage principles and an assessment of the hydrological and hydrogeological 
context of the development has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority.  The submitted details shall be fully coordinated with the landscape 

Page 49



scheme.  The development shall subsequently be implemented prior to first occupation in 
accordance with the approved details and thereafter retained as such.

Reason: As this matter is fundamental to prevent the increased risk of flooding, to improve 
and protect water quality, improve habitat and amenity, and ensure future maintenance in 
accordance Policies 35 and 38 of the Horsham District Planning Framework (2015).

11 Pre-Commencement Condition:  Prior to the commencement of the development hereby 
permitted, details of the re-direction of existing public rights of way across the site and their 
surfacing shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  
The diverted public rights of way shall be completed and available for use prior to the 
commencement of the development and on completion of the development, any damage 
done to the diverted and surfaced rights of way as a result of construction works shall be 
made good in accordance with the approved details.

Reason: To ensure that the existing public rights of way remain open and unobstructed 
during construction, in accordance with Policy 40 of the Horsham District Planning 
Framework (2015)

12 Pre-Commencement Condition:  Prior to the commencement of the development hereby 
permitted, an Air Quality Mitigation Plan covering both the construction phase and 
operational phase of the development shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority.  The development shall thereafter be carried out in accordance 
with the approved details and any mitigation measures relating to the operational phase 
shall thereafter be retained as approved. 

Reason: To assist in the reduction of emissions in the nearby Air Quality Management 
Area, in accordance with Policy 24 of the Horsham District Planning Framework (2015).

13 Pre-Commencement Condition:  No development shall commence until the following 
components of a scheme to deal with the risks associated with contamination, (including 
asbestos contamination), of the site be submitted to and approved, in writing, by the local 
planning authority:

(a) A preliminary risk assessment which has identified:
- all previous uses
- potential contaminants associated with those uses
- a conceptual model of the site indicating sources, pathways and receptors
- Potentially unacceptable risks arising from contamination at the site. 

The following aspects (b) - (d) shall be dependent on the outcome of the above preliminary 
risk assessment (a) and may not necessarily be required.  

(b) An intrusive site investigation scheme, based on (a) to provide information for a 
detailed risk assessment to the degree and nature of the risk posed by any 
contamination to all receptors that may be affected, including those off site.

(c) The intrusive site investigation results following (b) and, based on these, a detailed 
method statement, giving full details of the remediation measures required and how 
they are to be undertaken. 

(d) A verification plan providing details of the data that will be collected in order to 
demonstrate that the works set out in (c) are complete and identifying any 
requirements for longer-term monitoring of pollutant linkages, maintenance and 
arrangements for contingency action where required.

Page 50



The development shall thereafter be carried out in accordance with the approved details.   
Any changes to these components require the consent of the local planning authority. 

Reason:  As this matter is fundamental to ensure that no unacceptable risks are caused to 
humans, controlled waters or the wider environment during and following the development 
works and to ensure that any pollution is dealt with in accordance with Policies 24 and 33 
of the Horsham District Planning Framework (2015).

14 Pre-Commencement (Slab Level) Condition:  No development above ground floor slab 
level of any part of the development hereby permitted shall take place until a schedule of 
materials and finishes and colours to be used for external walls, windows and roofs of the 
approved building(s) has been submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority 
in writing and all materials used in the construction of the development hereby permitted 
shall conform to those approved.

Reason:  As this matter is fundamental to enable the Local Planning Authority to control the 
development in detail in the interests of amenity by endeavouring to achieve a building of 
visual quality in accordance with Policy 33 of the Horsham District Planning Framework 
(2015).

15 Pre-Commencement (Slab Level) Condition:  No development above ground floor slab 
level of any part of the development hereby permitted shall take place until confirmation 
has been submitted, in writing, to the Local Planning Authority that the relevant Building 
Control body shall be requiring the optional standard for water usage across the 
development.  The dwellings hereby permitted shall meet the optional requirement of 
building regulation G2 to limit the water usage of each dwelling to 110 litres per person per 
day.  The subsequently approved water limiting measures shall thereafter be retained. 

Reason:  As this matter is fundamental to limit water use in order to improve the 
sustainability of the development in accordance with Policy 37 of the Horsham District 
Planning Framework (2015).

16 Pre-Commencement (Slab Level) Condition:  No development above ground floor slab 
level of any part of the development hereby permitted shall take place until details of the 
measures to facilitate the provision of high speed broadband internet connections to the 
development have been submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning 
authority, details shall include a timetable and method of delivery for high speed broadband 
of each dwelling/unit. The delivery of high speed broadband infrastructure shall be 
implemented in accordance with the approved details.

Reason:  As this matter is fundamental to ensure a sustainable development that meets the 
needs of future occupiers in accordance with Policy 37 of the Horsham District Planning 
Framework (2015).

17 Pre-Occupation Condition:  Notwithstanding the submitted details of landscaping, prior to 
the first occupation (or use) of any part of the development hereby permitted, full details of 
the hard and soft landscaping works shall be submitted to and approved, in writing, by the 
Local Planning Authority.  The approved landscape scheme shall be fully implemented in 
accordance with the approved details within the first planting season following the first 
occupation of any part of the development.  Any plants, which within a period of 5 years, 
die, are removed, or become seriously damaged or diseased shall be replaced in the next 
planting season with others of similar size and species unless the Local Planning Authority 
gives written consent to any variation. 

Reason:  To ensure a satisfactory development that is sympathetic to the landscape and 
townscape character and built form of the surroundings, in particular to adjacent heritage 

Page 51



assets, and in the interests of visual amenity in accordance with Policies 33 and 34 of the 
Horsham District Planning Framework (2015).

18 Pre-Occupation Condition:  No dwelling hereby permitted shall be occupied (or use 
hereby permitted commenced) unless and until provision for the storage of refuse and 
recycling has been made for that dwelling or use in accordance with drawing numbers 
2683-1004 received by the Local Planning Authority on 30th January 2017 and 
3527.PL.100 rev B received by the Local Planning Authority on 19th October 2016.  These 
facilities shall thereafter be retained for use at all times.

Reason:  To ensure the adequate provision of recycling facilities in accordance with Policy 
33 of the Horsham District Planning Framework (2015).

19 Pre-Occupation Condition:  No dwelling hereby permitted shall be occupied or use 
hereby permitted commenced until the car parking spaces (including garages) serving it 
have been constructed and made available for use in accordance with approved drawing 
numbers 2683-1001 received by the Local Planning Authority on 30th January 2017 and 
3527.PL.001 rev D received by the Local Planning Authority on 19th October 2016.  The 
car parking spaces permitted shall thereafter be retained as such for their designated use. 

Reason:  To provide car-parking space for the use in accordance with Policy 40 of the 
Horsham District Planning Framework (2015).

20 Pre-Occupation Condition:  No part of the development shall be first occupied until the 
road(s), footways, and casual parking areas serving the development have been 
constructed, surfaced, and drained in accordance with plans and details to be submitted to 
and approved by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason:   To secure satisfactory standards of access for the proposed development.

21 Pre-Occupation Condition:  No dwelling hereby permitted shall be occupied or use 
hereby permitted commenced until the cycle parking facilities serving it have been 
constructed and made available for use in accordance with approved drawing number 
3527.PL.001 rev D received by the Local Planning Authority on 19th October 2016.  The 
cycle parking facilities shall thereafter be retained as such for their designated use. 

Reason:  To ensure that there is adequate provision for the parking of cycles in accordance 
with Policy 40 of the Horsham District Planning Framework (2015).

22 Pre-Occupation Condition:  Prior to the first occupation (or use) of any part of the 
development hereby permitted, a verification report demonstrating that the SuDS drainage 
system has been constructed in accordance with the approved design drawings shall be 
submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority.  The development shall be 
maintained in accordance with the approved report.  

Reason:  To ensure a SuDS drainage system has been provided to an acceptable standard 
to the reduce risk of flooding, to improve and protect water quality, improve habitat and 
amenity, and ensure future maintenance in accordance Policies 35 and 38 of the Horsham 
District Planning Framework (2015).

23 Pre-Occupation Condition:  Prior to the installation of any plant to serve the doctors 
surgery or pharmacy hereby permitted, an assessment of the acoustic impact arising from 
the operation of all internally and externally located plant shall be undertaken in 
accordance with BS 4142:2014. The assessment shall be submitted to the Local Planning 
Authority together with a scheme of attenuation measures to mitigate any adverse impacts 
identified in the acoustic assessment. The scheme shall be submitted to and approved in 

Page 52



writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme as approved by the Local Planning 
Authority shall be fully installed before the use of any plant commences and shall be 
operated for as long as the use is continued.

Reason:  As this matter is fundamental in the interests of residential amenities by ensuring 
an acceptable noise level for the occupants of adjacent residential properties and in 
accordance with Policy 33 of the Horsham District Planning Framework (2015).

24 Pre-Occupation Condition:  Prior to the first occupation (or use) of any part of the 
development hereby permitted, details of all boundary walls and/or fences shall have been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  No dwelling hereby 
permitted shall be occupied (or use hereby permitted commenced) until the boundary 
treatments associated with that dwelling (or use) have been implemented as approved.  
The boundary treatments shall thereafter be maintained in accordance with the approved 
details.

Reason:  In the interests of visual and residential amenity in accordance with Policy 33 of 
the Horsham District Planning Framework (2015).

25 Regulatory Condition:  The garage(s) hereby permitted shall be used only as private 
domestic garages for the parking of vehicles incidental to the use of the properties as 
dwellings and for no other purposes.

Reason:  To ensure adequate off-street provision of parking in the interests of amenity and 
highway safety, and in accordance with Policy 40 of the Horsham District Planning 
Framework (2015).

26 Regulatory Condition:  Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning 
(General Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 (or any order amending or 
revoking and/or re-enacting that Order), the area shown for a pharmacy on drawing 
number 3527.PL.100 received by the Local Planning Authority on 19th October 2016 shall 
be used only as a Class A1 pharmacy, or as part of the Class D1 medical centre, and for 
no other purposes whatsoever, (including those falling within Class A1 as defined in the 
Town and Country Planning (Use Classes) Order 1987, or in any provision equivalent to 
that Class in any statutory instrument revoking and re-enacting that Order with or without 
modification) without express planning consent from the Local Planning Authority first being 
obtained. 

Reason:  Establishment of an alternative retail use in this location through a change of use 
as permitted by the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) Order or 
Use Classes Order 1987 would not be appropriate in accordance with Policies 13 and 24 of 
the Horsham District Planning Framework (2015).

27 Regulatory Condition: Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning 
(General Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 (or any order amending or 
revoking and/or re-enacting that Order), with the exception of the area indicated for use as 
a Class A1 pharmacy, the Doctors Surgery Building hereby permitted shall be used only for 
the provision of medical or health services and for no other purposes whatsoever, 
(including those falling within Class D1 as defined in the Town and Country Planning (Use 
Classes) Order 1987, or in any provision equivalent to that Class in any statutory 
instrument revoking and re-enacting that Order with or without modification) without 
express planning consent from the Local Planning Authority first being obtained. 

Reason: In light of the local need for medical centre provision, which has justified permitting 
development as an exception to adopted Policies of the Horsham District Planning 
Framework (2015).

Page 53



28 Regulatory Condition:  Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning 
(General Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 (and/or any Order revoking and/or 
re-enacting that Order no development falling within Classes A B C D E F G and H of Part 
1 of Schedule 2 (amend classes and schedule as necessary) of the order shall be erected, 
constructed or placed within the curtilage(s) of the dwellings on Plots 4, 5, and 9 (as 
annotated on drawing number 2683-1000 received by the Local Planning Authority on 30th 
January 2017) hereby permitted without express planning consent from the Local Planning 
Authority first being obtained. 

Reason:  In the interest of visual amenity and to maintain, as far as possible, the setting of 
the adjacent listed building, in accordance with Policies 33 and 34 of the Horsham District 
Planning Framework (2015).

29 Regulatory Condition:  Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning 
(General Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 or Orders amending or revoking 
and re-enacting the same, no windows or other openings (other than those shown on the 
plans hereby approved) shall be formed in the south-eastern side elevation of Plot 4 and 
the western side elevation of Plot 5 without express planning consent from the Local 
Planning Authority first being obtained. 

Reason:  To ensure that future occupiers are provided with an appropriate level of privacy 
and in accordance with Policy 33 of the Horsham District Planning Framework (2015).

30 Regulatory Condition:  Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning 
(General Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 or Orders amending or revoking 
and re-enacting the same, no gate, fence, wall or other means of enclosure shall be 
erected or constructed and no hardsurfacing constructed or laid in front of the forward most 
part of any proposed building which fronts onto a highway or access way without express 
planning consent from the Local Planning Authority first being obtained. 

Reason:  In order to ensure that the development remains of a high quality of design and in 
accordance with Policy 33 of the Horsham District Planning Framework (2015).

31 Regulatory Condition:  No external lighting or floodlighting shall be erected or placed on 
the site other than in accordance with details which shall have been submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the erection of any such 
lighting.  

Reason:  In the interests of the amenities of the locality and in accordance with Policy 33 of 
the Horsham District Planning Framework (2015).

32 Regulatory Condition:  There should be no importation of soil and other fill materials onto 
the development site unless confirmation that the soil/fill has been certified as fit for 
purpose by a competent person and has been subject to analysis by an accredited 
laboratory to ensure that it is free from contamination has been submitted to and approved 
in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 

Reason:  As this matter is fundamental to ensure that no unacceptable risks are caused to 
humans, controlled waters or the wider environment during and following the development 
works and to ensure that any pollution is dealt with in accordance with Policies 24 and 33 
of the Horsham District Planning Framework (2015).

Page 54



Notes to Applicant

1. Please be advised that there are conditions on this notice that will require the submission of 
details to be submitted for approval to the Local Planning Authority.  To approve these 
details, you will need to submit an "Application for approval of details reserved by 
condition" with an application form and pay the appropriate fee.  Guidance and the forms 
can be found at www.planningportal.gov.uk/planning/applications/paperforms 

2. A Surface Water Drainage Statement is a site-specific drainage strategy that demonstrates 
that the drainage scheme proposed is in compliance with the National Planning Policy 
Framework and the Non-Statutory Technical Standards for Sustainable Drainage Systems.  
An Advice Note and a proforma for the statement can be found using the following link 
https://www.horsham.gov.uk/planning/development-management. 

3. In connection with the above condition relating to the diversion and surfacing of public 
rights of way, the Applicant should have regard to the WSCC Rights of Way officer 
comments, i.e. that the development will obstruct the definitive route and therefore a 
footpath diversion is necessary, and that the routes are presently unmade and should be 
surfaced to the Rights of Way team’s specifications to encourage greater use of these 
paths.  

4. The Air Quality Management Plan required by the above conditions should be informed by 
HDC’s Planning Advice Document: Air Quality and Emissions Reduction Guidance (2014) 
and the IAQM Guidance on the Assessment of Dust from Demolition and Construction 
(February 2014), and should include both type 1 and type 2 mitigation measures. 

5. Please note that Southern Water require a formal application for connection to the water 
supply and connection to the public sewerage system in order to service this development. 
To initiate a sewer capacity check to identify the appropriate connection point for the 
development, please contact Southern Water, Sparrowgrove House, Sparrowgrove, 
Otterbourne, Hampshire (tel: 0330 303 0119) or www.southernwater.co.uk 

6. The applicant is advised to enter into a legal agreement with West Sussex County Council, 
as Highway Authority, to cover the proposed adoptable on-site highway works.  The 
applicant is requested to contact The Implementation Team Leader (01243 642105) to 
commence this process.  The applicant is advised that any works commenced prior to the 
S38 agreement being in place are undertaken at their own risk.

7. The Construction Environment Management Plan required by the above conditions should 
include details of proposed hours of demolition and construction activities (including 
deliveries & despatch), which are recommended to be limited to 08.00 – 18.00 Monday 
until Friday, 08.00 – 13.00 Saturdays and no working on Sundays, Bank or Public Holidays, 
unless alternative hours are demonstrated to be acceptable.

Background Papers: DC/16/2108

Page 55

http://www.planningportal.gov.uk/planning/applications/paperforms
https://www.horsham.gov.uk/planning/development-management
http://www.southernwater.co.uk/


This page is intentionally left blank



LB

Church

7

8

3

6
5

2

1

4
9

S
pring C

ottages

Club

Pond

36.8m

41.8m

52.4m

41.9m

35.3m

43.1m

33.4m

35.1m

45.4m

Works

The

End

Courts

Cottages

Gardens

C
ot

ts

Ferndale

High

Lam
p

G
le

be

D
ean

El Sub Sta

WALK

B 2139

H
ou

se

CLOSE

Tennis Courts

C
ottage

Norbert

Frazier

C
heviot

C
loisters

St Johns

34

22

29

14

36

25

38

61

13

20

32

24

40

31

19

30

37

10

33

21

17

18

50

48

Amberley

Cobb Gate

P
et

her
ic

k

Pavilion

M
arian

Car Park

WEST STREET

& Museum

W
ar

 M
em

l
11

TH
E

 L
A

U
R

E
LS

The Old School

Hurst House

R
E

C
TO

R
Y

 R
O

A
D

RECTORY CLOSE

St Christophers

KITHURST LANE

Bowling Green

SCHOOL LANE

The Old Sanctuary

38a

36a

1 to 3

5 
to

 8

18
 to

 23
12 to 15

Chapters

S
un

flo
w

er

Furzedown

7
P

av
ili

on

3

6

3

40

Club

2

1

22

8

6

1

6
20

11

17

1

14
10

2

24

2

1

1

37

7

1

5

5

1

4

34

13

5

2

1

1

9

2

2

El Sub Sta

1

1

5

10

STORRINGTON

El

Fn

8

St Mary's

Rectory

Elms

Hall

Tennis

Brackens

Allotment

Pines

LANE

Sunnyside

P
ath (um

)

Path (um)

M
on

as
te

ry

C
or

ne
r

Pilgrim

PRIORY

Sub Sta

Lakeside

HOLLY

Q
uarry

57

20

53

2a

18

Fi
rb

an
k

Br
am

le
y

St Joseph's

R
E

C
TO

R
Y

Saunters

The C
obbles

Horse Croft

Little Glebe

Lady Place

C
ha

nc
to

n

Branscombe

Glebe House

Rectory Cotts
Green Arbor

W
hi

te
 T

im
be

rs

MONASTERY

Heath Cottage

The Glebe Surgery

Catholic Church

Community Centre

Our Lady of England
CHANCTONBURY

18a

1 to 4
1 to 5

15 to 29

Ivy Cottage

St Wilfrids

Tw
itt

en
 E

nd

School House

AMBERLEY ROAD
H

ol
ly

 C
ou

rt

FERN ROAD

12

14
a

Orchid

A
pril C

ottage

Cherry

21A

House

3

6

House

1

1

El
 S

ub
 S

ta

House

House

2

C
ot

ta
ge

H
ouse

2

WALK

5

36

11

C
LO

S
E

4

1

6

21

C
ottage

4 1

1

4

22

C
ottage

C
ottage

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey map with permission of the Controller 
of Her Majesty's Stationery Office © Crown Copyright 2012. 

Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may lead to prosecution or 
civil proceedings.

Scale:

DC/16/2108

Monastery Lane

1:2,500

Organisation
Department
Comments

Date

MSA Number

 
 

Horsham District Council

09/03/2017

100023865

For Business use only - not for distribution to the general public

You created this PDF from an application that is not licensed to print to novaPDF printer (http://www.novapdf.com)

Page 57

http://www.novapdf.com/


This page is intentionally left blank



Contact Officer: Nicola Mason Tel: 01403 215289

PLANNING COMMITTEE 
REPORT

TO: Planning Committee 

BY: Development Manager

DATE: 21 March 2017

DEVELOPMENT:
Erection of a new house on land adjoining Patuca, Bracken Lane, 
Storrington, creation of new vehicular and pedestrian access on to 
Bracken Lane together with minor alterations to Patuca

SITE: Patuca Bracken Lane Storrington Pulborough

WARD: Chanctonbury

APPLICATION: DC/16/2155

APPLICANT: Mr Stuart Oldroyd

REASON FOR INCLUSION ON THE AGENDA: More than eight letters of representation 
contrary to the Officer’s recommendation have 
been received

RECOMMENDATION: To grant planning permission

1. THE PURPOSE OF THIS REPORT

1.1 To consider the planning application.

DESCRIPTION OF THE APPLICATION

1.2 This application seeks full planning permission for the construction of a detached four bed 
room dwelling with integral single garage on land to the south of Patuca.  The proposed 
dwelling would be 10.35 metres wide at its widest point, and 11.65 metres deep at its 
furthest point.  The height of the dwelling would range from 7.5 metres to the ridge to 7.7 
metres due to the slope of the land.  A new vehicular crossover would be provided onto 
Bracken Lane, which is a private road.  As part of the application the existing conservatory 
on the southern elevation of Patuca would be removed, and two windows at first floor level 
blocked up.  New windows would be proposed at first floor level in the western and eastern 
elevation.

DESCRIPTION OF THE SITE

1.3 The application site is located within the built up area boundary of Storrington with the built 
up area boundary running through the garden area immediately to the west of the host 
dwelling Patuca.  Within the area of land to the west of Patuca are a group of trees covered 
by a group Tree Preservation Order.  The site is located to the south of Patuca and also 
forms part of its garden area.  The site is on higher land than the host dwelling which is a 
detached two storey property with a detached double garage.  

Page 59

Agenda Item 7



1.4 The access to the site would be provided from Bracken Lane which is to the east of the 
site.  A section of the fir hedge to the eastern boundary would be removed to form the new 
access, whilst within the site the existing pond would be filled in and three trees removed.  
To the south of the site is the residential dwelling Columbine which is a two storey 
detached property.  The area is characterised by large, detached properties of differing 
designs sited on spacious plots with mature planting giving a semi-rural appearance.

2. INTRODUCTION

STATUTORY BACKGROUND

2.1 The Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

RELEVANT GOVERNMENT POLICY

2.2 National Planning Policy Framework: 
NPPF1 - Building a strong, competitive economy 
NPPF6 - Delivering a wide choice of high quality homes 
NPPF7 - Requiring good design 
NPPF11 - Conserving and enhancing the natural environment 
NPPF14 - Presumption in favour of sustainable development 

RELEVANT COUNCIL POLICY

2.3 Horsham District Planning Framework (HDPF 2015)
HDPF1 - Strategic Policy: Sustainable Development 
HDPF2 - Strategic Policy: Strategic Development 
HDPF3 - Strategic Policy: Development Hierarchy  
HDPF4 - Strategic Policy: Settlement Expansion 
HDPF32 - Strategic Policy: The Quality of New Development 
HDPF33 - Development Principles 
HDPF40 - Sustainable Transport 
HDPF41 - Parking 
HDPF15 - Strategic Policy: Housing Provision 
HDPF24 - Strategic Policy: Environmental Protection 
HDPF25 - Strategic Policy: The Natural Environment and Landscape Character 
HDPF31 - Green Infrastructure and Biodiversity 
HDPF37 - Sustainable Construction 

RELEVANT NEIGHBOURHOOD PLAN

2.4 The Thakeham Neighbourhood Plan will proceed to Referendum following an agreement 
between HDC and Thakeham Parish Council to accept the Examiner's recommendations. 
A decision statement will be prepared and the date of the Referendum will be agreed 
shortly.

PLANNING HISTORY AND RELEVANT APPLICATIONS

T/3/86 Erection of a dwelling and double garage From old 
Planning History

Application Permitted on 
21.02.1986

T/1/94 Erection of new double garage use of existing garage 
as a playroom hobbies room as amended by letter 
received 15 2 94
Site Patula Bracken La Storrington

Application Permitted on 
21.02.1994

T/28/94 1.6 m high fence with landscaping Application Refused on 

Page 60



Site Patuca Bracken Lane Storrington 26.07.1994

T/40/94 Erection of a 1.6 metre high fence Site Patula 
Bracken Lane Storrington

Application Permitted on 
31.01.1995

T/49/95 Use of land as domestic garden Site Patuca Bracken 
Lane Storrington

Application Permitted on 
20.12.1995

T/6/97 Conservatory Site Patuca Bracken Lane Storrington Application Permitted on 
09.04.1997

DC/15/1679 Erection one dwelling and creation of new vehicular 
and pedestrian access

Application Refused on 
19.11.2015

DC/16/0684 Erection one dwelling and creation of new vehicular 
and pedestrian access - Revised scheme

Application Refused on 
18.05.2016

3. OUTCOME OF CONSULTATIONS

3.1 Where consultation responses have been summarised, it should be noted that Officers 
have had consideration of the full comments received, which are available to view on the 
public file at www.horsham.gov.uk.

INTERNAL CONSULTATIONS

3.2 Archaeology – No objection.

OUTSIDE AGENCIES

3.3 West Sussex County Council Highways – No objection, one additional dwelling using 
the Bracken Lane/Rock Road junction would not result in a material intensification of use at 
this point of access.  No highway safety or capacity concerns would be raised to the 
proposal.

PUBLIC CONSULTATIONS

3.4 Thakeham Parish Council – No objection.

3.5 Washington Parish Council – Object, the previous reasons for refusal have not been 
overcome, there would be an increase in traffic in Heath Common and the proposal would 
be an unsympathetic form of development out of character with surrounding development.

3.6 Nineteen letters have been received objecting to the application from fourteen separate 
households on the following grounds;

 Overdevelopment of area
 Contrary to Heath Common Village Design Statement (VDS)
 Proposal would result in further access onto Lanes contrary to VDS
 Reasons for dismissal of appeal remain
 Lanes cannot sustain additional traffic
 Loss of trees
 Not in harmony with general area of large gardens
 Highways safety concerns due to narrow nature of lanes, lack of pavement, visibility at 

junction, and increased danger for walkers, horseriders and cyclists
 Proposal will set a precedent

Page 61



 Noise from extract fans and potential air source heat pumps would have an adverse 
impact on neighbouring properties.

 Site is not previously developed land

3.7 Heath Common Residents Association has also objected to the application on the 
following grounds;

 The proposal does not adequately address concerns raised by appeal Inspector
 Concern remains with regards to the height of the dwelling, the space to the boundary 

and highways.

4. HOW THE PROPOSED COURSE OF ACTION WILL PROMOTE HUMAN RIGHTS

4.1 Article 8 (Right to respect of a Private and Family Life) and Article 1 of the First Protocol 
(Protection of Property) of the Human Rights Act 1998 are relevant to this application, 
Consideration of Human rights forms part of the planning assessment below.

5. HOW THE PROPOSAL WILL HELP TO REDUCE CRIME AND DISORDER

5.1 It is not considered that the development would be likely to have any significant impact on 
crime and disorder.

6. PLANNING ASSESSMENTS

Principle

6.1 The application site is located within the built up area boundary of Storrington and 
Sullington which is categorised as a small town or larger village within policy 3 of the 
HDPF. Small towns or larger villages are categorised as settlements with a good range of 
services and facilities, strong community networks and local employment provision, 
together with reasonable rail and / or bus services. Development will be permitted within 
towns and villages which have defined built up areas provided that any infilling or 
redevelopment can demonstrate that it is of an appropriate nature and scale to maintain the 
characteristics and function of the settlement.   The principle of development is therefore 
considered acceptable subject to detailed considerations. The built up area boundary in 
this instance  is located to the rear of the residential dwelling Patuca, with the dwelling itself 
located within the built up area boundary and the rear garden located outside of the defined 
built up area boundary.  The proposed dwelling would be sited within the built up area 
boundary whilst its garden similarly to the host dwelling Patuca would be outside of the 
defined built up area boundary. 

Character and appearance

6.2 Policy 33 of the Horsham District Planning Framework, which reflects guidance within the 
NPPF, seeks to ensure that development is of a high quality, well designed and takes 
account of the existing character of the area.  The site is located within Heath Common, 
with the Heath Common Village Design Statement stating that new dwellings should:-

 reflect the traditional styles of the Heath Common Area, 
 any new dwellings should reflect the topography of the site, nestle within the contours 

and blend sympathetically with the surrounding environment, 
 proposals should demonstrate the size of the planned building is appropriate for the 

plot size, setting and overall context of the area,  

Page 62



 Any new single dwelling development must not create a new access onto the Lanes 
network

 Any new dwellings should not be of a height which would dominate nearby dwellings, 
thereby leading to a loss of amenity for neighbours.

6.3 The site has been the subject of two previous applications for a single dwelling which were 
refused, reference DC/16/0684 and DC/15/1679.  The most recent application, 
DC/15/1679, was dismissed at appeal. The Inspectors decision is a material consideration 
in the determination of the current application.  The Inspector noted that the main issues in 
the determination of the application were the effect of the proposal on the character and 
appearance of the area.  The Inspector noted that the “proposal would be within an existing 
built up area where, subject to other policy considerations, there would be no objections to 
the principle of a new dwelling.  As shown by the appellant’s density analysis of the 
surrounding pattern of 33 dwellings, this scheme would reflect the average built density of 
development in this general location.” 

6.4 With regards to the immediate confines of the site and the scale of the previous scheme 
the Inspector noted the “proposal would not reflect the character of the well-proportioned 
dwellings set in spacious plots.  The dwelling proposed would be of bulky proportions, 
providing for the appearance of substantial mass, and due to the relatively short distances 
to the boundary to either side, would appear cramped and visually over-dominant in 
comparison with the spacing and design of the nearby surrounding housing.”

6.5 The proposed dwelling has been reduced in size and the distance to the boundaries of the 
site increased, notably it has been reduced in width from 17.2 metres to 10.5 metres with 
the ridge height reduced from 8.5 metres to 7.7 metres.  The current scheme increases the 
separation distances to 8.15m to Patuca (from 3m) and 14.1m to Columbine (from 12.7m). 

6.6 It is considered that the reduction in the size of the dwelling and its repositioning in the site 
overcomes the previous reasons for refusal relating to the size of the dwelling and its 
impact on the character of the area raised by the appeal Inspector.  It is considered that the 
reduction in the height of the dwelling results in the dwelling integrating with its 
surroundings and would not be overly dominant.  The surrounding plots are a mixture of 
plot sizes, including those comparable to the application site, notably Columbine - 
immediately to the south. 

6.7 The proposed siting reflects adjoining properties and would not impact upon any protected 
trees, which are located to the rear of the site (rather than the frontage).  A Tree Protection 
Plan has been submitted and a condition recommended to secure that appropriate 
measures are put in place during construction works.  The impact on trees was not raised 
as a concern as part of previous applications on the site, and there are no reasons to take 
a different view as part of the current application.

6.8 For the reasons outlined it is considered that the proposed dwelling would be appropriate 
to its plot size and would enable the character and appearance of the area to be 
maintained.  It is considered that the proposed layout would now retain the character of 
spaciousness identified by the appeal Inspector and therefore the proposal would meet the 
requirements of policy 32 and 33 of the HDPF and the design requirements reflected in the 
NPPF.

Impact on neighbouring amenity

6.9 The creation of an additional dwelling into an established residential area would not be 
expected to generate harmful levels of noise or disturbance for adjoining residents.  The 
dwelling would be sited a considerable distance from shared boundaries, with the resulting 
separation sufficient to prevent any harmful loss of light or outlook to neighbouring 

Page 63



properties.  It is therefore considered the amenity impacts of the proposal are acceptable, 
and accord with policy 33 of the HDPF.

Highways

6.10 Concern has been raised with regards to the highways access, and the increase in use of 
the Lanes.  The Highway Authority has considered the proposal and has stated that one 
additional dwelling using the Bracken Lane/Rock Road junction would not result in a 
material intensification of use at this point of access.  

6.11 The proposal would result in the provision of 4 parking spaces (one within a garage) which 
would meet the requirements of the WSCC Parking Calculator.  The Highways Authority 
has carefully considered the application and do not consider that the proposal would have 
a ‘severe’ impact on the operation of the Highway network.  Paragraph 32 of the NPPF 
states that ‘development should only be prevented or refused on transport grounds where 
the residual cumulative impacts of development are severe’. 

6.12 It is also noted that the previous proposals were not refused on highway impact, and there 
is no material change in circumstance in highways terms since the previous decisions were 
made. 

Conclusion

6.13 It is considered that the proposed development would represent a form of development 
which would retain the character of the streetscene and would not appear overly prominent.  
It is considered that the proposed dwelling would reflect the grain of development within the 
locality.  It is therefore considered that the proposal complies with policy 32, 33 and 41 of 
the HDPF.

7. RECOMMENDATIONS

7.1 That the application is approved subject to the following conditions;

1 A list of the approved plans

2 Standard Time Condition:  The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the 
expiration of three years from the date of this permission.

Reason:  To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

3 Pre-Commencement Condition:  No development shall commence, including demolition 
pursuant to the permission granted, ground clearance, or bringing equipment, machinery or 
materials onto the site, until the following preliminaries have been completed in the 
sequence set out below:

- All trees on the site shown for retention on approved drawing number MD4, as well as 
those off-site whose root protection areas ingress into the site, shall be fully protected 
by tree protective fencing affixed to the ground in full accordance with section 6 of BS 
5837 'Trees in Relation to Design, Demolition and Construction - Recommendations' 
(2012). 

- Once installed, the fencing shall be maintained during the course of the development 
works and until all machinery and surplus materials have been removed from the site. 

- Areas so fenced off shall be treated as zones of prohibited access, and shall not be 
used for the storage of materials, equipment or machinery in any circumstances. No 
mixing of cement, concrete, or use of other materials or substances shall take place 

Page 64



within any tree protective zone, or close enough to such a zone that seepage or 
displacement of those materials and substances could cause them to enter a zone. 

Reason:  As this matter is fundamental to ensure the successful and satisfactory retention 
of important trees and hedgerows on the site in accordance with Policy 33 of the Horsham 
District Planning Framework (2015).

 4 Pre-Commencement Condition:  No development shall commence until full details of 
underground services, including locations, dimensions and depths of all service facilities 
and required ground excavations, have been submitted to and approved by the Local 
Planning Authority in writing.  The submitted details shall show accordance with the 
approved landscaping scheme and Arboricultural Method Statement.  The development 
shall thereafter be carried out in accordance with the approved details. 

Reason:  As this matter is fundamental to the acceptable delivery of this permission, to 
ensure the underground services do not conflict with satisfactory development in the 
interests of amenity in accordance with Policy 33 of the Horsham District Planning 
Framework (2015).

5 Pre-Commencement Condition:  No development shall commence until a drainage 
strategy detailing the proposed means of foul and surface water disposal has been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  The development 
shall be carried out in accordance with the approved scheme.

Reason:  As this matter is fundamental to ensure that the development is properly drained 
and to comply with Policy 38 of the Horsham District Planning Framework (2015).

6 Pre-Commencement Condition:  No development shall take place, including any works of 
demolition, until a Construction Method Statement has been submitted to, and approved in 
writing by, the local planning authority. The approved Statement shall be adhered to 
throughout the construction period. The Statement shall provide for, but not be limited to:

i. the parking of vehicles of site operatives and visitors
ii. loading and unloading of plant and materials 
iii. storage of plant and materials used in constructing the development 
iv. the erection and maintenance of security hoarding, where appropriate
v. the provision of wheel washing facilities if necessary
vi. measures to control the emission of dust and dirt during construction 
vii. a scheme for recycling/disposing of waste resulting from demolition and construction 

works

Reason:  As this matter is fundamental in order to consider the potential impacts on the 
amenity of neighbouring properties; during construction and in accordance with Policy 33 of 
the Horsham District Planning Framework (2015).

7 Pre-Commencement (Slab Level) Condition:  No development above ground floor slab 
level of any part of the development hereby permitted shall take place until a schedule of 
materials and finishes and colours to be used for external walls, windows and roofs of the 
approved building(s) has been submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority 
in writing and all materials used in the construction of the development hereby permitted 
shall conform to those approved.

Reason:  As this matter is fundamental to enable the Local Planning Authority to control the 
development in detail in the interests of amenity by endeavouring to achieve a building of 
visual quality in accordance with Policy 33 of the Horsham District Planning Framework 
(2015).

Page 65



 8 Pre-Occupation Condition:  Prior to the first occupation (or use) of any part of the 
development hereby permitted, full details of the hard and soft landscaping works shall be 
submitted to and approved, in writing, by the Local Planning Authority.  The approved 
landscape scheme shall be fully implemented in accordance with the approved details 
within the first planting season following the first occupation of any part of the development.  
Any plants, which within a period of 5 years, die, are removed, or become seriously 
damaged or diseased shall be replaced in the next planting season with others of similar 
size and species unless the Local Planning Authority gives written consent to any variation. 

Reason:  To ensure a satisfactory development that is sympathetic to the landscape and 
townscape character and built form of the surroundings, and in the interests of visual 
amenity in accordance with Policy 33 of the Horsham District Planning Framework (2015).

 9 Pre-Occupation Condition:  No dwelling hereby permitted shall be occupied (or use 
hereby permitted commenced) unless and until provision for the storage of refuse/recycling 
has been made for that dwelling (or use) in accordance with details to be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  These facilities shall thereafter be 
retained for use at all times.

Reason:  To ensure the adequate provision of recycling facilities in accordance with Policy 
33 of the Horsham District Planning Framework (2015).

10 Pre-Occupation Condition:  No dwelling hereby permitted shall be occupied or use 
hereby permitted commenced until the cycle parking facilities serving it have been 
constructed and made available for use in accordance with approved drawing number PL-
08 Rev D.  The cycle parking facilities shall thereafter be retained as such for their 
designated use. 

Reason:  To ensure that there is adequate provision for the parking of cycles in accordance 
with Policy 40 of the Horsham District Planning Framework (2015).

11 Pre-Occupation Condition:  Prior to the first occupation (or use) of any part of the 
development hereby permitted, visibility splays for the access(es) serving the development 
shall be provided in accordance with details which have been submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority.  Once provided the splays shall thereafter be 
maintained and kept free of all obstructions over a height of 0.6 metre above adjoining 
carriageway level or as otherwise agreed.

Reason:  In the interests of road safety and in accordance with Policy 40 of the Horsham 
District Planning Framework (2015).

12 Pre-Occupation Condition:  Prior to the first occupation (or use) of any part of the 
development hereby permitted, the parking turning and access facilities shall be 
implemented in accordance with the approved details as shown on plan 15078/TK04 and 
shall be thereafter retained as such.  

Reason:  To ensure adequate parking, turning and access facilities are available to serve 
the development in accordance with Policy 40 of the Horsham District Planning Framework 
(2015).

13 Regulatory Condition:  Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning 
(General Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 or Orders amending or revoking 
and re-enacting the same, no gate, fence, wall or other means of enclosure shall be 
erected or constructed in front of the forward most part of any proposed building which 

Page 66



fronts onto a highway without express planning consent from the Local Planning Authority 
first being obtained. 

Reason:  In order to safeguard the character and visual amenities of the locality and/or 
highway safety and in accordance with Policy 33 of the Horsham District Planning 
Framework (2015).

Background Papers: DC/16/2155, DC/15/1679 & DC/16/0684

Page 67



This page is intentionally left blank



Works

55.6m

High
Banks

Keepings

Overlea

St Josephs

Longmead

Brakefern

Columbine

Oaklands

Three Gables

Silver Birches

P
at

uc
a

El Sub Sta

ROCK ROAD

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey map with permission of the Controller 
of Her Majesty's Stationery Office © Crown Copyright 2012. 

Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may lead to prosecution or 
civil proceedings.

Scale:

DC/16/2155

Patuca, Bracken Lane

1:1,250

Organisation
Department
Comments

Date

MSA Number

 
 

Horsham District Council

09/03/2017

100023865

For Business use only - not for distribution to the general public

You created this PDF from an application that is not licensed to print to novaPDF printer (http://www.novapdf.com)

Page 69

http://www.novapdf.com/


This page is intentionally left blank



Contact Officer: Tamara Dale Tel: 01403 215166

PLANNING COMMITTEE 
REPORT

TO: Planning Committee South

BY: Development Manager

DATE: 21 March 2017

DEVELOPMENT:
Extension of existing Camp Site to provide 50 additional pitches to be 
used from 1st March - 30th September each year and regularisation of 
track and washing up sinks

SITE: Blacklands Farm Camping Blacklands Farm Wheatsheaf Road Henfield

WARD: Henfield

APPLICATION: DC/16/2915

APPLICANT: Mr Neil & Grahame Goodridge

REASON FOR INCLUSION ON THE AGENDA:  At the request of Councillor O’Connell

RECOMMENDATION: To permit application subject to conditions

1. THE PURPOSE OF THIS REPORT

1.1 To consider the planning application.

DESCRIPTION OF THE APPLICATION

1.2 The application seeks full planning permission for the extension of the existing campsite to 
provide an additional 50 tent / caravan pitches for use during 1st March and 30th 
September each year.  The existing campsite is referred to as ‘field 1’ with the proposed 
extension within ‘field 2’.

1.2 The application also seeks the retention of the wash facilities located to the north-west 
corner of the site and the retention of access tracks that run along the western and 
northern boundaries.  The washing facilities measure to a width of 9m and a depth of 2m, 
incorporating a mono-pitched roof extending to an overall height of 2.1m. The structure is 
timber clad, provided washing facilities for the existing and proposed campsite.  The 
access tracks run along the boundary edge and are proposed for use in conjunction with 
the campsite, as well as the agricultural undertaking within the wider site.

DESCRIPTION OF THE SITE

1.3 The application site is positioned to the north of Wheatsheaf Road, outside of any 
designated built-up area.  The buildings subject to the application are positioned to the 
north-east of the site, with the surroundings characterised by open countryside. The fields 
are bound by hedging and post and rail fencing, with the site subject to use as a formal 
campsite and agricultural use.

Page 71

Agenda Item 8



1.4 The site subject of this application, and a number of adjoining fields, are currently used for 
camping under the 28-day rule, as set out in the Town & Country Planning (General 
Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015, and this use does not require planning 
permission.

2. INTRODUCTION

STATUTORY BACKGROUND

2.1 The Town and Country Planning Act 1990

RELEVANT GOVERNMENT POLICY

2.2 National Planning Policy Framework: 
NPPF1 - Building a strong, competitive economy 
NPPF3 - Supporting a prosperous rural economy 
NPPF4 - Promoting sustainable transport 
NPPF7 - Requiring good design 
NPPF11 - Conserving and enhancing the natural environment 
NPPF14 - Presumption in favour of sustainable development 

RELEVANT COUNCIL POLICY

2.3 Horsham District Planning Framework (HDPF 2015)
HDPF1 - Strategic Policy: Sustainable Development 
HDPF2 - Strategic Policy: Strategic Development 
HDPF3 - Strategic Policy: Development Hierarchy  
HDPF10 - Rural Economic Development 
HDPF11 - Tourism and Cultural Facilities 
HDPF24 - Strategic Policy: Environmental Protection 
HDPF25 - Strategic Policy: The Natural Environment and Landscape Character 
HDPF32 - Strategic Policy: The Quality of New Development 
HDPF33 - Development Principles 
HDPF40 - Sustainable Transport 
HDPF41 - Parking 
HDPF42 - Strategic Policy: Inclusive Communities 
HDPF43 - Community Facilities, Leisure and Recreation

RELEVANT NEIGHBOURHOOD PLAN

2.4 Henfield Neighbourhood Development Plan 2015 – 2035
Following a court decision on 13 October 2016, Henfield Neighbourhood Development 
Plan has been quashed. The Parish Council is currently considering how they will move 
forward. Henfield Parish continues to be covered by the Horsham District Local Plan, and 
this plan remains the current and up to date plan for the area.

PLANNING HISTORY

HF/37/00 Certificate of lawful use for storage of caravans Application Refused on 
25.07.2001

HF/123/00 Two-storey side & rear extensions Application Permitted on 
30.11.2000

DC/08/1909 Provision of caravan and camping site for a 
maximum of 75 pitches in Field 1, erection of a toilet 

Application Permitted on 
09.04.2009

Page 72



and washing facilities building and retention of farm 
office and camping reception office and additional 
landscaping.

DC/08/1910 Retention of existing caravan and camping site for a 
maximum total of 100 pitches, consisting 50 in Field 
1 and 50 in Field 2.  Replacement of existing toilet 
and washing facilities and retention of existing farm 
office and camping reception office and additional 
landscaping

Application Refused on 
03.12.2008

DC/13/0532 Construction of 6 log cabins for use as holiday 
accommodation

Application Permitted on 
23.07.2013

DC/16/2517 Regularisation of toilet and shower blocks and 
reception and ancillary camp site shop building 
associated with Blacklands Farm Campsite

Application Permitted on 
09.01.2017

DC/16/2912 Commercial Fishing of the lake and four ponds on 
site as shown on drawing numbers 2016/105/PL6 
and 2016/105/PL8 (Lawful Development Certificate - 
Existing)

Application Permitted on 
09.03.2017

3. OUTCOME OF CONSULTATIONS

3.1 Where consultation responses have been summarised, it should be noted that Officers 
have had consideration of the full comments received, which are available to view on the 
public file at www.horsham.gov.uk. 

INTERNAL CONSULTATIONS

3.2 Landscape Architect Officer: No comment.

3.3 Public Health and Licensing: No objection, subject to conditions.

OUTSIDE AGENCIES

3.4 County Council - Public Rights of Way: No Objection.

3.5 County Council – Highways: Any comments will be reported verbally at Planning 
Committee.

PUBLIC CONSULTATIONS

3.6 Henfield Parish Council: No objection.

3.7 Shermanbury Parish Council: Concerns regarding the use of the field and the surrounding 
footpaths, which from their assessment, were unclearly indicated on the submitted plans.

3.8 8 letters of support were received, and these can be summarised as follows:

 Encourages local business and employment within the area
 Provides recreational opportunities and use of the countryside

3.9 8 letters of objection were received, and these can be summarised as follows:

 Noise pollution
 Litter disposal along public footpaths
 Traffic impact

Page 73

http://www.horsham.gov.uk/


 Abuse of 28-day permitted development allowance

3.10 Any further representations will be reported at Planning Committee.

4. HOW THE PROPOSED COURSE OF ACTION WILL PROMOTE HUMAN RIGHTS

4.1 Article 8 (Right to respect of a Private and Family Life) and Article 1 of the First Protocol 
(Protection of Property) of the Human Rights Act 1998 are relevant to this application, 
Consideration of Human rights forms part of the planning assessment below.

5. HOW THE PROPOSAL WILL HELP TO REDUCE CRIME AND DISORDER

5.1 It is not considered that the development would be likely to have any significant impact on 
crime and disorder.

6. PLANNING ASSESSMENTS

6.1 The application seeks full planning permission for the extension of the existing campsite to 
provide 50 pitches seasonally between 1st March and 30th September, and the retention of 
the access tracks and washing facilities.

Principle of Development

6.2 Policies 10 and 11 of the HDPF state that sustainable rural economic development and 
enterprise which promotes tourism will be encouraged in order to generate local 
employment opportunities and economic, social and environmental benefits for local 
communities.

6.3 The existing campsite has been running for the past 8 years and has proven to be a 
popular facility within the District, with pressure now arising for additional pitches.  The 
application therefore proposes use of an additional field (‘Field 2’) on a permanent basis for 
camping between 1st March and 30th September each year, with the field reverting to 
agricultural use outside of these months.

6.4 The application site is located within close proximity to a number of footpaths and public 
bridleways, with the settlement of Henfield and the South Downs National Park in close 
proximity.  The proposal would encourage recreational use within a countryside location 
and would support, further enhance and diversify the existing campsite. The proposal is 
considered to encourage informal recreation within the countryside, as well as support the 
sustainable development of the rural area. Whilst the proposal would extend the campsite 
further into the countryside, in principle, the nature of the proposed use is considered to be 
of a scale appropriate to the character and location of the area, whilst improving the range 
and quality of facilities for visitors.   

6.5 The proposed use for 50 x tent/caravan pitches within Field 2 is therefore considered to 
contribute to sustainable rural economic development, supporting and enabling the 
recreational use of the countryside.  As such, the proposal is considered to accord with 
Policies 10, 11 and 26 of the HDPF.

Landscape character of the site and surroundings

6.7 Policies 25, 32 and 33 promote development which is of high quality and design, and is 
sympathetic to the distinctiveness of the dwelling and surroundings. Development should 

Page 74



protect, conserve and enhance the landscape character, taking account of the nature 
environment, landscape and landform pattern to which it forms a part.

6.8 A previous application was refused for the provision of a total of 100 tent / caravan pitches, 
50 pitches to ‘field 1’ and 50 pitches to ‘field 2’ (ref: DC/08/1910).  As part of this application 
it was considered that ‘field 2’ was visible in distant views from higher ground to the north-
east and from surrounding residential properties, with the proposal resulting in harm to the 
countryside location, particularly in terms of visual impact, noise and air pollution, and 
general level of activity associated with the campsite.  

6.9 Since this decision in 2008 additional landscaping has been undertaken, including the 
planting of new hedgerows and trees, to the south of the site and all field boundaries.  This 
landscaping was undertaken to further screen the site and mitigate the visual impact of the 
use on the wider surroundings.

6.10 The application site is approximately 200m from the public highway and approximately 
180m from the nearest neighbouring dwelling.  The landscaping of the site, which is greater 
than that present in 2008, includes woodland to the north and south, and field boundaries 
to the north, east and west that are highly vegetated with hedging and planting.  In this 
context it is considered that the proposed use of ‘field 2’ between March and September 
each year would not result in demonstrable harm to the landscape character of the area, 
particularly given the established and lawful use of the neighbouring field (‘field 1’) as a 
campsite.  The site would revert to agricultural use outside of the proposed camping 
season, when the site would be most visible.

6.11 The washing facilities are built of timber and are positioned along the western boundary of 
Field 2.  These are considered to be of a reasonable scale and are sited in an area that 
would limit visual prominence and impact. The structure is considered to relate 
sympathetically with the landscape character and rural context of the site and wider 
surroundings.

6.12 The tracks as built provides access to the western and northern sections of the field for 
vehicles. The tracks have been constructed of Type 1 MOT that has a dark finish, and 
these are considered to be consistent with the landscape character and rural nature of the 
surroundings. 

6.13 It is considered, for the reasons outlined above, that the proposed pitches, along with the 
washing-up facilities and access tracks, would not be harmful or erode the landscape 
character and appearance of the site and surroundings, in accordance with Policies 25, 32 
and 33 of the HDPF.

Amenities of the occupiers of adjoining properties

6.14 Policy 33 states that development should consider the scale, massing and orientation 
between buildings, respecting the amenities and sensitivities of neighbouring properties.

6.15 It is recognised that sporadic residential development is positioned to the north, south and 
west of the site, albeit at a substantial distance from Field 2. Whilst the proposed camping 
use would contribute to an increased level of activity it is considered that the distance 
between the site and neighbouring properties would mitigate the potential for harm.  The 
Environmental Health Team has raised no objections subject to conditions, and these are 
recommended in order to protect neighbouring amenity.  Subject to these conditions the 
proposal would accord with Policy 33 of the HDPF.  

Existing Parking and Traffic Conditions

Page 75



6.16 Policies 40 and 41 of the HDPF states that development should provide safe and adequate 
access and parking, suitable for all users.

6.17 The proposal would utilise existing access arrangements to the campsite and no objection 
is raised to this arrangement; any comments from the Highway Authority will be reported at 
the Committee meeting.  The tracks within the site provide access to the western and 
northern sections of the field for vehicles in association with both the campsite and wider 
agricultural use.  These have been constructed of Type 1 MOT that has a dark finish. This 
is a form of sub-base that has good load bearing quality and is commonly used for 
hardstanding, driveways, and footpaths. This finish, at the width proposed, is considered to 
provide adequate access to the site, and as such is considered to accord with Policies 40 
and 41 of the HDPF.  

Conclusion

6.18 The proposed extension to the camp site, to provide an additional 50 pitches, is considered 
to further diversify and enhance the facilities and recreational provision of the camp site, 
and is not considered to result in severe harm to the visual amenities and landscape 
character of the area. Furthermore, subject to conditions, the proposal is not considered to 
harm the amenities of neighbouring properties. As such, the proposal is considered to 
accord with Policies 10, 11, 25, 26, 32, 33, 40, and 41 of the Horsham District Planning 
Framework (2015). 

7. RECOMMENDATIONS

7.1 That planning permission be granted subject to the following conditions:-

1 A listed of the approved plans

2 The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years 
from the date of this permission.

Reason: To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

3 The hereby approved use shall not commence until a Site Management Plan for the 
campsite has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority.  The Site Management Plan shall include the following:-

 Where bins and recycling bins would be located;
 How waste would be disposed of and how frequently;
 How the site would be split between tents and caravans;
 Applicant to notify the Local Planning Authority that there are no caravans on site 

between 1st October and 28th/29th February each year;
 How the site will be laid out, details to include water points, waste water disposal, 

electrical safety and fire prevention;
 A log book shall be kept of all bookings/movements and shall include the date of 

arrival and departure of persons staying at the campsite and the field to which the 
individual/group is stationed;

The development shall subsequently be undertaken in accordance with the approved 
Site Management Plan unless alternative details are agreed in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority.

Page 76



Reasons: In the interests of amenity for site users and surrounding residential 
properties, and in accordance with Policy 33 of the Horsham District Planning 
Framework (2015). 

4 The campsite hereby approved shall not be occupied between 1st October and 28th/29th 
February of each year, and all caravans and tents shall be removed from the site 
between October and February each year.

Reason: In the interests of visual and neighbouring amenity and in accordance with 
Policies 25, 26 and 33 of the Horsham District Planning Framework (2015).

5 The development hereby approved shall be used for touring caravans and tents and 
for no other purpose (including any other purpose in any Class in the Schedule to the 
Town and Country Planning (Use Classes) Order 1987.

Reason: Changes of use as permitted by the Town and Country Planning (General 
Permitted Development) Order 2015 are not considered appropriate in this case under 
Policies 25, 26 and 33 of the Horsham District Planning Framework (2015).

6 The total number of caravans and tents combined on the site identified as ‘Field 2’ on 
the approved plans shall at no time exceed 50.

Reason: To avoid an overcrowded appearance and to secure satisfactory standards of 
space and amenity in accordance with Policies 33 and 43 of the Horsham District 
Planning Framework (2015).

7 No individual touring caravan / tent / caravanette shall remain on the site for a period 
longer than 4 weeks in any one year.

Reason: To protect the appearance and character of the area and to ensure that 
adequate provision is retained for use of touring caravans / tents / caravanettes, in 
accordance with Policy 43 of the Horsham District Planning Framework (2015).

8 The site shall not be used for the parking of vehicles in use for any trade or business, 
or for any other aspect of a business or commercial activity other than that normally 
ancillary to the operation of a touring caravan site.

Reason: To protect the visual amenities and landscape character of the area, and the 
amenities of residents in the area, in accordance with Policies 25, 26 and 33 of the 
Horsham District Planning Framework (2015).

9 No amplified music shall be played at the site.

Reason:  To safeguard the amenities of nearby residents in accordance with Policy 33 
of the Horsham District Planning Framework (2015).

NOTE TO APPLICANT
An increased number of toilets, basins, and sinks may be needed for the increased number 
of pitches. This requirement will be covered by the Caravan Site Licence, but the applicant 
should ensure that planning permission is gained, if required, for any increase in buildings 
required to house these.

Background Papers: DC/16/2915

Page 77



This page is intentionally left blank



Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey map with permission of the Controller 
of Her Majesty's Stationery Office © Crown Copyright 2012. 

Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may lead to prosecution or 
civil proceedings.

Scale:

DC/16/2915

Blacklands Farm Camping

1:5,000

Organisation
Department
Comments

Date

MSA Number

 
 

Horsham District Council

09/03/2017

100023865

For Business use only - not for distribution to the general public

You created this PDF from an application that is not licensed to print to novaPDF printer (http://www.novapdf.com)

Page 79

http://www.novapdf.com/


This page is intentionally left blank



Contact Officer: Tamara Dale Tel: 01403 215166

PLANNING COMMITTEE 
REPORT

TO: Planning Committee South

BY: Development Manager

DATE: 21 March 2017

DEVELOPMENT: Regularisation of timber bridges

SITE: Blacklands Farm Wheatsheaf Road Henfield West Sussex

WARD: Henfield

APPLICATION: DC/16/2522

APPLICANT: Mr Grahame & Neil Goodridge

REASON FOR INCLUSION ON THE AGENDA: At the discretion of the Development Manager

RECOMMENDATION: To permit the application

1. THE PURPOSE OF THIS REPORT

1.1 To consider the planning application.

DESCRIPTION OF THE APPLICATION

1.2 The application seeks full planning permission to retain 2 bridges that have been erected 
over a pond to the north-east section of the site.

1.3 Bridge 1 connects the eastern and western fields and extends to a length of 21m and a 
width of 2.4m. Bridge 2 connects the western field to an island within the pond, and 
extends to a length of 9.8m, and a width of 0.8m. Both bridges are built of untreated timber, 
with mulch laid along both entrances to provide vehicular access over the bridge.

1.4 It is stated within the supporting documentation that the bridges are required in order to 
access the back fields of the site for agricultural and maintenance purposes.

DESCRIPTION OF THE SITE

1.5 The application site is positioned to the north of Wheatsheaf Road, outside of any 
designated built-up area.  The bridges subject to the application are positioned to the north-
east of the site, with the surroundings characterised by open countryside. The fields are 
bound by hedging and post and rail fencing, with the site subject to use as a formal 
campsite and agricultural use.

Page 81

Agenda Item 9



2. INTRODUCTION

STATUTORY BACKGROUND

2.1 The Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

RELEVANT GOVERNMENT POLICY

2.2 National Planning Policy Framework: 
NPPF1 - Building a strong, competitive economy 
NPPF3 - Supporting a prosperous rural economy 
NPPF7 - Requiring good design 
NPPF11 - Conserving and enhancing the natural environment 
NPPF14 - Presumption in favour of sustainable development 

RELEVANT COUNCIL POLICY

2.3 Horsham District Planning Framework (HDPF 2015)
HDPF1 - Strategic Policy: Sustainable Development 
HDPF2 - Strategic Policy: Strategic Development 
HDPF10 - Rural Economic Development 
HDPF11 - Tourism and Cultural Facilities 
HDPF25 - Strategic Policy: The Natural Environment and Landscape Character 
HDPF26 - Strategic Policy: Countryside Protection 
HDPF32 - Strategic Policy: The Quality of New Development 
HDPF33 - Development Principles 
HDPF43 - Community Facilities, Leisure and Recreation 

RELEVANT NEIGHBOURHOOD PLAN

2.4 Henfield Neighbourhood Development Plan 2015 – 2035
Following a court decision on 13 October 2016, Henfield Neighbourhood Development 
Plan has been quashed. The Parish Council is currently considering how they will move 
forward. Henfield Parish continues to be covered by the Horsham District Local Plan, and 
this plan remains the current and up to date plan for the area.

PLANNING HISTORY

HF/36/49 Pig sties Application Permitted on 
08.02.1950

HF/92/61 Site for house for own occupation Application Permitted on 
03.01.1962

HF/67/88 Erection of warehousing and light industrial units. Application Refused on 
31.08.1988

HF/2/96 Erection of pig buildings Application Permitted on 
26.03.1996

HF/37/00 Certificate of lawful use for storage of caravans Application Refused on 
25.07.2001

HF/122/02 Continued use of land and buildings for b1 and b8 
uses

Application Permitted on 
13.08.2003

HF/123/02 Certificate of lawful use for storage of caravans Application Permitted on 
17.09.2003

Page 82



DC/08/1909 Provision of caravan and camping site for a 
maximum of 75 pitches in Field 1, erection of a toilet 
and washing facilities building and retention of farm 
office and camping reception office and additional 
landscaping.

Application Permitted on 
09.04.2009

DC/08/1910 Retention of existing caravan and camping site for a 
maximum total of 100 pitches, consisting 50 in Field 
1 and 50 in Field 2.  Replacement of existing toilet 
and washing facilities and retention of existing farm 
office and camping reception office and additional 
landscaping

Application Refused on 
03.12.2008

DC/09/0873 Retrospective application to change the use of former 
farm buildings B1 (Business) and B8 (Storage and 
distribution) uses

Application Permitted on 
16.07.2009

DC/10/0811 Retrospective change of use of approved B1 light 
industrial unit and retention of existing office and 
restroom for use by VW Kampers Ltd in connection 
with their business at Blacklands Farm, Wheatsheaf 
Road, Henfield, West Sussex

Application Permitted on 
22.06.2010

DC/13/0532 Construction of 6 log cabins for use as holiday 
accommodation

Application Permitted on 
23.07.2013

DC/16/2517 Regularisation of toilet and shower blocks and 
reception and ancillary camp site shop building 
associated with Blacklands Farm Campsite

Application Permitted on 
09.01.2017

DC/16/2912 Commercial Fishing of the lake and four ponds on 
site as shown on drawing numbers 2016/105/PL6 
and 2016/105/PL8 (Lawful Development Certificate - 
Existing)

Application Permitted on 
09.03.2017

3. OUTCOME OF CONSULTATIONS

3.1 Where consultation responses have been summarised, it should be noted that Officers 
have had consideration of the full comments received, which are available to view on the 
public file at www.horsham.gov.uk. 

INTERNAL CONSULTATIONS

3.2 N/A

OUTSIDE AGENCIES

3.3 N/A

PUBLIC CONSULTATIONS

3.4 Parish Council Consultation: No Objection.

4. HOW THE PROPOSED COURSE OF ACTION WILL PROMOTE HUMAN RIGHTS

4.1 Article 8 (Right to respect of a Private and Family Life) and Article 1 of the First Protocol 
(Protection of Property) of the Human Rights Act 1998 are relevant to this application, 
Consideration of Human rights forms part of the planning assessment below.

Page 83

http://www.horsham.gov.uk/


5. HOW THE PROPOSAL WILL HELP TO REDUCE CRIME AND DISORDER

5.1 It is not considered that the development would be likely to have any significant impact on 
crime and disorder.

6. PLANNING ASSESSMENTS

6.1 The application seeks full planning permission for the retention of 2 x timber bridges that 
have been erected over the pond within the site.

Principle of Development

6.2 Policy 26 states that development outside of built-up boundaries must be essential to its 
countryside location, and in addition meet one of the following criteria: support the needs of 
agriculture or forestry; enable the extraction of minerals of the disposal of waste; provide 
for quiet informal recreational use; or enable the sustainable development of rural areas.

 
6.3 The bridges subject to the application are positioned over the main pond within the site, to 

the north-east of the main field of the established campsite.  It is stated within the submitted 
Planning Statement that the surrounding fields are used for agriculture to graze sheep and 
make hay in the spring, with the field to the west of the pond used for camping 28 days in 
each year (for which no planning permission is required).

6.4 Bridge 1 extends over the pond, providing access between the fields to the north-east. It is 
stated within the supporting information that the bridge is essential to its countryside 
location as it provides access on a daily basis in order to undertake checks of the sheep 
and farmland, whilst also providing an ease of movement that limits the need to traverse 
around the pond. The supporting documentation further states that Bridge 2 provides 
pedestrian access to an island within the pond, with access required to maintain vegetation 
as well as the resident mink population without having to hire a boat or waders. 

6.5 Whilst it is noted that the farm still has over 100 sheep grazing the land, with hay produced 
from the fields, the wider site has diversified from its initial agricultural use.  Since 2008 the 
wider site has been lawfully used as a formal campsite, which under planning approval 
DC/08/1909 was given permission for 75 tent and caravan pitches, with a further 6 
woodland log cabins subsequently permitted under planning reference DC/13/0532. 

6.6 The applicant considers that the erected bridges are essential to its countryside location in 
order to provide access and ease of movement for daily agricultural needs. It is recognised 
that the bridges allow for access and movement between fields, this is though considered 
desirable rather than essential given the other access means provided around the site. In 
addition, given the recent diversification of the site the direct requirement for the bridges 
and the agricultural need is limited.

6.7 As such, whilst the need for the bridges to support the agricultural undertaking is of some 
weight the bridges would also most likely be used in connection with the camp site. 
Currently, the campsite comprises a permanent field to the south-east of the bridges, a 
number of adjoining fields used for 28 days of the year under permitted development rights, 
with a current application (ref: DC/16/2915) seeking to permanently expand the operation 
to the adjoining field to the south of the pond.  The potential to provide access across the 
pond not only for agricultural needs but also for recreational purposes linked with the 
campsite is therefore considered to be significant. 

Page 84



6.8 Whilst direct access to the agricultural fields under the applicant’s ownership would 
improve efficiency and manoeuvrability around the site, direct pedestrian and vehicular 
access to the northern fields, and the surrounding public footpaths/bridleways, would 
further enhance the facilities and accessibility of the camp site, as well as providing 
improved recreational access to the countryside.  It is therefore considered that the 
retention of the bridges for both agricultural and recreational purposes would be beneficial 
to the function and use of the site and wider countryside as a whole. 

6.9 Furthermore, it is noted that a lawful development certificate was recently granted to 
establish that a lake and 4 ponds on the wider site had been used for commercial fishing 
for a period in excess of 10 continuous years (reference DC/16/2912).  The retention of the 
timber bridges (subject of this application) would further facilitate and enhance this 
established use.

6.10 The existing campsite provides recreational opportunities to the wider area, and is 
considered to be a sustainable form of development that contributes to the local rural 
economy. The ability to access the western field on a regular basis, for both agricultural 
and recreational needs, would support the agricultural undertaking, but also the sustainable 
development of the rural area. Therefore, the retention of the timber bridges for both 
agricultural and recreational use is therefore considered to accord with policy 26 of the 
Horsham District Planning Framework (2015).

Character of the site and landscape character of the wider surroundings

6.11 Policies 25, 32 and 33 promote development which is of high quality and design, and is 
sympathetic to the distinctiveness of the dwelling and surroundings. Development should 
protect, conserve and enhance the landscape character, taking account of the nature 
environment, landscape and landform pattern to which it forms a part.

6.12 The bridges are of an untreated timber construction, with a timber bannister provided to the 
edges. These are considered to reflect the rural landscape character of the area and are of 
a scale which is in keeping with the wider landscape and surroundings. As such, the form 
and finish of the bridges are considered to accord with policies 25, 32 and 33 of the 
Horsham District Planning Framework (2015).

Amenities of the occupiers of neighbouring properties

6.13 Policy 33 states that development should consider the scale, massing and orientation 
between buildings, respecting the amenities and sensitivities of neighbouring properties

6.14 Given the nature and location of the bridges, in the context of adjacent properties and uses 
of land, the bridges are not considered to have a material impact upon the amenities and 
sensitivities of neighbouring properties, in accordance with policy 33 of the Horsham 
District Planning Framework (2015).

Page 85



Conclusion

6.15 The timber bridges are considered to be acceptable in principle, and are considered to be 
of a form and appearance that relate sympathetically to the rural character of the area. The 
bridges are not considered to materially harm the amenities of neighbouring properties. As 
such, the development is considered to accord with Policies 25, 26, 32, 33 and 41 of the 
Horsham District Planning Framework (2015).

7. RECOMMENDATIONS

To permit the application.

Background Papers: DC/16/2522

Page 86



FF

Spinning Wood

Ponds

Pond

Tr
ac

k

0.91m
 R

H

W
ard Bdy

Path (um
)

SA
KE

 R
ID

E 
LA

N
E

Pond

Ponds

0.91m
 R

H

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey map with permission of the Controller 
of Her Majesty's Stationery Office © Crown Copyright 2012. 

Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may lead to prosecution or 
civil proceedings.

Scale:

DC/16/2522

Blacklands Farm

1:2,500

Organisation
Department
Comments

Date

MSA Number

 
 

Horsham District Council

09/03/2017

100023865

For Business use only - not for distribution to the general public

You created this PDF from an application that is not licensed to print to novaPDF printer (http://www.novapdf.com)

Page 87

http://www.novapdf.com/


This page is intentionally left blank



Contact Officer: Tamara Dale Tel: 01403 215166

PLANNING COMMITTEE 
REPORT

TO: Planning Committee 

BY: Development Manager

DATE: 21 March 2017

DEVELOPMENT: Erection of 1 x end of terrace dwelling

SITE: 16 Southview Terrace Henfield West Sussex BN5 9ES

WARD: Henfield

APPLICATION: DC/16/1783

APPLICANT: Ms Suzanne Sutherland

REASON FOR INCLUSION ON THE AGENDA: More than 8 representations have been received 
contrary to Officer recommendation

RECOMMENDATION: To permit application subject to conditions

1. THE PURPOSE OF THIS REPORT

1.1 To consider the planning application.

DESCRIPTION OF THE APPLICATION

1.2 The application seeks full planning permission for an end of terrace dwelling to the west of 
the existing row of terraces.  The proposed dwelling would extend to a width of 4.7m and a 
total depth of 20m on the lower ground floor, with the ground floor above extending to a 
depth of 14.8m, with terrace extending to an additional 2.5m. The proposal would extend 
across four floors, and would measure to an overall height of 9.3m to match the ridge 
height of the adjoining properties.  

1.3 A two storey bay window feature would be positioned to the front of the proposed dwelling, 
extending to a height of 7.1m, with the single storey projection to the rear extending to a 
height of 3.9m to provide a first floor terrace.

1.4 The proposal would be finished in matching materials to the adjoining properties, and 
would provide a master bedroom with ensuite, dining/kitchen room to the lower ground 
floor; an entrance hall, w.c, study and living room on the ground floor; living 
area/kitchenette, bedroom with ensuite on first floor; and bedroom on second floor.

DESCRIPTION OF THE SITE

1.5 The application site lies on the north side of Southview Terrace, a private lane, within the 
built-up area and designated Conservation Area of Henfield.  The site is set to the rear of a 

Page 89

Agenda Item 10



number of dwellings positioned to the south of Nep Town Road, with access provided off of 
Weavers Lane, and on street parking provided to the south of the street.

1.6 The site itself incorporates a single storey side garage with balcony over, which is bound 
with a close-boarded fence to the east, and a public right of way which extends adjacent to 
the boundary. The site is positioned at the end of a row of terraced dwellings of similar size 
and appearance, all of which include small rear gardens.

1.7 All of the neighbouring properties are slightly stepped up from the street, with a basement 
level provided.

2. INTRODUCTION

STATUTORY BACKGROUND

2.1 The Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

RELEVANT GOVERNMENT POLICY

2.2 National Planning Policy Framework: 
NPPF6 - Delivering a wide choice of high quality homes 
NPPF7 - Requiring good design 
NPPF12 - Conserving and enhancing the historic environment 
NPPF14 - Presumption in favour of sustainable development 

RELEVANT COUNCIL POLICY

2.3 Horsham District Planning Framework (HDPF 2015)
HDPF1 - Strategic Policy: Sustainable Development 
HDPF2 - Strategic Policy: Strategic Development 
HDPF3 - Strategic Policy: Development Hierarchy  
HDPF4 - Strategic Policy: Settlement Expansion 
HDPF15 - Strategic Policy: Housing Provision 
HDPF16 - Strategic Policy: Meeting Local Housing Needs 
HDPF25 - Strategic Policy: The Natural Environment and Landscape Character 
HDPF32 - Strategic Policy: The Quality of New Development 
HDPF33 - Development Principles 
HDPF34 - Cultural and Heritage Assets 
HDPF41 - Parking 

RELEVANT NEIGHBOURHOOD PLAN

2.4 Henfield Neighbourhood Development Plan 2015 – 2035
Following a court decision on 13 October 2016, Henfield Neighbourhood Development 
Plan has been quashed. The Parish Council is currently considering how they will move 
forward. Henfield Parish continues to be covered by the Horsham District Local Plan, and 
this plan remains the current and up to date plan for the area.

PLANNING HISTORY

HF/69/81 Garage.
(From old Planning History)

PER

DC/06/2976 Removal of existing garage roof and formation of roof 
terrace and conservatory

REF

Page 90



DC/07/0617 Removal of existing garage roof to create roof terrace PER

DC/12/1793 Two storey side extension to replace existing single storey 
garage with roof terrace (Full Planning)

PER

DC/16/2623 To create a self-contained flat in the lower ground floor of 
an existing house

PCO

3. OUTCOME OF CONSULTATIONS

3.1 Where consultation responses have been summarised, it should be noted that Officers 
have had consideration of the full comments received, which are available to view on the 
public file at www.horsham.gov.uk. 

INTERNAL CONSULTATIONS

3.2 Design and Conservation Officer: No Objection

OUTSIDE AGENCIES

3.3 West Sussex Highways: No objection subject to conditions.

3.4 West Sussex Public Rights of Way: No Objection

3.5 Southern Water: No Objection, subject to conditions.

PUBLIC CONSULTATIONS

3.6 Parish Council: Objection on the grounds of insufficient parking provision.

3.7 73 letters of objection were received from 38 households, and these can be summarised as 
follows:

• Out of character – size and frontage
• Lack of parking provision
• Detrimental impact upon access provision
• Issues with construction traffic
• Safety implications on construction, parking provision, and neighbouring properties
• Out of keeping with Conservation Area
• Impact upon adjacent public footpath
• Overdevelopment of plot
• Possible subsidence and need for retaining wall
• Overlooking from canted bay window
• Impact on public footpath
• Overdevelopment of site

4. HOW THE PROPOSED COURSE OF ACTION WILL PROMOTE HUMAN RIGHTS

4.1 Article 8 (Right to respect of a Private and Family Life) and Article 1 of the First Protocol 
(Protection of Property) of the Human Rights Act 1998 are relevant to this application, 
Consideration of Human rights forms part of the planning assessment below.

Page 91

http://www.horsham.gov.uk/


5. HOW THE PROPOSAL WILL HELP TO REDUCE CRIME AND DISORDER

5.1 It is not considered that the development would be likely to have any significant impact on 
crime and disorder.

6. PLANNING ASSESSMENTS

6.1 The application seeks full planning permission for a two storey (plus basement and attic 
level) end of terrace dwelling.

Principle of Development

6.2 Policies 3 and 4 of the Horsham District Planning Framework state that development will be 
permitted within towns and villages that have defined built-up areas. Any redevelopment 
will be required to demonstrate that it is of an appropriate nature and scale to maintain 
characteristics and function of the settlement, in accordance with the settlement hierarchy.

6.3 The site is positioned with the built-up area of Henfield which is categorised as a “Small 
Town and Larger Village” under policy 3 of the HDPF. These settlements are defined as 
having a good range of services and facilities, strong community networks and local 
employment provision, together with reasonable rail and/or bus services. The settlements 
act as hubs for small villages to meet their daily needs, but also have some reliance on 
large settlements/each other to meet some of their requirements.

6.4 The site is located within the built-up area, where there is a presumption in favour of 
development, subject to any infilling demonstrating that it is of an appropriate nature and 
scale to maintain characteristics and function of the settlement. As such, the principle of the 
development is considered acceptable, subject to all other material considerations.

Character of the site and surroundings

6.5 Policies 25, 32 and 33 of the Horsham District Planning Framework promote development 
that is of a high quality design, which is sympathetic to the character and distinctiveness of 
the site and surroundings, with proposals contributing to a sense of place through 
appropriate scale, massing and appearance.

6.6 The street scene is characterised by a row of Victorian terrace dwellings that are positioned 
along a continuous build line. The row of terraced dwellings is of uniform appearance, 
albeit with a number which have been individually painted.  The proposed form and 
appearance of the proposed dwelling has been amended to reflect the remainder of the 
terrace row. The proposed height and bay window features would positively reflect that of 
the surrounding built form, with the proposed dwelling appearing as a continuation of the 
terrace.

6.7 The proposal has been amended as part of the application process to better reflect the 
character, appearance and vernacular of the existing terrace.  The resulting building is 
considered to represent a sympathetic addition which would be in keeping with the built 
surroundings.  Whilst the width of the plot and proposed dwelling would be slightly different 
than adjoining properties this is not considered to be of a manner which would detract from 
the overall character and appearance of the site and surroundings. As such, the proposal is 
considered to relate sympathetically with the build pattern, character and distinctiveness of 
the site and surroundings, in accordance with Policies 25, 32 and 33 of the Horsham 
District Planning Framework (2015).

Page 92



Amenities of the occupiers of adjoining properties

6.8 Policy 33 of the Horsham District Planning Framework states that development should be 
designed to avoid unacceptable harm to the amenity of occupiers/users of nearby property 
and land, whilst having regard to the sensitivities of surrounding development.

6.9 The proposal would mirror the depth of the adjoining terrace from ground level and above, 
with this arrangement considered to prevent any harmful loss of light or outlook for the 
adjoining property (no. 16), with the resulting relationship reflective of the wider terrace.  
The additional projection at basement level would be partly excavated into the ground and 
this would reduce the height and massing along the shared boundary with no. 16, such that 
no harm to light or outlook to adjoining windows at basement level would result.

6.10 The neighbouring properties are positioned along a continuous build line, all of which sit on 
similar ground level, with the adjacent properties to the north stepped down from the site. 
The layout of the proposed windows are considered to be similar to the established layout 
of neighbouring properties, and it is therefore considered that views from the proposed 
dwelling itself would result in no further harm to the amenities of neighbouring properties.  
High level windows would be incorporated within the side elevations of the single storey 
basement projection with overlooking to the adjoining property prevented by the proposed 
garden arrangement.

6.11 It is recognised that objection has been raised by neighbours over the possible outlook and 
loss of privacy caused by the canted two storey bay window to the front elevation. 
However, following amendments this window has been omitted and replaced with a bay to 
match the remainder of the terrace. Given surrounding properties include a similar style 
window this is not considered to result in any further harm or overlooking to the 
neighbouring properties than that already established within the wider terrace.

6.12 The proposal would incorporate a rear terrace that would extend to a depth of 2.5m and a 
width of 3.7m, extending 2m above the highest ground level of the neighbouring property.  
In response to officer concerns the terrace has been reduced in size and scale with privacy 
screening proposed along the shared boundary with the neighbouring property.  The 
inclusion of this screen, which is secured through condition, is considered sufficient to 
reduce the potential overlooking and loss of privacy, with the use of obscure glazing 
ensuring that a level of light is still able to diffuse through the site.

6.13 It is considered that amendments secured as part of the application have resulted in a 
scheme which reduces the impact on neighbouring properties and ensures that no 
significant harm upon the amenities and sensitivities of neighbouring properties would 
result. As such, the proposal is considered to accord with Policy 33 of the Horsham District 
Planning Framework (2015).

Existing Parking and Traffic Conditions

6.14 Policy 41 of the Horsham District Planning Framework states that development should 
provide safe and adequate parking, suitable for all anticipated users.

6.15 A number of objections have been raised to the application based upon the parking 
arrangement proposed. These objections state that there is insufficient parking along the 
lane to provide for the existing dwellings, with the addition of another dwelling considered 
to further strain the parking, traffic and access arrangements. Furthermore, it is highlighted 
that the highway is a private lane owned by the Southview Terrace Residents Association, 
and therefore the land proposed for parking is not owned by the applicant.

Page 93



6.16 The existing dwelling of 16 Southview Terrace currently includes an attached garage and 
parking space to the front, which would be demolished to accommodate the new dwelling. 
The removal of this parking area will lead to an increase in parking requirements, not only 
for the new dwelling, but also the existing.  It is noted from the representations received 
that the lane benefits from 8 x parking spaces with any additional vehicles required to park 
elsewhere in neighbouring roads.

6.17 It is proposed to provide 2 x parking spaces to the front of the dwelling, and these would be 
positioned parallel to the terrace of dwellings. Following amendments, these parking 
spaces would utilise an area of land to the frontage, and it is noted that part of the site 
would need to be cleared to provide this parking area. The clearance of the site does not 
raise any concerns with regards the character or appearance of the site or wider 
surroundings, with the allocation for parking considered an appropriate measure of 
mitigation (which can be secured through condition).

6.18 Given the location of the site within the built-up area, in reasonably close proximity to the 
centre of Henfield, the site is considered to be in a sustainable location that has good 
public transport services. The need for a private vehicle would be reduced with the 
possibility of using other methods of transportation available.  Although it is acknowledged 
that the introduction of an additional dwelling would lead to further pressure given the 
existing situation (with uncontrolled street parking available in the vicinity of the site) any 
impact is not considered to be of such significance as to warrant refusal of the application.

6.19 For the reasons outlined the proposed parking arrangement is considered to be acceptable 
and is not considered to result in harm to the function and safety of the highway network, in 
accordance with policies 40 and 41 of the Horsham District Planning Framework.

Conclusion

6.20 The proposed development is considered to be of a form and appearance that would relate 
sympathetically to the build pattern, character and distinctiveness of the street scene, whilst 
of a scale, siting and orientation that would not materially harm the amenities and 
sensitivities of neighbouring properties, in accordance with Policies 25, 32, 33 and 41 of the 
Horsham District Planning Framework (2015).

7. RECOMMENDATIONS

7.1 That planning permission be granted subject to the following conditions:-

1 Approved Plans

2 Standard Time Condition:  The development hereby permitted shall be begun 
before the expiration of three years from the date of this permission.

Reason:  To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

3 Pre-Commencement Condition:  No development shall take place, including any 
works of demolition, unless there is available within the site provision for the storage 
of materials and equipment associated with the building works; all in accordance 
with precise details to be approved by the Local Planning Authority in writing before 
development commences.  The approved facilities shall be retained and available 
for use throughout the period of work required to implement the development 
hereby permitted unless alternative details are agreed in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority.

Page 94



Reason:  In the interests of road safety and/or in the interests of amenity and in 
accordance with Policy 40 of the Horsham District Planning Framework (2015).

4 Pre-Commencement Condition:  No development shall commence until a detailed 
surface water drainage scheme including a Surface Water Drainage Statement, 
based on sustainable drainage principles and an assessment of the hydrological 
and hydrogeological context of the development has been submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  The development shall 
subsequently be implemented prior to first occupation in accordance with the 
approved details and thereafter retained as such.

Reason:  As this matter is fundamental to prevent the increased risk of flooding, to 
improve and protect water quality, improve habitat and amenity, and ensure future 
maintenance in accordance Policies 35 and 38 of the Horsham District Planning 
Framework (2015).

5 Pre-Occupation Condition:  Prior to the first occupation (or use) of any part of the 
development hereby permitted, full details of the hard and soft landscaping works 
shall be submitted to and approved, in writing, by the Local Planning Authority.  The 
approved landscape scheme shall be fully implemented in accordance with the 
approved details within the first planting season following the first occupation of any 
part of the development.  Any plants, which within a period of 5 years, die, are 
removed, or become seriously damaged or diseased shall be replaced in the next 
planting season with others of similar size and species unless the Local Planning 
Authority gives written consent to any variation. 

Reason:  To ensure a satisfactory development that is sympathetic to the landscape 
and townscape character and built form of the surroundings, and in the interests of 
visual amenity in accordance with Policy 33 of the Horsham District Planning 
Framework (2015).

6 Pre-Occupation Condition:  No dwelling hereby permitted shall be occupied (or 
use hereby permitted commenced) unless and until provision for the storage of 
refuse/recycling has been made for that dwelling (or use) in accordance with details 
to be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  These 
facilities shall thereafter be retained for use at all times.

Reason:  To ensure the adequate provision of recycling facilities in accordance with 
Policy 33 of the Horsham District Planning Framework (2015).

7 Pre-Occupation Condition:  Prior to the first occupation (or use) of any part of the 
development hereby permitted, details of secure (and covered) cycle parking 
facilities for the occupants of, and visitors to, the development shall have been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  No dwelling 
hereby permitted shall be occupied or use hereby permitted commenced until the 
approved cycle parking facilities associated with that dwelling or use have been fully 
implemented and made available for use.  The provision for cycle parking shall 
thereafter be retained for use at all times.

Reason:  To ensure that there is adequate provision for the parking of cycles in 
accordance with Policy 40 of the Horsham District Planning Framework (2015).

8 Regulatory Condition:  The materials and finishes of all new external walls, 
windows and roofs of the development hereby permitted shall match in type, colour 
and texture those of the adjoining building.

Page 95



Reason:  In the interests of visual amenity and in accordance with Policy 33 of the 
Horsham District Planning Framework (2015).

9 Regulatory Condition:  No works for the implementation of the development 
hereby approved shall take place outside of 08:00 hours to 18:00 hours Mondays to 
Fridays and 08:00 hours to 13:00 hours on Saturdays nor at any time on Sundays, 
Bank or public Holidays

Reason:  To safeguard the amenities of the residents of Southview Terrace in 
accordance with Policy 33 of the Horsham District Planning Framework (2015).

10 Regulatory Condition:  The dwelling hereby approved shall not be occupied until 
the parking spaces have been provided in accordance with the plans hereby 
approved (as shown on plan reference 1533-101B received 19.12.2016) and the 
parking spaces shall thereafter be retained solely for that purpose and solely in 
connection with the approved development.

Reason:  To ensure adequate parking spaces are available to serve the 
development in accordance with Policy 40 of the Horsham District Planning 
Framework (2015).

11 Regulatory Condition:  The dwelling hereby approved shall not be occupied until 
screening has been erected to the ground floor roof terrace in accordance with 
drawing no. 1533-210 (B).  The screening shall thereafter be retained in strict 
accordance with the approved plans.

Reason:  To safeguard the amenities of the residents of 16 Southview Terrace in 
accordance with Policy 33 of the Horsham District Planning Framework (2015).

NOTE TO APPLICANT
Detailed design of the proposed drainage system should take into account the possibility of 
surcharging within the public sewerage system in order to protect the development from 
potential flooding.

NOTE TO APPLICANT
Should any building works, demolition or construction encroach upon the PROW then a 
Temporary Path Closure Order may be required, for which an application must be made to 
WSCC's RoW Team. Planning permission does not confer consent for such a closure, 
which requires a separate application to WSCC's RoW Team. Access along the PROW by 
contractor's vehicles, deliveries or plant is only lawful if the applicant can prove they have a 
vehicular right. Neither the applicant nor their contractor has a right to obstruct the PROW 
with parked vehicle(s). Any alteration to, or replacement of, the existing boundary with the 
PROW or the erection of new fence lines, must be done in consultation with WSCC's RoW 
Team to ensure the legal width of the footpath is maintained and there is no unlawful 
encroachment. If the footpath surface is considered damaged as a result of the 
development then the applicant will be required to make good the surface to a standard 
satisfactory to WSCC's RoW Team.

Background Papers: DC/16/1783

Page 96



NEP

1

5

2

7

9

3

6
4

PH

LB

38.3m

TCB

Track

Fe
rn

Dipdown

Sandpits

Path (um)

North
House

Centre

C
ot

ta
ge

Mount

Vinalls
Business

13

59

12

Byways

Ivybank

West View

Je
nn

is
on

s

MILL END

N
E

P 
C

LO
S

E

Cutlers Croft

W
E

A
V

E
R

S
 L

A
N

E

C
am

as
s 

H
ou

se

W
IN

D
M

IL
L 

LA
N

E

SOUTH VIEW TERRACE

M
oo

lta
n 

C
ot

ta
ge

Mount Pleasant

Ho

Villas

Granary

Lexden

Th
e 

Fo
rg

e

C
ot

ta
ge

s

N
ep

 C
ot

Wor-yem

Pilgrims

High Croft

O
ld

 S
ch

oo
l

El Sub Sta

13

1

2

1
2

6

1

1
1

3

2

2

1

1

3

TOWN

The

16

17

Knutsford

Wakefield

Rosemount

Bryher

Hillside House

Pendrells

36.8m

Th
e 

T
w

itt
en

s

1

Cottage

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey map with permission of the Controller 
of Her Majesty's Stationery Office © Crown Copyright 2012. 

Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may lead to prosecution or 
civil proceedings.

Scale:

DC/16/1783

16 Southview Terrace

1:1,250

Organisation
Department
Comments

Date

MSA Number

 
 

Horsham District Council

09/03/2017

100023865

For Business use only - not for distribution to the general public

You created this PDF from an application that is not licensed to print to novaPDF printer (http://www.novapdf.com)

Page 97

http://www.novapdf.com/


This page is intentionally left blank



Contact Officer: Tamara Dale Tel: 01403 215166

PLANNING COMMITTEE 
REPORT

TO: Planning Committee South

BY: Development Manager

DATE: 21 March 2017

DEVELOPMENT: Retrospective application to retain a self-contained flat in the lower 
ground floor of an existing house

SITE: 16 Southview Terrace Henfield West Sussex BN5 9ES

WARD: Henfield

APPLICATION: DC/16/2623

APPLICANT: Miss Suzanne Sutherland

REASON FOR INCLUSION ON THE AGENDA: More than 8 representations have been received 
contrary to Officer recommendation

RECOMMENDATION: To permit application

1. THE PURPOSE OF THIS REPORT

1.1 To consider the planning application.

DESCRIPTION OF THE APPLICATION

1.2 The application seeks planning permission for a 1-bed flat within the lower ground floor of 
16 Southview Terrace.  The development has taken place and the application is therefore 
retrospective.  The subdivision has involved only internal changes to the lower ground floor, 
with the layout providing a bedroom, a dining room, kitchen, and utility room at the rear.

DESCRIPTION OF THE SITE

1.3 The application site lies on the north side of Southview Terrace, a private lane, within the 
built-up area and designated Conservation Area of Henfield.

1.4 The site is set to the rear of a number of dwellings positioned to the south of Nep Town 
Road, with access provided off of Weavers Lane, and on street parking provided to the 
south of the street.

1.5 The site includes a single storey side garage with balcony over, which is bound with a 
close-boarded fence to the east, and a public right of way which extends adjacent to the 
boundary. 

1.6 The site is positioned at the end of a row of terraced dwellings of similar size and 
appearance, all of which include small rear gardens. All of the neighbouring properties are 
slightly stepped up from the street scene, with a basement level provided.

Page 99

Agenda Item 11



2. INTRODUCTION

STATUTORY BACKGROUND

2.1 The Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

RELEVANT GOVERNMENT POLICY

2.2 National Planning Policy Framework: 
NPPF3 - Supporting a prosperous rural economy 
NPPF6 - Delivering a wide choice of high quality homes 
NPPF7 - Requiring good design 
NPPF14 - Presumption in favour of sustainable development 

RELEVANT COUNCIL POLICY

2.3 Horsham District Planning Framework (HDPF 2015)
HDPF1 - Strategic Policy: Sustainable Development 
HDPF2 - Strategic Policy: Strategic Development 
HDPF3 - Strategic Policy: Development Hierarchy  
HDPF32 - Strategic Policy: The Quality of New Development 
HDPF33 - Development Principles 
HDPF34 - Cultural and Heritage Assets 
HDPF40 - Sustainable Transport 
HDPF41 - Parking 
HDPF42 - Strategic Policy: Inclusive Communities 

RELEVANT NEIGHBOURHOOD PLAN

2.4 Henfield Neighbourhood Development Plan 2015 – 2035
Following a court decision on 13 October 2016, Henfield Neighbourhood Development 
Plan has been quashed. The Parish Council is currently considering how they will move 
forward. Henfield Parish continues to be covered by the Horsham District Local Plan, and 
this plan remains the current and up to date plan for the area.

PLANNING HISTORY

HF/69/81 Garage.
(From old Planning History)

PER

DC/06/2976 Removal of existing garage roof and formation of roof 
terrace and conservatory

REF

DC/07/0617 Removal of existing garage roof to create roof terrace PER

DC/12/1793 Two storey side extension to replace existing single storey 
garage with roof terrace (Full Planning)

PER

DC/12/2161 Demolition of existing single storey garage (Conservation 
Area Consent)

PER

DC/12/2299 Forming new opening in the 1st floor front elevation and 
installing a painted timber double hung sash window

PER

Page 100



3. OUTCOME OF CONSULTATIONS

3.1 Where consultation responses have been summarised, it should be noted that Officers 
have had consideration of the full comments received, which are available to view on the 
public file at www.horsham.gov.uk. 

INTERNAL CONSULTATIONS

3.2 N/A

OUTSIDE AGENCIES

3.3 County Council – Highways:  No objection.  The proposal would not have a ‘severe’ 
impact on the operation of the highway network, therefore is not contrary to the National 
Planning Policy Framework (para 32.).

3.4 County Council – Rights of Way: No objection.  The application does not propose any 
alteration to the public right of way.

PUBLIC CONSULTATIONS

3.5 Parish Council: Objection as it does not comply with policy.

3.6 13 letters of objection were received within the consultation period, with an additional 2 
representations received after the consultation closed. These can be summarised as 
follows:

 Increased intensity and pressure on traffic and parking
 Noise and traffic pollution
 Overdevelopment
 Setting of a precedent
 Impact on Conservation Area
 Detrimental effect on privacy and general amenity 

4. HOW THE PROPOSED COURSE OF ACTION WILL PROMOTE HUMAN RIGHTS

4.1 Article 8 (Right to respect of a Private and Family Life) and Article 1 of the First Protocol 
(Protection of Property) of the Human Rights Act 1998 are relevant to this application, 
Consideration of Human rights forms part of the planning assessment below.

5. HOW THE PROPOSAL WILL HELP TO REDUCE CRIME AND DISORDER

5.1 It is not considered that the development would be likely to have any significant impact on 
crime and disorder.

6. PLANNING ASSESSMENTS

6.1 The application seeks full planning permission for the retention of the subdivision of the 
existing dwelling to provide a self-contained flat within the lower ground floor.

Principle of Development

Page 101

http://www.horsham.gov.uk/


6.2 Policy 3 and 4 of the Horsham District Planning Framework (HDPF) state that development 
will be permitted within towns and villages that have defined built-up areas. Any 
redevelopment will be required to demonstrate that it is of an appropriate nature and scale 
to maintain characteristics and function of the settlement, in accordance with the settlement 
hierarchy.

6.3 The site is positioned with the built-up area of Henfield which is categorised as a “Small 
Town and Larger Village” under Policy 3 of the HDPF. These settlements are defined as 
having a good range of services and facilities, strong community networks and local 
employment provision, together with reasonable rail and/or bus services. The settlements 
act as hubs for small villages to meet their daily needs, but also have some reliance on 
large settlements/each other to meet some of their requirements.

6.4 The site is located within the built-up area, where there is a presumption in favour of 
development. As such, the principle of the development is considered acceptable, subject 
to all other material considerations.

Character of the site and surroundings

6.5 Policies 25, 32 and 33 of the HDPF promote development that is of a high quality design, 
which is sympathetic to the character and distinctiveness of the site and surroundings; with 
proposals contributing to a sense of place through appropriate scale, massing and 
appearance.

6.6 The subdivision has involved no external alterations to the property. As such, the proposal 
is not considered to have a material impact upon the character and distinctiveness of the 
site and surroundings. Therefore, the proposal is considered to accord with Policies 25, 32, 
and 33 of the Horsham District Planning Framework (2015).

Amenities of the occupiers of adjoining properties

6.7 Policy 33 of the HDPF states that development should be designed to avoid unacceptable 
harm to the amenity of occupiers/users of nearby property and land, whilst having regard to 
the sensitivities of surrounding development.

6.8 The subdivision of the property has affected the lower ground floor which is set within the 
basement level. The development has involved no external alterations to the property, and 
thus the proposal will cause no harm to the amenities of neighbouring properties through 
outlook, loss of light or privacy, in accordance with Policy 33 of the Horsham District 
Planning Framework (2015).

Quality of environment for future occupiers

6.9 Policies 32 and 33 of the HDPF states that development should provide an attractive, 
functional, accessible, safe and adaptable environment, with development providing 
maximum benefit from sunlight and passive solar energy.

6.10 The layout of the proposed flat utilises pre-existing window and door openings, providing a 
living area to the southern (front) section of the dwelling, with the bedroom, kitchen and 
bathroom positioned to the rear.  This arrangement, which is not dissimilar to the original 
configuration of the building, is considered sufficient to ensure that the key habitable room 
benefits from natural light from the front lightwell, which is a common feature of the street.  
The remainder of the unit benefits from windows to the rear of the building which overlook 
an area of private amenity space.  It is considered that the resulting standard of 
accommodation is considered acceptable with adequate space and good access to natural 

Page 102



light and ventilation.  The development is therefore considered to accord with Policy 33 of 
the Horsham District Planning Framework (2015).

Existing Parking and Traffic Conditions

6.11 Policy 41 of the HDPF states that development should provide safe and adequate parking, 
suitable for all anticipated users.

6.12 A number of objections have been raised to the application based upon the existing 
parking arrangement. These objections state that there is insufficient parking along the lane 
to provide for the existing dwellings, with the addition of another dwelling considered to 
further strain the parking, traffic and access arrangements. 

6.13 It is acknowledged that the introduction of a further dwelling would lead to additional 
demand for parking.  The site is though within an area of uncontrolled street parking where 
no exceptional local circumstances have been identified which would be exacerbated by 
the proposal.  The additional demand for parking is not therefore considered likely to result 
in either material nuisance for adjoining residents, or a highway safety hazard.

6.14 The site is also located within a built-up area in reasonably close proximity to the centre of 
Henfield.  This is considered to be a sustainable location with good walking links and public 
transport services which would reduce the need for a private vehicle with the possibility of 
using other methods of transportation available.  The Highway Authority has raised no 
objection to the proposal.  This reinforces the above view and, in this instance, the absence 
of dedicated parking is considered acceptable and in accordance with policies 40 and 41 of 
the Horsham District Planning Framework.

7. RECOMMENDATIONS

7.1 To permit the application

Background Papers: DC/16/2621

Page 103



This page is intentionally left blank



NEP

1

5

2

7

9

3

6
4

PH

LB

38.3m

TCB

Track

Fe
rn

Dipdown

Sandpits

Path (um)

North
House

Centre

C
ot

ta
ge

Mount

Vinalls
Business

13

59

12

Byways

Ivybank

West View

Je
nn

is
on

s

MILL END

N
E

P 
C

LO
S

E

Cutlers Croft

W
E

A
V

E
R

S
 L

A
N

E

C
am

as
s 

H
ou

se

W
IN

D
M

IL
L 

LA
N

E

SOUTH VIEW TERRACE

M
oo

lta
n 

C
ot

ta
ge

Mount Pleasant

Ho

Villas

Granary

Lexden

Th
e 

Fo
rg

e

C
ot

ta
ge

s

N
ep

 C
ot

Knutsford

Wor-yem

Pilgrims

High Croft

O
ld

 S
ch

oo
l

El Sub Sta

13

1

2

1
2

6

1

1
1

3

2

2

1

1

3

TOWN

The

16

17

Wakefield

Rosemount

Bryher

Hillside House

Pendrells

Th
e 

T
w

itt
en

s

36.8m

1

Cottage

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey map with permission of the Controller 
of Her Majesty's Stationery Office © Crown Copyright 2012. 

Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may lead to prosecution or 
civil proceedings.

Scale:

DC/16/2623

16 Southview Terrace

1:1,250

Organisation
Department
Comments

Date

MSA Number

 
 

Horsham District Council

09/03/2017

100023865

For Business use only - not for distribution to the general public

You created this PDF from an application that is not licensed to print to novaPDF printer (http://www.novapdf.com)

Page 105

http://www.novapdf.com/


This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	5 Appeals
	6 DC/16/2108 - Monastery Lane, Storrington, Pulborough (Ward: Chantry)  Applicant: Mr Chris Pitchford
	A01 DC-16-2108 Plan

	7 DC/16/2155 - Patuca, Bracken Lane, Storrington, Pulborough (Ward: Chanctonbury)  Applicant: Mr Stuart Oldroyd
	A02 DC-16-2155 Plan

	8 DC/16/2915 - Blacklands Farm Camping, Blacklands Farm, Wheatsheaf Road, Henfield (Ward: Henfield)  Applicant: Mr Neil & Grahame Goodridge
	A03 DC-16-2915 Plan

	9 DC/16/2522 - Blacklands Farm, Wheatsheaf Road, Henfield (Ward: Henfield)  Applicant: Mr Grahame & Neil Goodridge
	A04 DC-16-2522 Plan

	10 DC/16/1783 - 16 Southview Terrace, Henfleld (Ward: Henfield)  Applicant: Ms Suzanne Sutherland
	A05 DC-16-1783 Plan

	11 DC/16/2623 - 16 Southview Terrace, Henfield (Ward: Henfield)  Applicant: Miss Suzanne Sutherland
	A06 DC-16-2623 Plan


